PROJECT REPORT

PERFORMANCE OF SEISMICALLY DEFICIENT EXISTING BRACED STEEL FRAME STRUCTURES WITH FLEXIBLE DIAPHRAGMS IN HALIFAX

by

ALICIA GALLAGHER

NOVEMBER 30 2012

Department of Civil Engineering And Applied Mechanics

McGill University Montreal

PROJECT REPORT

PERFORMANCE OF SEISMICALLY DEFICIENT EXISTING BRACED STEEL FRAME STRUCTURES WITH FLEXIBLE DIAPHRAGMS IN HALIFAX

by

ALICIA GALLAGHER

NOVEMBER 30 2012

Department of Civil Engineering And Applied Mechanics

McGill University Montreal G12-39



Performance of Seismically Deficient Existing Braced Steel Frame Structures with Flexible Diaphragms in Halifax

by

Alicia Gallagher



Supervisor: Professor Colin Rogers

Department of Civil Engineering and Applied Mechanics

McGill University, Montreal, Quebec, Canada

December 2012

A project report submitted to the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies in partial fulfillment of the requirements (14 credits) for the degree of Master of Engineering



Sumervisor Professor Collo Robert

Department of Civil Engineering and Applied Medianucs

Motell University Monteral October Cumula

December 2012

A project report submitted to the Faculty of Graticite and Fostdooroni Sindies in particular, in particular,

Abstract

evaluation and makehilting the make evidence to the parties further building content

Studient's on the beliefs."

The intended performance level a de design entreprises, as well as the second and criteria used in the braced Teachy according and the design entreprises and the second and the 2009) principal to general. Although according performance was not achieved in all crees the one-type decision and the second activity and the best fills and the second activity of Consels, on another the trace of another the second activity and the base of Consels, on



Abstract

Concentrically braced frames (CBFs) have been one of the fundamental structural systems for lateral force resistance chosen by designers for low-rise steel construction since the early part of the twentieth century. CBFs designed using the building codes and standards of the 1960s were designed using the principle that they remained in the linearly elastic range. The current design philosophy of the 2010 National Building Code of Canada (NBCC) and CSA-S16-09 is based on the principles of capacity design and recognises the cyclic inelastic behaviour of CBFs. Since no detailing or design requirements for an inelastic seismic response were included in structures designed with past building codes, these structures are likely to exhibit seismic deficiencies, including lack of lateral resistance and insufficient ductility. Guidelines for evaluating the performance of CBFs are required in order to provide recommendations for seismic evaluation and rehabilitation for such existing buildings for future building codes.

The behaviour of one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and CSA-S16-65 (CSA 1965) under current building code standards for seismic design was studied in order to aid in establishing such guidelines. The response of a series of sixteen one-storey buildings with varying aspect ratios and heights was studied, subjected to ten artificial and ten historical earthquake ground motions. The nonlinear seismic behaviour of the CBFs was determined using an analytical OpenSees, *Open System for Earthquake Engineering Simulation* (OpenSees 2011), model for nonlinear time history dynamic analysis, including drift and ductility demands on the braces.

The intended performance level in the design earthquakes, as well as the acceptance criteria used in the braced frame analysis were established using FEMA P695 (FEMA 2009) criteria. In general, although acceptable performance was not achieved in all cases, the one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada, on average, performed well, for the seven failure criteria outlined in this study.

i

Concentriculty based frances (CBEs) have been one of the fundamental structural separation in peral force resistance chosin by designers for low-rise and construction since the early pert of the twometh contrary. **CBEs designed** using the building codes an since the early pert of the twometh contrary. **CBEs designed** using the building codes an integril, classic range. The correct design philosuphy of the 2010 National Hauting Codes an conformation (NBCC) and CSA-S16-09 is based on the principles of capacity design and scoregoises the cyclic inclusive behaviour of CBEs. Since no detailing or design requirements for an indicate techaviour of CBEs. Since no detailing or design and the full the units of the structures are likely to calibit reismic deficiencies moluling tack of fareral resistance and in their indicate for evaluating the performance of CBEs are required in order to provide recommendations for selecule evaluation and relativitients are indicate to provide recommendations for selecule evaluation and relativitients of the order to provide recommendations for selecule evaluation and relativitients are buildings for future building codes.

9

The behaviour of one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and C.S.A-S16-65 (C.S.A 1965) under current building code standards for seismic design was studied in order to aid in establishing sych guidelines. The response of a codes of dataon one-scorey buildings with varying aspect ratios and heights was studied, subjected to ten artificial and tan batoared curring data and motions. The nonlinear score behaviour of the CBFs was determined using an analytical OpenSees. Open System for Earthquake Engineering Elandaries and the model for nonlinear time history dynamic analysis, including drift and ducility demands on the bracks.

The instanded parlowntance level in the design earthquakes, as well as the acceptance criteria used in the braced frame analysis were established using FEMA P695 (FEMA 2009) esteria, to general, although acceptable performance was not achieved in all cases the one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada, on average, performed well, for the seven failure criteria outlined in this analy.

Résumé

Les cadres à contreventements concentriques (CCC) sont un des systèmes fondamentaux choisis par les concepteurs de bâtiments de faible hauteur en acier pour la résistance aux charges latérales depuis le début du vingtième siècle. Les CCC construit selon les codes de bâtiments et standards des années 1960 ont été conçus avec le principe qu'ils demeurent dans la zone d'élasticité linéaire. La philosophie de conception en vigueur dans le Code nationale de bâtiment 2010 et le CSA-S16-09 est basé sur le principe de calcul par capacité et constate le comportement inélastique cyclique des CCC. Les bâtiments conçus avec ces anciens codes n'avaient aucune exigence de détaillage ou conception particulier pour un comportement inélastique cyclique, donc il est probable que ces structures démontrent des déficiences sismiques, incluant un manque de résistance aux charges latérales et un manque de ductilité. Des principes pour l'évaluation de la performance des CCC sont requis pour fournir des recommandations pour l'évaluation sismique et des exigences pour la réhabilitation de ces structures existantes pour les futurs codes de bâtiment.

Le comportement de structures d'un étage conçus avec le Code nationale de bâtiment 1965 (NRCC 1965) et le CSA-S16-65 (CSA 1965) selon les normes sismiques des codes de bâtiment en vigueur a été étudier pour aider à établir ces recommandations. La performance d'une série de seize bâtiments d'un étage avec des rapports d'aspect et hauteurs variés a été étudiée, subie à dix enregistrements sismiques artificiels et historiques. Le comportement non-linéaire sismique des CCC a été déterminé avec un modèle analytique OpenSees, *Open System for Earthquake Engineering Simulation* (OpenSees 2011), pour des analyses non-linéaires dynamiques temporelles, incluant les demandes de déplacement et ductilité des contreventements.

Le niveau de performance visé avec les séismes de conception, et les critères d'acceptation dans l'analyse des cades contreventer a été établie avec FEMA P695 (FEMA 2009). Selon cette étude, en générale, même si les critères d'acceptation n'ont pas été atteints dans tous les cas, les bâtiments d'un étage conçu avec le Code nationale de bâtiment 1965 ont, en moyenne, performer bien pour les sept critères d'évaluation soulignée dans cette étude.

imustill

For a les alles la contretamente tertoantriques (CCC) sont un des vyretores tractamentes, en de triper la contretamente de faible heateur en neter pour la restanne, en de hairmente el stan tarde de hairmente de faible heateur en neter pour la restanne, en de hairmente el stan tarde de année 1960 out été conço a vec le principe qu'us de hairmente el stan tarde de année 1960 out été conços avec le principe qu'us dementent dans la roue d'étament étimente. La platesophie de conception en triparen de terminente de bairmente des années 1960 out été conços avec le principe qu'us dementent dans la roue d'étament étimente. La platesophie de conception en triparen dementent dans la roue d'étament 2010 et le CSA-S16-09 est bare sur le principe de termine de terminente inflateique cyclique, don cCC. Les demententes que que de terminente de terminente conços avec de detaillere ou conçue sur explore rue des mactane, les admentent inflateique cyclique, donc il est portable de terminente de terminente de terminente inflateique cyclique, donc il est portable de terminente de tentitité de terminente de terminente de terminente de ten

Le compunement de strue utes d'un étage cancos avec le Codo nationale de beiment 1965 (MRCC 1965) et le CSA SIO-CS (CSA 1965) selon les normes sismiques des codes de bétiment en vigient a éta condres pour ades à Gablit des exercitandations. La preformance d'une serie de saire baimente d'un étage avec des rapports d'aspect et hemetars varies a des étables subre à dis emogiétiques des OCC e de déterminé avec un finatoriers de comportement non-lineade sismique des OCC e de déterminé avec un mister mais tique OpenSees, Open Sparen de Earliques temporelles, incluant les formation de depla caucat et dustinée des contents d'anniques temporelles, incluant les de formation de depla caucat et dustinée des contents formations formulation

Les invanu de performance viso avec les réformes de conseccion, et les cultires d'ese spission dans l'annipre des autos contreventer a été établie une FEMA P695 (FEMA) 2000). Seine seue études en générales minte al les critères d'acceptation n'ont pes dié autoints dans fone les cas, les bétimients d'un étuge conçu avec le Code antionalé de biliment d'un colte des cas, les bétimients d'un étuge conçu avec le Code antionalé soulièmes dans tous les cas, les bétimients d'un étuge conçu avec le Code antionalé de biliment d'un colte des cas, les bétimients d'un étuge conçu avec le Code antionalé soulièmes dans tous les cas, performer bien pour les seut critéres d'évaluation

Acknowledgements

Firstly, I would like to thank Professor Colin A. Rogers for all of his support and guidance throughout the process of the completion of this research project.

I would also like to acknowledge all of the help that I received from fellow student Anthony Caruso-Juliano, and thank doctoral student Tom Morrison for all his assistance.

I would also like to thank Hélène Brisebois and SDK et associés for all their continual support throughout the process of this research project. None of this would be possible without their assistance, understanding and mentorship.

Finally, I would like to thank all of my family and friends who supported me throughout the entirety of my Masters program. I would especially like to recognize my good friends Megan Ladd and Jacelyn Daigle whose friendship has been invaluable.

None of this would have been possible without the unwavering support of all the people in my life. Thank you.

Acknowledgemanis

ningthy, I would like to thank Professor Coffin A. Rogers for all of his support and randance throughout the process of the completion of this research molect.

Automid also like to acknowledge all of the holp that I received from tellow student.

I wante also like to than't Heldue Briesbois and SDK et associés for all their continent support incupients the process of this research project. None of this would be possible without their a sistance, understanding and memorship.

Finally, I would like to thankealt of my family and brends who supported me throughout the entirely of my Mastery magnum. I would especially like to recognize my good friend Megan I add and invelven Deigle whose triendship has been invaluable. None of this would have been possible without the unwavering support of all the people

in my life 3 hank you ...

Table of Contents

Abstract		i
Résumé.		ii
Acknow	ledgements	iii
Table of	Contents	iv
List of Figures		vii
List of T	ables	ix
Chapter	1 – Introduction	1
1.1	Background	1
1.2	Goal of Research	2
1.3	Scope and Limitations	3
1.4	Overview of Report	3
Chapter 2 – Literature Review		5
2.1	History of Seismic Design in the NBCC	5
2.2	Seismic Design Philosophy in 2010 NBCC	12
2.3	Concentrically Braced Frames in S16-09	13
2.3.	1 Moderate Ductility CBFs	15
2.3.	2 Limited Ductility CBFs	16
2.3.	3 Conventional Construction CBFs	16
2.3.4	4 Inelastic Response of CBFs	17
2.3.	5 Failure Modes of CBFs	19
2.3.0	6 Connections	20
2.4	Calculation of the Fundamental Period	21
2.5	Summary	22

Augusta and Aug	
of Szimic Design in the NBCC	
The second	

Chapter 3 – Design Review of Single-Storey Steel Buildings in Can	ada23
3.1 Overview	22
3.2 1965 Building Loads	
3.2.1 Dead Loads	
3.2.2 Snow Loads	
3.2.3 Seismic Loads	
3.2.4 Wind Loads	
3.2.5 Load Combinations	
3.3 Design of Braced Bay According to 1965 CSA-S16 Stand	ard29
3.3.1 Selection of Braces	
3.3.2 Selection of Columns	
3.3.3 Selection of Beams	
3.3.4 Selection of Roof Deck/Diaphragm	
3.4 2010 Building Loads	
3.4.1 Dead Loads	
3.4.2 Snow Loads	
3.4.3 Seismic Loads	
3.4.4 Wind Loads	
3.4.5 Load Combinations	
3.5 Design of Braced Bay According to 2009 CSA-S16 Stand	lard39
3.5.1 Selection of Braces	
3.5.2 Selection of Columns	
3.5.3 Selection of Beams	40
3.5.4 Selection of Roof Deck/Diaphragm	
3.6 Selection of Earthquake Records	40

J. C.		
06		
	Dest Louds	

3.7 CBF Test Program	
3.8 OpenSees model for nonlinear analysis	
3.8.1 Failure Criteria47	
3.8.2 Incremental Dynamic Analysis (IDA)	
3.9 Performance level and acceptance criteria	
3.10 Summary	
Chapter 4 – Results	
4.1 IDA Analysis	
4.2 Fragility Curves	
4.3 Building evaluation according to FEMA P695 acceptance criteria	
4.4 Evaluation of an example building using dynamic modal analysis and NBCC	
2010	
4.4.1 Comparison example building using dynamic modal analysis and NBCC 2010	
to OpenSees model results	
4.5 Summary	
Chapter 5 – Conclusion	;
5.1 Analysis Conclusions	
5.2 Recommendations for future research	5
Bibliography67	7
Appendix A	2
Appendix B	5
Appendix C10	1
Appendix D10	5
Appendix E	4

CBI-Test Program	
OBE lest Program	
Parformanob level and acceptance criteda	
and the second	
69 - Conditation	

-

-

A 5

-

4

10

•

List of Figures

Figure 1- CBF building under construction1
Figure 2 - Seismic zoning map from the 1953 National building code of Canada (NRCC
1953)
Figure 3 – Seismic zoning map from the 1970 National building code of Canada (NRCC
1970)7
Figure 4 - Seismic zoning map from the 1985 National building code of Canada (NRCC
1985)
Figure 5 - Uniform hazard spectrum for Halifax from the 2005 National building code of
Canada (NRCC 2005)10
Figure 6 - Excerpt from Table 4.1.8.9 from the 2005 National building code of Canada
(NRCC 2005)11
Figure 7 - Uniform hazard spectrum for Halifax from the 2010 National building code of
Canada (NRCC 2010)
Figure 8 - Various buckled shapes of cross braces during testing by Morrison (2012)18
Figure 9 - Lateral force vs. displacement hysteretic performance of plain cross brace
sample by Morrison (2012)18
Figure 10 - Brace connection designed according to CSA S16-2009 Standard20
Figure 11 - Plan view of building type 7H as designed according to the 1965 National
Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and the CSA S16-1965 Steel Structures for
Buildings Standard (CSA 1965)
Figure 12 - Bracing elevation of building type 7H as designed according to the 1965
National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and the CSA S16-1965 Steel Structures
for Buildings Standard (CSA 1965)25
Figure 13 - Layout of typical connections, based on one row of bolts or two, assumed in
dimensioning of bracing angles to account for width of leg required to permit bolting30
Figure 14 - Spectral acceleration vs. time for percentile mean of the scaled artificial
records as compared with UHS for Halifax
Figure 15 - Spectral acceleration vs. time for percentile mean of the scaled historic
records as compared with UHS for Halifax

List of Figures

rigate 7 - Dailorn horard spectrum for Halifax from the 2010 National building code of Figure 10 - Brook connection designed according to CSA \$16-2000 Smothed

Figure 16 - Conceptual plan view of OpenSees model from Caruso-Juliano (2012)45
Figure 17 - P-∆ columns concept in OpenSees model from Caruso-Juliano (2012)46
Figure 18 - a) Bracing bent spring model and b) Discretization of brace member. Caruso-
Juliano (2012)
Figure 19 - Results of IDA analysis for building 2H
Figure 20 - Results of IDA analysis for building 7H
Figure 21 - Results of IDA analysis for building 8H55
Figure 22 - Results of IDA analysis for building 16H55
Figure 23 - Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building
2H
Figure 24 - Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building
7H57
Figure 25 - Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building
8H
Figure 26 - Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building
16H

List of Tables

Table 1 - Dimensions of buildings analyzed in study	5
Table 2 - Uniformly distributed dead loads on roof	5
Table 3 - Load combinations (NRCC 1965)	3
Table 4 - Joist spacing used for each design building for diaphragm design. 33	3
Table 5 - Strength and stiffness of the diaphragm from SDI diaphragm catalog published	
by the Canadian Sheet Steel Building Institute (CSSBI)	4
Table 6 - Snow loads as calculated per Clause 4.1.6 of the National Building Code of	
Canada 2010	5
Table 7 - Wind loads as calculated per Clause 4.1.7 of the National Building Code of	
Canada 2010	8
Table 8 - Load combinations (NRCC 2010). 38	
Table 9 - Ten artificial records and scaling factors based on Atkinson (2009). 4	1
Table 10 - Ten historical records based from McGuire (2004). 4.	
Table 11 - Ten artificial records from McGuire (2004) and scaling factors based on	
Atkinson (2009)	3
Table 12 - Spectral shape factor, SSF, according to the fundamental period, T, and period	1-
based ductility; μ _T (FEMA 2009)	
Table 13 - Seven failure criteria in IDA analysis	53
Table 13 - Seven failure criteria in IDA analysis	
Table 15 - Final base shear for analysis using base shear from dynamic analysis, Vd, and	
the design base shear, V	51
Table 16 - Results of OpenSees analysis for ground motions 1 through 20	
Table 16 - Results of OpenSees analysis for ground motions i unough 20.	-

ix

Chapter 1 - Introduction

1.1 Background

Concentrically braced frames (CBFs) are defined in the CSA S16-2009 *Design of Steel Structures* Standard as "those in which the centre-lines of diagonal braces, beams and columns are approximately concurrent with little or no joint eccentricity" (CSA S16 2009). CBFs have been one of the fundamental structural systems for lateral force resistance chosen by designers for low-rise steel construction since the early part of the twentieth century. They were often combined with the use of infilled masonry walls or moment resisting frames to resist principally wind loads. Typical configuration of braced frames employed tension-only braces in either an X, as seen in Figure 1, or knee brace construction. CBF buildings also include the use of a horizontal lateral force resisting system consisting of a steel deck, considered as a flexible diaphragm, to transfer lateral loads to the CBFs. With the introduction of seismic requirements in the building codes of the 1960s they were often preferred over moment resisting frames as drift became an important design consideration (Bruneau et al. 1998).



Figure 1- CBF building under construction.

CBFs employ high elastic stiffness and resist lateral load based on axial action, with very little bending or flexural action. The initial design philosophy of codes of the 1960s for wind loads was that braces remained in the linearly elastic range. This principle was also

f bapter 1 - introduction

Concernmently innersi frames (Citra) are defined in the CSA S16-2009 Owley & New Structure of second or trace in which the centre lines of diagonal braces, hence, and calitates are applied potentially concurrent with fulls of an joint eccentricity of SA S14 S1693 (Citra have been one of the fundamental structural systems for the real lense sectorates of reacting degraphers for lens are stud construction since the early part of the sectorates of the statement for lens are stud construction since the early part of the studies cality degraphers for lens are stud construction since the early part of the studies cality of the statement for lense are studies and the studies of the studies early of the statement of the state studies of the state of the state the state cality of the statement for lense are studies and the state. Typical centification of here of the state state of the statement of the state of a horizontal lateral force resisting statement of states of a state for an added for an a flexible dispination of the states of the states are to the state of a horizontal lateral force resisting states are to the state of the state are of a horizontal lateral force resisting of the here (Bas Mart new interface of a monor and states in the building cedee of the figure in the building cedee of the state of the states in the building cedee of the figure in the building cedee of the state of the states in the building cedee of the figure in the building cedee of the state of the states and the states of th

cessies amploy high along outfloors and resits lateral load bused on axial action, with yer lighte benditigan flow and attain. The institut design pidlocoping of codes of the 1960s for might loads yous that become remained in the lineardy classic range. This principle was also applied for seismic design initially and buildings designed using earlier codes were not detailed for inelastic seismic response. Later codes recognised the cyclic inelastic behaviour of CBFs and lead to the introduction of the capacity design procedures and detailing that are the basis of modern steel design (Bruneau et al. 1998).

The current 2010 National Building Code of Canada (NBCC) and CSA-S16-09 (CSA 2009) design philosophy is based on the principles of capacity design. This is where a specific element in the lateral force resisting system is designed to dissipate energy through inelastic response under seismic loads. The other elements of the frame are designed such that they are strong enough, while remaining elastic, so that the fuse element can dissipate the required energy. This ensures a proper hierarchy for yielding such that inelastic response is constrained to the specified element. In CBFs the element designed to dissipate energy is the brace itself, which requires a certain level of ductility to withstand the large deformations under the design earthquake. The NBCC prescribes that the building be able to undergo such deformations while remaining intact to enable evacuation, preventing major failure and loss of life.

This research will focus on the performance of CBFs designed using the codes of the 1960s where braces were designed using the principle that they remained in the linearly elastic range, using the current design philosophy of the 2010 National Building Code of Canada (NBCC) and CSA-S16-09.

1.2 Goal of Research

This research was conducted in order to aid in establishing guidelines for evaluating the performance of CBFs in one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NBCC) and CSA-S16-65 (CSA 1965) under current building code standards for seismic design. These past codes incorporated no detailing or design requirements for an inelastic seismic response and as such these structures are likely to exhibit seismic deficiencies, including lack of lateral resistance and insufficient ductility.

The nonlinear seismic behaviour of the CBFs subjected to time history analysis is studied, including the drift and ductility demands on the braces. Such research is required in order

propised for several better maintly and buildings designed using earlier codes ware not dominat for inclusive scannic response. Later codes recognized the cyclic inclustic better inter of CRC send tend to the munder tion of the capacity design procedures and detailine that are the heats of modern steel design (Brunom et al. 1998).

The case of 2010 Validation had been and a marcial to of tapacity design. The in where a marcial data and in the start of the resume passes is designed to the frame where the start is the start of the resume start is built to the elements of the frame are been as the start of the start of the resume builts. The other elements of the frame are the start is the start of the start of the start of the elements of the frame are the start of the frame are free and the start of the start of the start of the start of the frame the start of the frame the start of the

This gaven half for us on the performance of CBFs designed using the today of the 1960s where Lettles were designed thing the principle that they remained in the linearly design research and the pure of design philosopher of the 2010 Mallocal Buildery & oth of the search of the terms of the first philosopher of the 2010 Mallocal Buildery & oth of

5.3 Court of the court of the court of the set of th

The inhuman second is being your of it wells a subject of the history analysis in studied

to provide recommendations for seismic evaluation and rehabilitation requirements for such existing buildings for future building codes.

1.3 Scope and Limitations

The response of a series of sixteen one-storey buildings with varying aspect ratios and heights was studied, subjected to ten artificial and ten historical earthquake ground motions. These structures were dimensioned and designed according to the 1965 National Building Code of Canada and CSA S16-1965 *Steel Structures for Buildings* for the city of Halifax. No ductility verifications were performed in the member selection and design, as was consistent with steel design practise in the 1960s. The lateral force resisting system consisted of CBFs along exterior walls with single angle bracing and considered the use of a horizontal lateral force resisting system consisting of a steel deck as a flexible diaphragm, to transfer lateral loads to the CBFs. The gravity load carrying system considered in the 1965 design consisted of open web steel joists, supported on cantilevered Gerber beams for the interior spans, with simply supported perimeter beams.

The study is limited to structures on soils of class C, as defined in the current NBCC 2010. Buildings considered were rectangular or square and symmetrical in plan with uniform mass, stiffness, and strength. As such, in-plane torsional effects were not considered in the design and analyses. The effect of non-structural components, including cladding and interior partitions, on the dynamic response of the buildings being studied was not considered in this report.

This report is complimentary to a study of similar scope by Caruso-Juliano (2012) evaluating the performance of CBFs in one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NBCC) and CSA-S16-65 (CSA 1965) for the cities of Abbotsford and Montreal.

1.4 Overview of Report

This project report will begin with a literature review of the state of seismic design as prescribed by the current National Building Code of Canada as well as a brief review of past design practises and the history of Canadian codes and standards for seismic design. It will then describe the design procedure used to establish the braced bay geometry used

3

in provide reasonneed where the reasone evaluation and rehabilitation requirements for

annitest so, I has squad ...

Interview of a series of entern one-charge buildings with viry of experiments and borishs were shalled, abrached to ten artificial and ten historical actifugates ground molificas. These universes were dimensioned and designed according to the 1%55 National field act Code of Califach and CSA S16-1965 Street Structurer for Buddings for the clop of man construct the unificated at age parents in the 1960s. The lateral force resisting system was constructed at CSA site out to 1960s. The lateral force resisting system and resistence of Califach and CSA site of 1960s. The lateral force resisting system and resistence of Califach and the virth angle angle bracing and considered the use and resistence of Califach and the construct of the lateral force resisting system and resistence of Califach and the construct of the article bracing and considered the use and resistence of Califach and the construct of the lateral force resisting system and resistence of the store construct of open resisting of a steel dock as a flexible constructed in the 1965 difference on a first of open resistence of the store estimation of the lateral force form construct of open resistence of the store estimation of the lateral force form construct of open resistence of the store estimation of the lateral force form construct of open resistence supported on the store for the force forms for the interior space, with simply supported perimeter beforms.

anitist, paratings considered were recomplised of square and symmetrica in one with uniform innex; surfaces, and scouply, As sigh, in-plane tradenal effects were not effective in the design and antipacs. The effect of non-invential components, including classifier and interver, partitions, on the dynamic response of the holidings being studied wis not considered in this report.

Enternegore in complementary to a study of similar score by Courso-Jethano (2012) availabiling the participution and CDF similars store storey store and an atting the 1965 National Physiology Code of Consels (NUCC) and CSA 516-65 (CSA 1965) for the cities of Astronomical Montreal

This quarter report will begin whith a literature review of the state of mismic design as prevented by the current Substant B bilding Code of Canada as well as a brief review of part design took the second the bilding of Canadam codes and another for second design is will then describe the design procedure used to establish the braced bay geometry use in this study according to the CSA S16-1965 Steel Structures for Buildings Standard and the 1965 National Building Code of Canada, as well as outline the different approach had the design been done with the current CSA S16-2009 Design of Steel Structures Standard and the 2010 National Building Code of Canada. The selection of earthquake time-history records will also be presented, as well as a brief overview of the development of the analytical OpenSees, Open System for Earthquake Engineering Simulation (OpenSees 2011), model for nonlinear time history dynamic analysis, accounting for the roof diaphragm flexibility and hysteretic behaviour of the braces. The intended performance level in the design earthquakes will be discussed, as well as the acceptance criteria used in the braced frame analysis. The results of the nonlinear analysis will then be presented and discussed. The report will also include an analysis of an example building using a 3D modelling program with dynamic modal analysis in order to compare the OpenSees analysis to the verification approach that would be taken by a design engineer according to the current NBCC 2010. The project report will end with conclusions on the performance of CBFs in one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada under current building code standards for the city of Halifax.

thered on historical entitiquelle data. Zone is did not not not a preside on preside entities delays, one is represented the base case for design internal load, non- is entitled a californiar of 2 on the design internal load, and zone a required a multiplier of it on the design internal load the sciencie force coefficients is used also modified to be a function of the building's suffrees, based on its membra of nearby, about de form is and on the scientific on the building's suffrees, based on its membra of nearby, about de form is and the scientific on the building's reserve wright. We was delivered as the dead load plan is and the scient many load to level if under consideration (NHO: 39-7). Minited at al. 2000, Econe at "scient if", ExIn this study according to the Constance would be called a study of the different approach light for the formation of the called of Constance would be called the different approach light for the formation of the formation of

Chapter 2 – Literature Review

2.1 History of Seismic Design in the NBCC

The National Building Code of Canada has evolved over the last 70 years as new research has emerged and as design philosophy has changed. This is especially evident in the area of seismic design and in the evaluation of seismic hazard. As such, the evaluation of seismic design force levels (represented by base shear) has differed with each publication of the NBCC.

The first seismic design provisions were based on the 1935 Uniform Building Code (UBC 1935) and published in the 1941 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1941). The design lateral force was based on the weight of the building, W, and a seismic force coefficient C, which varied from 0.02 to 0.05, to account for the bearing capacity of the soil (NRCC 1941; Mitchell et al. 2010). Base shear, V, was defined as:

The 1953 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1953) saw the introduction of a seismic zoning map, as presented in Figure 2, with four zones of varying seismic hazard, based on historical earthquake data. Zone 0 did not require any specific seismic design, zone 1 represented the base case for design lateral load, zone 2 required a multiplier of 2 on the design lateral load, and zone 3 required a multiplier of 4 on the design lateral load. The seismic force coefficient C_i was also modified to be a function of the building's stiffness, based on its number of storeys above the "level i" under consideration. The seismic weight, W_i, was defined as the dead load plus 25% of the design snow load for "level i" under consideration (NRCC 1953; Mitchell et al. 2010). Force at "level i", F_i, was defined as:

$$F_i = C_i W_i$$
[2-2]

5

Campter 2 - Literature Review

The Manipust Banking Costs of Canada has voived over the first 40 years as new a second and enterpoint panking that of Canada has evolved over the first 40 years as new a second and enterpoint and eviden philosophy has changed. This is especially and of an ihr area of selection de Second in the evaluation of selectic hazard. As such the evid vide of selection design force in the transported by base shear) has differed with ed. I with callent at the MBCC

2 the first adaptic (gray non-islar's were based on the 1935 Uniform fourthing Cole (Diff. 1911). The 1935 and paint degl in the 1801 Mathematic like of Canada (NRCC 1911). The deniest (alternation for which were based on the weight of the building. W, and a single's first constraint of the building to the building of the buildin

$W_{ij} = V$

The 1953 Futurini Huilding Code of Canada (NRCC 1953) and the introduction of 1 selenge entring many at presented in Figure 2, with four some of varying wished heard. Insert on historical caringlish data. Zone G did nor require any specific version choign, and 1 represented incluse case for design lateral lord, zone 2 required affinit dier of 2 and insert represented in base case for design lateral lord, zone 2 required affinit dier of 2 and inserts the coefficient C, was seen modified to be a function of the heating's and finess based on its number al stores above the "level i" under consideration. The set min weight, W, was defined as any deal data [25% of the design mere lord for rescale. The defined as any deale data for did distributed for the set min weight, W, was defined as any deal data [25% of the design mere lord for rescale. The set of the set of the distribute of the design mere lord for set mine rescaleration (Sign C 1933; Mitchell et al. 2001): Takes in "Resel i", Fy-

N D= A



Figure 2 - Seismic zoning map from the 1953 National building code of Canada (NRCC 1953).

In the 1960 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1960) seismic design requirements were the same as the 1953 code; however, it/introduced the need to account for torsional effects without specifying a precise procedure (NRCC 1960; Mitchell et al. 2010).

The 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) used the same seismic zoning map introduced in the 1953 code with the same multipliers on the design lateral load; however it redefined them as the seismic regionalization factor, R. It also introduced a factor to account for the type of lateral force resisting system, C, an importance factor, I, to account for the intended use of the building, and a foundation factor, F, to account for site soil conditions. The coefficient representing the building's stiffness, based on the number of storeys, was modified and redefined as the structural flexibility factor, S. The design lateral load was specified as being linearly distributed to respective floor levels based on height and weight. The code also introduced guidelines on accounting for torsional effects (NRCC 1965; Mitchell et al. 2010). Base shear, V, was defined as:

V=RCIFSW

[2-3]
A Cost 2016 the foreign and have the USA is afrend for and only of the state of the SA

hirton 1968) Stational Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1960) telenue design estationerus overe the same as the 1953 code; havever, it introduced the need to accordifor torsional effects without specifying p perios procedure (NRCC 1960; Mileself et elbuildy

the 1965 Mathemal Building Code of Canada CMCC 1965) used the same sentence of a supprimedural in the 1965 code with the same multipliers on the design literal load, however it redefined dura as the relative regionalization factor, R. It also bimoloced a memory to account for the type officient force resisting system C. as importance factor, I in a serier mathematical dura of the building, but a foundation factor, F. to account for also and conditions. The onefficient represented to same the factor for manifer of store, a way confident represented to the mathematical factor, S. The manifer of store, a way confident and activities for the mathematical factor, S. The memory blevel factor at the confident of the factor of the factor of the design lateral factor way the two the factor of the factor of the factor of the design lateral factor of the confident and activities for the mathematical factor, S. The mathematical factor of the confident and activities and the sequence factor, S. The design lateral factor of the confident and activities and sector of the sequence of the factor of the confident of the factor of the design lateral factor of the confident and activities and the sequence of the factor of store of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design lateral factor of the confident of the factor of the design lateral factor of the confident of the factor of the factor of store of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design of the factor of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design of the factor of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design of the factor of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design of the factor of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design of the factor of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design of the factor of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design of the factor of the factor of the factor of the factor of the design of the factor of the design of

VERDIEV

The 1970 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1970) saw the modification of the seismic zoning map, as presented in Figure 3, to include the evaluation of seismic hazard based on a probabilistic approach for expected accelerations, rather than the historic approach previously employed. Seismic hazard was based on expected accelerations having a probability of exceedance of 0.01 (100-year return period). Four seismic zones were maintained, although some cities were rezoned. The same seismic regionalization factors, R, as developed in the 1953 code were maintained. The structural flexibility factor, S, was renamed C and was modified to be a function of the building's period rather than its number of storeys. The factor accounting for type of construction, C, was renamed K. The 1970 code also introduced a way to account for higher mode effects by specifying a concentrated force, F_t, as a portion of the lateral load to be applied at the top of the building and a reduced overturning moment (NRCC 1970; Mitchell et al. 2010). Base shear, V, was defined as:

$$V = 1/4 R(KCIFW)$$

[2-4]

Figure 3 - Seismic zoning map from the 1970 National building code of Canada (NRCC 1970).

Boundary accelerations expressed as a percentage of g for 100-year return period

The 1975 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1975) used the same seismic zoning map introduced in the 1970 code; however the seismic regionalization factor, R was eliminated. Instead the horizontal design ground acceleration, A, was introduced for

0

The CTO Matorial Building Code of Canada (MRCC 1970) say the modification of the fatter estimate rotation map, as presented in Figure 2. to include the evaluation of acts is haven haved on a molecollatic approach for expected accelerations, make 0 on the instance supports previously analoged. Science based was based on expected accelerations. Hereing a probability of exceedance of 0.41 (100-year return period). Four extract was exceen materialed difference of 0.41 (100-year return period). Four extract and exceen materialed difference of 0.41 (100-year return period). Four extract and exceeders R. as do coupled in the 1983 code were required. The same solution region difference includes them and to the 1983 code were required. The same solution of the factors S. was reported in the 1983 code were maintained. The same solution of the sectors R. as do coupled in the 1983 code were required. The same solution of the factors S. was reported in the 1983 code were required for the building's period sectors R. as do coupled in the 1983 code were constitued of the building's period determined the tractic of more set the factor accounting for type of construction. C. was appendent the tractic number of more set for factor account for higher rande effects by endertains a number of more set for factor accounting for type of construction. C. was appendent the tractic of overset also appendents on the lateral load to be applied at the top endertains a number of access and appendent of the lateral load to be applied at the top endertains and the tracter of oversuming more of the lateral load to be applied at the top

V = 1/0 R(RCIPW)

zones 0 through 3, and a seismic response factor, S, was introduced based on the buildings period. The factors accounting for type of construction, K were modified from the 1970 code to account for the effects of damping, ductility and energy absorption, and a new foundation factor, F, to account for intermediate site soil conditions was introduced. The code also modified the guidelines on accounting for torsional effects that had been introduced in the 1965 code. Dynamic analysis, as an alternative method for determining lateral loads, was also introduced in the 1975 code based on a scaled response spectrum with 5% damping. Scaling was specified according to the horizontal design ground acceleration for zones 0 through 3. A structural ductility factor, μ , was specified for calibrating the response spectrum. The response spectra of buildings with shorter periods were divided by $\sqrt{2\mu - 1}$, whereas those with longer periods were divided by μ (NRCC 1975; Mitchell et al. 2010). Base shear, V, was defined as:

The 1977 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1977) used the same seismic zoning map and design lateral force procedure introduced in the 1975 code. The provisions for dynamic analysis were modified to include a minimum base shear of 90% of the value calculated using the static procedure. This was introduced to have greater compatibility of the probability of exceedance between the static and dynamic analysis methods (NRCC 1977; Mitchell et al. 2010).

The 1980 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1980) used the same seismic zoning map and design lateral force procedure as the 1975/1977 code. The seismic response factor, S, based on the buildings period was modified. The code also included guidelines on calculating the eccentricity to account for torsional effects (NRCC 1980; Mitchell et al. 2010).

The 1985 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1985) saw the modification of the seismic zoning map, as presented in Figure 4, to include the evaluation of seismic hazard based on a new point source model with a probability of exceedance of 10% in 50 years (return period of 475 years). As well the number of seismic zones was increased from four to seven, each being assigned a velocity zonal ratio, v. The seismic response factor,

8

somes 0 through 3, and 4 actions reprote factor, 5, was introduced back of the first buildings period. The finders reporting for type of construction, K wate tradited base for 1970 case to account for the effects of damping, distillity and carry finders and a first base of a report for the effects of damping, distillity and carry finders and a report of the first base of a report for the effects of damping, distillity and carry finders and a report of the first base of a report for the effects of damping, distillity and carry finders and a report of the first base of a report of the effects of the maximum first base of a report of the effects of the maximum first base of a report of the effects of the first base of a report of the effects of the maximum first base of a report of the effects of the first base of a report of the effects of the first base of a report of the effects of the first base of a report of the effects of the first base of a report of the effects of the first base of a report of the effect of the effects of the first base of a report of the first base of the effects of the first base of the effects of the effect of the effect

The 1977 Prefixed Bolding Code of Canada (NRCC 1977) used the mane situate aming map and dusign barrel for regimeeting muchaned in the 1978 code. The provisions for dynamic analysis are conclined to include a minimum base about of 90% of the value calculated traing the scale procedure. This was inproduced to have grantery empathlitics of the predetition of exe value convecture. This was inproduced to have grantery empathlitics of 1977 Mitchell of all 2010).

The Febre Sectional Building Casic of Canada (NRCC 1989) used the same estimate entries in an inspiral dasign tatatal bird. procedure as the 1975/1077 code. The second test entries estimate response of the second field of the cost also included prototers of the second field. The cost also included prototers on the field of the second field. The cost also included prototers on the field of the second field. The cost also included prototers on the field of the second field of the cost of the field of the second field. The cost also included prototers on the field of the second field of the second field of the second field of the second field of the cost of the second field of the

The 1983 Stational Building Code of Crimits (NRC C 1995) and the modification of the setands anning map, as possibled in Figure 6. In Statute the contractor of retentioners based on a new point course insider with a probability of associance of 10% in 30 years creater particular [17] years't derived the timeler of setants areas was increased munS, based on the buildings period was modified. The code allowed the building period to be determined by modal analysis, to a maximum of 1.2 times the specified empirical value. The provisions for dynamic analysis were modified to include a minimum base shear of 100% of the value calculated using the static procedure, as compared to the 90% previously allowed. The code also modified the guidelines on accounting for torsional effects such that accidental eccentricity was increased from 0.05D to 0.10D (NRCC 1985; Mitchell et al. 2010). Base shear, V, was defined as:

V=vSKIFW

O 1 2 3 4 5 6 Z O 0.04 0.08 0.11 0.15 0.23 0.32 G O 0.04 0.08 0.11 0.15 0.23 0.32 G

Figure 4 - Seismic zoning map from the 1985 National building code of Canada (NRCC 1985).

The 1990 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1990) used the same seismic zoning map as the 1985 code. The factor accounting for type of construction, K, was replaced by the force modification factor, R. The introduction of the force modification factor, R, was the NBCC's first recognition of a buildings capacity to dissipate energy during a seismic event through inelastic behaviour and it required specific design and detailing requirements be met according to the R-value chosen. A calibration factor, U, was introduced to ensure the base shear was compatible with previous editions of the NBCC. A new foundation factor, F, to account for very soft soil conditions was introduced. The 1990 code also included drift limits of 0.02h_s for normal buildings and 0.01h_s for post-

[2-6]

5. hased on the buildings parted was machined. The code allowed the building period to be drammined by modul analysis, to a maximum of 1.2 times the specified enquiried water. The mortsions for thermaic analysis was modified to include a minimum taxa sheep of 10000 of the value calculated using the state procedure, as compared to the 400 paralities of a compared. The code size an addited the guidelines an accounting for tendent effects and that addited as a state was increased from 0.05D to 0.100 (MRCC 198 Milebed was 1, 2010). Here align align of a state was increased from 0.05D to 0.100 (MRCC 198

(1991 - 1916) share The she's particle interior. 2007 and and space (1916) is the set

The Ford Numeral Building Code of Canada (NPCC 1990) used the name seismic zoning map or the 1983 code. The factor accounting for units of enternation, K, was replaced by the force modification instan, R. The introduction of the tance modification factor, R, was the MBCC's first recognizion of a hulblings expands to discrete costighting a scientic event through instantic federation and it contract specific destines correct during a scientic requirements he met according to the R-value charact. A collication factor, U, was introduced to ensure the black show was comparedo using persons editions of the MBCC. A new formutation factor, F, to account for second cast persons editions of the MBCC. disaster buildings, where h_s is the height of the building (NRCC 1990; Mitchell et al. 2010). Base shear, V, was defined as:

$$V=U(vSIFW)/R$$
 [2-7]

The 1995 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1995) used the same seismic zoning map and design lateral force procedure as the 1990 code. Additional force modification factors, R, were introduced. The code also modified the expressions for building periods and guidelines on accounting for torsional effects. The provisions for dynamic analysis were modified to include a minimum base shear of 80% of the value calculated using the static procedure, as compared to the 100% previously prescribed (NRCC 1995; Mitchell et al. 2010).

The 2005 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 2005) saw the elimination of the seismic zoning map for representing the seismic hazard and introduced the use of a uniform hazard spectrum (UHS), with each city in Canada having a site specific response spectrum. The UHS for Halifax is presented in Figure 5.



Figure 5 - Uniform hazard spectrum for Halifax from the 2005 National building code of Canada (NRCC 2005).

disease buildings, where he is the reight of the building (MRCC 1990; Matcheller al-

N=U (WALSA) /K

The 2005 Mayonal B miding Code of Consult (NECC 1993) used the 481 s serving commumaps and design Marend to see procedure as the 1990 code. Additional force on difiction forces of the code also modified the expressions for building periods and guidelines on attenting for torsional effects. The provisions for dynamic analy as were modified to include a minimula base shear of 80% of the volue calculated mains for sould procedure, see manaded to the 100% provided by prescribed (NECC 1995; Minsing)

The 2005 Netlevel Inceding Cells of Canada (NRCR 2003) any the elimention of the selfatio could group for representing the robusic hazard and introduced the use of a spacing hazard rightane (UHS), with each city in Canada having a site specific response spectrum. For tables for Hellfas, is presented in Pigare 5



France 5-Environment beine & regulation for Endland france and the Contingent motion gravity of Science (Control of Science 2005)

These UHS had a probability of exceedance of 2% in 50 years (2475-year return period), in comparison to the previous probability of exceedance of 10% in 50 years. Dynamic analysis was established as the preferred design method, and was imposed for irregular structures. Base shear calculation in the 2005 NBCC was based on the spectral acceleration at the fundamental building period, S (T_a). The higher mode participation factor was renamed M_v and the importance factor for earthquake load, I_E . The ductilityrelated force modification factor, R_d , was introduced to account for the buildings capacity to dissipate energy during a seismic event through inelastic behaviour. As well, the overstrength-related force modification factor, R_o , was introduced to account for reserved strength in a structure. For CBFs values of R_d and R_o were presented in Table 4.1.8.9 of the NBCC 2005, reproduced in Figure 6, for three types of CBFs: Moderately ductility (MD), limited ductility (LD), and conventional construction. Details for these types of CBFs are outlined in CSA-09 and presented in Section 2.3 of this report.

		Ro		Restrictions ⁽²⁾						
Type of SFRS	R _d			Cases Where I _E F _v S _a (1.0)						
		-	< 0.2	≥ 0.2 to < 0.35	≥ 0.35 to ≤ 0.75	> 0.75	> 0.3			
Steel Str	uctures Des	igned and De	etailed Accord	ding to CAN/C	SA-S16					
Ductile moment-resisting frames	5.0	1.5	NL	NL	NL	NL	NL			
Moderately ductile moment-resisting frames	3.5	1.5	NL	NL	NL	NL	NL			
Limited ductility moment-resisting frames	2.0	1.3	NL	NL	60	30	30			
Moderately ductile concentrically braced frames	1726		a topolo	alline I-			toure!			
Non-chevron braces	3.0	1.3	NL	NL	40	40	40			
Chevron braces	3.0	1.3	NL	NL	40	40	40			
Tension only braces	3.0	1.3	NL	NL	20	20	20			
Limited ductility concentrically braced frames							a pres			
Non-chevron braces	2.0	1.3	NL	NL	60	60	60			
Chevron braces	2.0	1.3	NL	NL	60	60	60			
Tension only braces	2.0	1.3	NL	NL	40	40	40			
Ductile eccentrically braced frames	4.0	1.5	NL	NL	NL	NL	NL			
Ductile frame plate shear walls	5.0	1.6	NL	NL	NL	NL	NL			
Moderately ductile plate shear walls	2.0	1.5	NL	NL	60	60	60			
Conventional construction of moment frames, braced frames or shear walls	1.5	1.3	NL	NL	15	15	15			
Other steel SFRS(s) not defined above	1.0	1.0	15	15	NP	NP	NP			

Figure 6 - Excerpt from Table 4.1.8.9 from the 2005 National building code of Canada (NRCC 2005).

•									
						A Constantine and a second			

stant. This is a second to the second standard had been a second standard to a second standard and s

14

The seismic weight, W, was modified to include the dead load (including partitions at 0.5 kPa), 25% of the design snow load, 60% of storage live loads, and the full contents of any tanks. The code also modified the guidelines on accounting for torsional effects and introduced a calculation for determining a building's torsional sensitivity based on the ratio between maximum and average storey displacements at extreme points of the structure. The 2005 National Building Code of Canada also introduced a defined set of structural irregularities to be avoided by designers, and established specific design requirements should a building have one of these irregularities. As well, it introduced height restrictions for the selection of a building's lateral-force resisting system. The provisions for dynamic analysis were modified to include a minimum base shear of 80% of the value calculated using the static procedure if the structure is regular, or 100% if the structure is irregular. The 2005 code also included drift limits of 0.025hs for normal buildings, 0.020h_s for schools, and 0.01h_s for post-disaster buildings. Drift limits were specified as those resulting from elastic deflection i.e. multiplied by RdRo/IE when drifts are determined based on the modified design spectrum (NRCC 2005; Mitchell et al. 2010). Base shear, V, was defined as:

$V=S(T_a)M_vI_EW/R_dR_o$ [2-8]

2.2 Seismic Design Philosophy in 2010 NBCC

With the 2010 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 2010), the uniform hazard spectrums were modified for the eastern cities, including Halifax as per Figure 7, while western cities maintained the same UHS as defined in the 2005 code. The UHS design spectrum was based on ordinates at periods of 0.2, 0.5, 1.0, and 2.0 s with a probability of exceedance of 2% in 50 years as seen in the 2005 NBCC.

As well, new lateral force resisting systems were added to the code with additional force modification factors R_d and R_o (NRCC 2010; Mitchell et al. 2010).

The means where X, was madeline the fact the food load (including partitions in 3.4). 14(a), 25% of the design snow load 60% of some live loads, and the full contents of an introduced a content on the desermining a maining for formound effects and anten between partitions the foodelines on accounting for formound effects and arter between partitions are described as an adding 's maining to the foodeline of the arter between partition and a content of the arter and an introduced a defined are to arter between partitions for the arter of the arter and antibioted specific design arter between partitions for the arter of these respinenties As well, it introduced are partitioned to the set of the arter of these respinenties. As well, it introduced are partitioned to the arter of the arter of these respinenties. As well, it introduced are partitioned to the arter of the arter of these respinenties. As well, it introduced are partitioned to the arter of the arter of these respinenties. As well, it introduced to are partitioned to the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal balances to 0.01h, for arter of the post-disection is an arter of 0.025h. For normal are determined at the arter of the arter of the arter arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of the arter of the arter of 0.025h. For normal arter determined at the arter of

2.3 Selemic Design Philoscope in 2010 NBCC With the 2010 National Datibility Code of Claudy (NRCC 2010), the million hadned spectrum where codified for the eastern cities including Fulfice as per Figure 7, while wontern mics remanzined the same Fills as delived in the 2003 code. The UHS design spectrum was based of outlendes as geneds of 0.2 0.5, 1.0, and 2.0 s with a probability of exceedance of The in 30 years as seen in the 2005 NBCC.

As well, next lateral funce restaring as uptos seen added to the pule with additional force modification forces and the set is 2010).

12



Figure 7 - Uniform hazard spectrum for Halifax from the 2010 National building code of Canada (NRCC 2010).

The value of base shear required for design by the 2010 NBCC varies according to the seismic force factors R_dR_o , which are assigned based on the level of ductility and overstrength that can be attributed to the structural system. This level of ductility is based on the system's ability to dissipate energy through inelastic deformations, and the minimum overstrength of the particular system. Each category of ductility has matching detailing requirements to ensure the anticipated inelastic behaviour is attainable. These requirements are outlined in CSA S16 for steel structures and CSA A23.3 for concrete structures. If inelastic deformations are not possible without a loss of resistance the system should be designed elastically with R_d equal to 1.0. For concentrically braced frames, systems are classified as "conventional construction", "limited ductility", or "moderate ductility" (NRCC 2010; Mitchell et al. 2010).

2.3 Concentrically Braced Frames in S16-09

Current design philosophy in CSA S16-2009 *Design of Steel Structures* Standard is based on limits state design, using load factors and material resistance factors.



The value of the sheet required for decign by the 2010 MBCC varies according to the second theory factors factor which are assigned based on the level of ducidity and or the spaces is called to describe many duration relative deformations, and the mining on the spaces is called to describe many durated metastic deformations, and the mining on operations of the remember system. Each category of decadity has matching detailing continuent of the remember system. Each category of decadity has matching according to a called the CSA S10 for sever backware is attainable. These many matching is the level of the remember of the sever states of the several of according to the remember of the remember of the several for the several of the second the response of the level of the remember of the several for the several of the second to according to the second of the remember of the several for the several of the second to response of the level of the remember of the several for the several of the second to according to the level of the second of the several for the second of the several of the second of the several to according to the level of the second of the several for the several of the several of the second of the several of according to the level of the second of the several for the several of the second of according to the level of the several for the several for the several of the second of the second of the several of the several for the several of the several of the second of the according to the several of the several for the several of th

Current design philosophy in Chieves (6-2009 Design of Seed Structures Standard is bate

Seismic design requirements are outlined in Clause 27 of CSA S16-2009. Current design philosophy is based on the principles of capacity design. For concentrically braced frames, the brace is the element designed to dissipate energy through inelastic straining under axial load. The other elements of the frame (beam, columns, diaphragm and all connections) are designed such that they are strong enough, while remaining elastic, so that the brace can dissipate the required energy. This ensures a proper hierarchy for yielding such that inelastic response is constrained to the brace elements. CSA S16-2009 restricts the maximum design load for these non-dissipating elements to that determined using a base shear calculated with $R_dR_o = 1.3$. This corresponds to a member designed elastically with R_d equal to 1.0, but with an overstrength factor, R_o , of 1.3. For connection design, if loads are determined using $R_dR_o = 1.3$ the connection must have a ductile governing failure mode such as yielding in tension or bolt bearing (Tremblay et al. 2009). Failure modes in the brace such as net section fracture, or bolt shear are considered non ductile and connection loads should be determined using $R_dR_o = 1.0$ (CSA S16 2009).

CSA S16-2009 specifies certain material and connection requirements in order to promote adequate post-yield behaviour. This includes that the specified minimum yield stress, F_y , of steel not exceed 350 MPa for these elements. It also specifies the use of probable yield stress, R_yF_y , not less than 460 MPa for HSS section and 385 MPa for other sections with R_y equal to 1.1. This ensures a proper hierarchy for yielding where the seismic load is based on the actual (probable) yield stress of the brace (CSA S16 2009).

In the CSA S16-2009 Standard Clause 27.1.9 was introduced which established specific protected zones where no discontinuity or any stress concentrations are allowed to be introduced through welding, cutting, or penetration. For the concentrically braced frame this is the brace element itself over its entire length as well as the connections to beams and columns including gusset plates. These are designated as protected zones since they are the regions where large inelastic strains are expected to occur. As well, inelastic rotational demands are placed on the connections. Any discontinuity in these elements can lead to premature fracture under cyclic inelastic response (CSA S16 2009).

pielaing - all sine its faulte to pay to its constrained to the brace elements. Car, Sto-2009

2.3.1 Moderate Ductility CBFs

Seismic design requirements for moderately ductile (MD) concentrically braced frames are outlined in Clause 27.5 of CSA S16-2009. This system is defined with an R_d of 3.0, and a R_o of 1.3. Tension-compression, tension-only, and chevron MD brace systems may be used, however, knee bracing and K-bracing are not allowed according to CSA S16-2009 due to the possibility of creating a plastic hinge in the column if one brace was to buckle. The specific requirements for these braces are outlined in Clauses 27.5.2 (CSA S16 2009).

CSA S16-2009 also establishes certain restrictions regarding the brace slenderness ratio, kL/r, which is limited to a maximum of 200. As the brace slenderness ratio, kL/r, is decreased the capacity of the brace to dissipate energy under cyclic inelastic loading is increased (CSA S16 2009, Tremblay et al. 2003).

As well, Clause 27.5.3.2 establishes specific width-to-thickness ratios in order to protect against cyclic local buckling which can lead to early fracture (CSA S16 2009).

In the MD system the principles of capacity design are introduced through the use of probable brace resistance to design the "protected elements". The probable tension resistance, probable compression resistance, and probable post-buckling compressive resistance of the brace are taken respectively as:

$$T_u = A_g R_v F_v$$
 [2-9]

$$C_{u} = \min \left\{ \begin{array}{c} A_{g} R_{y} F_{y} \\ 1.2 C_{r} / \phi \end{array} \right\}$$
[2-10]

$$C'_{u} = \min \begin{cases} 0.2A_{g}R_{y}F_{y} \\ C_{r}/\phi \end{cases}$$
[2-11]

In calculating the probable compression resistance and the probable post-buckling compressive resistance of the brace, C_r is calculated using R_yF_y . CSA S16-2009 prescribes the use of two loading conditions. The first is the compression braces' reaching their probable compression resistance and the second is the compression braces' reaching their probable post-buckling compressive resistance. Each of these cases is to be

2.3.1 Modernic frankly, Clift

Selemic design requirements for modernely dustile (MD) concentration braced transare sufficed in Charase 27.5 of CSA S16-2009. This system is defined with an P. of 1.6. and a R. of 1.3. The ion-conferencient, reasion-only, and chevron MD blace systems tan be used, however, long tweeting and K-brasing are not allowed according to CSA 816-2009 doe to the possibility of creating and K-brasing are not allowed according to CSA 816satelle. The specificity of creating a plantic hinge in the column if one brace wavesatelle. The specific requirements for these braces are outlined in Clauses 27.5.2 (CSA)

CSA S16-2009 also establishes contain restrictions regarding the brace slonderness rational for the brace state of the trace state is the brace state of the trace of the brace to discrete energy under cyclic inclusion loading is incorrect (CSA S16 2009 freeblay at al. 2003).

As well, Chause 27,5.3.2 centifishes speedfo width-to-thick acts ratios in order to proteagainst cyclic local fuchting which can lead to easy fracture (CSA S16 2009).

to the vary space his annarphism superior protocol as the manness of the probable tension probable brace naistance to design the "protocted distances". The probable tension resistance, probable compression estatucos and probable post-buckling compressive resistance of the brock are taken respectively as

de alexandres a the

C_==010 (J. 8C. 40)

a esteulating the protection compression estimates and the profeshie post-backling compressive resistance of the branc. C. is calculated using R.F., CSA 315-2009 reservations the use of two fooding complitions. The first is the compression braces' reach heir protectic compression and survatured the second is the compression braces' reacht combined with the tension braces' reaching their probable tension resistance (CSA S16 2009).

The non-dissipating elements of the frame (beam, columns, diaphragm and all connections) are designed for the worst case of gravity load and brace forces equal to the onset of simultaneous yielding in the tension and compression braces (either probable compression resistance or probable post-buckling compressive whichever produces the worst effect). CSA S16-2009 restricts the maximum design load for these non-dissipating elements to that determined using a storey shear based on $R_dR_o = 1.3$ (CSA S16 2009).

2.3.2 Limited Ductility CBFs

Seismic design requirements for limited ductile (LD) concentrically braced frames are outlined in Clause 27.6 of CSA S16-2009. This system is defined with an R_d of 2.0, and a R_o of 1.3. Detailing requirements are less stringent as compared to MD systems, with a reduced ability to dissipate energy through inelastic deformations. As in MD bracing systems tension-compression, tension-only, and chevron brace systems may be used, as well as knee bracing and K-bracing where the columns are designed for the induced bending and struts are provided. The specific requirements for these braces are outlined in Clause 27.6.2 (CSA S16 2009).

For LD braces, the restrictions regarding the brace slenderness ratio, kL/r, are less severe than for the MD system and slenderness is limited to a maximum of 300. The bracing width-to-thickness ratio requirements are also less severe as defined in Clause 27.6.3.2 since braces with kL/r greater than 200 are expected to have very limited inelastic compressive strains and there is less risk of cyclic local buckling (CSA S16 2009).

2.3.3 Conventional Construction CBFs

Seismic design requirements for conventional construction are outlined in Clause 27.11 of CSA S16-2009. This system is defined with an R_d of 1.5, and a R_o of 1.3. The conventional construction system incorporates the principles of capacity design indirectly without particular detailing requirements. It is based on the concept that inherent in current design and construction practise there is some capacity of the brace to dissipate energy through localized yielding and friction. Clause 27.11.1 specifies that for

combined with the tension braces' reaching their probable tension resistance (C a A 510

20003

The non-dissipating demons of the frame (issue, cohanne, diapinage and of connections) are designed for the worst case of gravity load and brace forces could to the orset of sime memory sociality in the least or and compression braces (either probable compression real surge or probable post-buckling compressive whichever produces the worst effect. C.S.A.Ste 2009 results the mechanic design load for these non-distipating elements to that determined halfs assures shear based on R.R. = 1.3 (CSA S16 2009).

THE LAND WE DESCRIPTION OF STATES

Seturate de sign Cueirranegis nor innited ducific (EF)) concentratily branch trances are cutificad in Charie 27.6 of CS, CS & 2000. This system is defined with an R₂ of 2.0, and a R₂ of 1.1. Detailing requirements are less strangtat on compared to MD systems, with a radiated ability to Bessionte energy timotyle industric deformations. As in MD bracing systems transformer invession, tensi to-only, and observations as systems may be used, as well as trace bracing and K-bracing where the columns are designed for the induced bending and series are provided. The specific measurements for these braces are outlined in Clause 27.6.2 (CSA S16 2003).

For LD braces, the resentations reporting the brace strategress rates [4] in the less save than for the MD syntem and should mean is limited to a maximum of 300. The bracing is within to this braces ratio requirements are also dealess severe as defined in Clause 27.6.3.2 since braces with \$1, in greater than 200 are expected to how yery limited inclastic compressive analystic is less risk of cyclic front much limit (CSA \$16 2009).

23.3 Conventional Construction CBR

Seismic dasign maniferments for committeed construction and onlined in Clause 27.19 of CSA S36-2000 This excern is desired only in K, of LS and a S, of L3. The can external construction restart incorrectors the miniples of expectly design indirectly without constructor demiting requestions it is based on the concept that inherent in current desires and construction paretics there is come expectly of the brace to dissipate entrent desires and construction paretics there is come expectly of the brace to dissipate entrent desires and construction paretics there is come expectly of the brace to dissipate entrent desires and construction paretics there is come expectly of the brace to dissipate $I_EF_aS_a(0.2)$ greater than 0.45, diaphragms and connections of primary framing members be designed such that the failure mode is ductile, or for gravity loads combined with a seismic load multiplied by R_d =1.50. These minimum requirements were established to avoid brittle failure in connections and promote energy dissipation in the brace (CSA S16 2009).

2.3.4 Inelastic Response of CBFs

CBF performance is governed by its cyclic axial load response. Initially under compressive load the brace behaves elastically and deforms axially until buckling, when the brace deflects transversely. This deflection causes the creation of moments in the brace, which when they equal the plastic moment of the braces create a plastic hinge. Under increased axial load and axial deformation the brace continues to deflect transversely which causes a decrease in axial resistance of the brace due to flexure-axial load interaction (moment at the midlength of the brace cannot surpass the plastic moment). The brace retains a residual axial and transverse deflection when unloaded. During the tension cycle which follows the brace behaves elastically and deforms axially. When reloaded in compression the residual transverse deflection causes a reduction in buckling capacity and the length of the elastic buckling plateau is reduced with each subsequent cycle. This hysteretic behaviour is highly dependent on the slenderness ratio of the braces (Bruneau et al. 1998). Brace buckled shapes are shown in Figure 8 from cyclic testing by Morrison (2012).

The quantification of a system's capacity for energy dissipation is measured by the area enclosed by its force vs. deformation hysteresis curve (see Figure 9). Braces with lower slenderness ratios have larger hysteresis curve areas, and therefore dissipate more energy than slender braces. As well braces with lower slenderness ratios have compression capacities which approach the tension capacity (Bruneau et al. 1998).

17

In r.S. (0.2) genere that the halfs, duplice make and connections of primary training measures be designed such that the halfs on the context is double, or for gravity leads combined with asismic had matiplied by Ra=1.50. These minimum requirements were established to avoid brittle follors in connections and promote energy dissipation in the brace (CSA S16 2009).

compressive instances was been as characterized and deforms axially until buckling, when the inace deficits the meet beam as characterize entropy the meetion of moments in the there weich when first applet the plants of moment of the braces create a plastic hinge there weich when first applet the plants of moment of the braces create a plastic hinge transversely official can be defer as in axial resistance of the brace due to floxure-axial toold interaction therein a defer as in axial resistance of the brace due to floxure-axial bood interaction therein a realized of the brace cannot surpass the plastic moments. The blace results a realized for the brace cannot surpass the plastic moments. The blace results a realized for the brace cannot surpass the plastic moments. The blace results a realized for the brace cannot surpass the plastic moments. The blace results a realized for the brace cannot surpass the plastic moments. The blace results a realized for the brace cannot surpass the plastic moments. The blace results a state that is a realized on the matter that is reduced with each and the cannot can be appleted to the track back of the state of the state and appleters in the first of the track back the brace of the state and the state quark of the brace of the track back of the state of the state of the state of the brace (thermal can be appleted by the track back of the state of the state of the state quark of the track back of the state of the brace (thermal can be appleted by the state of the state of the state of the state of the blace (the state of the brace (thermal can be appleted by the state of the state

The quantization of a system's equation for emerge inscirction is measured by the area enclosed by its date (a. datamation by structures curvesses Figure 9). Braces with fower alreadotices mater investing to the structures curve area, and therefore designts mare energy than element in the construction is attends curve areas, and therefore designts mare energy than element in the construction of the structure of the defines a minor has a compression '



Figure 8 - Various buckled shapes of cross braces during testing by Morrison (2012).



Figure 9 - Lateral force vs. displacement hysteretic performance of plain cross brace sample by Morrison (2012).

In tension-only systems energy dissipation is achieved by brace yielding and elongation. These systems are typically designed with braces having higher slenderness ratios than tension-compression systems, especially in older building where the slenderness ratio



often exceeded 300. The lateral stiffness of the frame is therefore governed mainly by the tension brace as the compression brace buckles under low axial load due to a higher slenderness ratio. As such, in the buckled configuration, these frames have little stiffness. Under cyclic loading the braces accumulate residual axial displacements as seen in the compression-tension systems. Frame stiffness is lost when there is zero frame displacement (Bruneau et al. 1998).

Brace ductility demand is measured by the ratio of maximum total deformation to the deformation at yield:

$$\mu = \delta / \delta_{\text{yield}} \qquad [2-12]$$

According to Tremblay (2002), the ductility demand ratio for CBFs with tensioncompression braces is around 2 or 3.

2.3.5 Failure Modes of CBFs

Energy dissipation in compression members is by inelastic bending after buckling, and in the straightening which follows after load reversal. After buckling, the capacity of a concentrically braced frame is mainly governed by its tension braces. The buckling of braces induces a rotational demand at the brace ends (CSA S16 2009).

During reversed cyclic loading, after brace buckling, slender braces pick up axial load quickly during straightening. This may cause brace damage or connection failure, due to an impact type of loading caused by this rapid increase in stiffness. Slender braces are characterized by a loss of axial compression stiffness, axial shortening, and loss of tangent stiffness and are dominated by failure due to inelastic buckling (Bruneau et al. 1998).

Stocky braces, with low slenderness ratio, exhibit a response controlled by yielding and local buckling. At the plastic hinge located a brace midlength, local buckling causes a loss of moment capacity and a loss in axial capacity. This leads to a reduced energy dissipation capacity (Bruneau et al. 1998).

often every attan "the second ender of the former is therefore governed matche by the tension very as the eventpressor basis back to tarder low axial load due to a higher stendement take to and his the resident configuration, those frames have little mitness theder evelo leading the times according resident axial displacements as seen in the coerder steries the times to make the time withing a lost when there is zero frame

Brace ductiliev derivald is measured by the carlo of maximum total distormation to U.e. . deformution a signifi

According to Treasility (2000). She ducidity denoted ratio for CBFs with tension-

1.3.5 Fallant Modes of Chile

Energy dissiftation in compression incrubers is by inclustic brading after buckling, and in the straightening which follows after load coversal. After buckling, the capacity of a componished by incred frame is mainly governed by its renden braces. The bookling of braces incluses a resubural demand at the brace collet(CSA S16 2009).

During revented Cyclic Loading, after brace buck ling, slotdar braces pickup axial load quickly during articlassing. This may earlie brace day use or connection failure, due to an impact type of loading enaned by this real (box use in utilisers, Sleader braces are characterized by a loss of sid 1 compression utilisers, establishertening, and less of tangent silform and are dominated by failure due to inclusive backling (Braneau et al. 1998)

Stacky base S, with low denderous min, subility a response controlled by yielding and hocal bort line. At the plastic triage trached a trace millioneth, local buckling causes a loss of moment explantly and a loss in rocal optimics. This leads to a reduced energy discipation exercise flatments and a 1008. Observed modes of failure in CBFs include, failure of the gross section of the brace, fracture of the net cross section of the brace (at the connection), or connection failure at the bolts or welds (Tremblay et al. 1996).

2.3.6 Connections

Connections in CBFs consist of gusset plates either welded or bolted to the frame's columns and beam. They are designed such that they are strong enough, while remaining elastic, that the brace can dissipate the required energy as per CSA-S16-09. Specific rules are outlined in CSA S16-09 for the case where the brace buckles in-the-plane or out-of-plane of the gusset. For in-the-plane buckling the connection must have a flexural strength equal to or greater than the nominal in-plane bending strength of the brace to prevent hinges forming in the connection. For out-of-plane buckling the connection the gusset must be detailed to permit a hinge line to form in the gusset. This is accomplished by leaving a distance equal to twice the gusset plate thickness between the brace and the nominal line of unrestrained bending as seen in Figure 10 (Bruneau et al. 1998, CSA-S16-09).



Figure 10 - Brace connection designed according to CSA S16-2009 Standard.

above at the pressor for the place the line inc. the connection must have a flexitual second repeater of the second of the contract on for out of plane bookling the connection the presses are the descent to permit a haugo line to form in the genera. This is accomplicated presses are the descent to permit a haugo line to form in the genera. This is accomplicated by forving a distance open to twice the gueset place thickness between the brace and the second filling of states open to twice the gueset place thickness between the brace and the second filling of states open to twice the gueset place thickness between the brace and the second filling of states are placed in the second of the brace and the

0.2

Non ductile limit states for brace connection failure include tension failure at the brace net section, and bolt shear failure. It has also been demonstrated that bolting geometry may affect ductility, as connections with larger bolt spacings have increased ductility (Castonguay and Tremblay 2010).

Connection design in CSA S16-65 was not based on the incorporation of any design or detailing requirement as prescribed by the capacity design principles of the current codes. The tension forces resulting from the static analysis of the braced frame would have been directly applied using a free body diagram for connection design. As well, it should be noted that connection design was based on an allowable stress approach.

2.4 Calculation of the Fundamental Period

In the 2010 NBCC the value of base shear required for design is related to the building's period of vibration for the static analysis case. If dynamic analysis is performed the base shear is still limited to a fundamental period calculated based on an empirical formula as a function of the building's height, h_n . For CBFs:

$$T_a \cong 0.025h_n$$
 or $T \cong 0.050h_n$ if verified by dynamic analysis [2-13]

Tremblay et al. (1996) showed that for one-storey buildings with flexible diaphragms the use of the NBCC period resulted in conservative designs and that the in-plane flexibility of the diaphragm should be accounted for in determining the building period. This was also shown in Tremblay & Rogers (2011) where it was demonstrated that the majority of one-storey structures had periods longer than the limit prescribed by the code of $2T_a \approx 0.050h_n$ if verified by dynamic analysis. As well, Lamarche et al. (2009) pointed out that use of the NBCC empirical equation would result in one period of vibration for a given building, where in fact, the stiffness of the structure would most likely vary in the two principal directions. Lamarche et al. (2009) also concluded that most single-storey braced frames had fundamental periods in between the limits of $0.025h_n$ and $0.050h_n$, and that the relationship between the spectral acceleration and these two limits is not linear.

Medhekar proposed a methodology based on the Rayleigh method, accounting for the influence of brace and diaphragm stiffness (Tremblay & Rogers 2011):

Non double hant suites for brace correction failure include tension failure at the brace are exclude, and both mean failure. It has also been demonstrated that bolting geometry, may affect ductifity, as connected with larger bolt spacings have increased ductifity (Cesconguey and Tree-May, 2010).

Commention design in CBA Silbers was not haved on the incorporation of any design or deniating requirement as prescribed by the canaely design principles of the current codes. The tendon forcessic alling them the amin analysis of the braced traine would have been directly applied using a free body disgram for councettem design. As well, it should be noted that connection design was based on an altowable stress approach.

1.4 Celetation of the Vencouncents Percent in the 2010 biBCC the value of base shear routired for design is related to the building's period of vibration for the same malvais size. If dynamic analysis is performed the base there is still limited to a functionental period calculated based on an empirical formula as a summine of the building's height, he for CBFr.

Ta = 0.025h, ec T = 0.050h, if verified by dynamic analysis

Transitas er al. (1996) showed that for one-many buildings with flexible dispinsons the iner of the MRCC period resulted in conservative devices and that the in-filme flexibility of the dispinson at the MRCC period resulted in conservative devices and that the in-film was also shown in Transity & Rogers (2011), obtain the in-second ball the majority of one dance stream and that the majority of an ender of TT.

Medhebut proposed a methodology based on the Rayleigh mathod, accounting for the influence of inace and displayant withouts (Tremblay & Rogers 2011).

$$T \cong 2\pi \sqrt{\frac{(K_{\rm B} + K_{\rm D})W}{gK_{\rm B}K_{\rm D}}}$$
[2-14]

Where:

$$\Delta_B = \frac{PL}{AE} \cos\theta \quad \text{and} \ K_B = \frac{1}{\Delta_B}$$
[2-15]

$$\Delta_D = \Delta_F + \Delta_S = \frac{5wL^4}{384EI} + \frac{wL^2}{8G'b} \text{ and } K_D = \frac{1}{\Delta_D}$$
 [2-16]

The stiffness of the vertical bracing, K_B , is based on the inverse of the lateral deformation of the vertical bracing, Δ_B . The in-plane stiffness of the diaphragm, K_D , is based on the inverse of the diaphragm deflection at midspan calculated by combing the shear and flexural in-plane deformations, $\Delta_D = \Delta_S + \Delta_F$. The diaphragm deflection is typically governed by the shear, rather than flexural deformations (Lamarche et al. 2009).

Lamarche et al. (2009) showed that flexible diaphragms have considerable effect on the dynamic response of single-storey braced frames. As well, they demonstrated the impact of non-structural components on the dynamic response of single-storey braced frames under low amplitude excitation.

2.5 Summary

Current seismic design philosophy has evolved since its first introduction into the NBCC to include design and detailing requirements which account for the inelastic response of the braces in the CBF system. It remains unclear, however, how CBFs designed within the framework of earlier codes perform, when subjected to evaluation according to current seismic design codes and standards.

Analysis of CBFs designed with codes where the braces were designed using the principle that they remained in the linearly elastic range, such as the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NBCC) and CSA-S16-65 is required in order to provide recommendations for seismic evaluation and rehabilitation requirements for such existing buildings for future building codes.



Where

 $\Delta_0 = \frac{\kappa_0}{\kappa_0} \cos \theta \quad \text{and} \ K_0 = \frac{1}{\delta_0}$

 $\Delta_0 = \Delta_0 + \Delta_2 = \frac{m_{L^2}}{m_{L^2}} + \frac{m_{L^2}}{m_{L^2}} \quad \text{and} \ K_0 = \frac{1}{\Delta_0} \ ,$

The suffices of the varient bracing, K_{0} is based on the inverse of the intermeterminate statistics of the intermeter in facts of the displacent. K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacent. K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacent transfer, the life in plane suffices of the displacent K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacent transfer. K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacent transfer. K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacent transfer is based on the inverse at the displacence of the displacence K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacence K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacence K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacence K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacence K_{0} is based on the inverse K_{0} is based on the displacence K_{0} is based on the inverse K_{0} is based on the inverse at the displacence K_{0} is based on the inverse K_{0} is based on the displacence K_{0} is the displac

Lemerche et al. (2000) abreved that Javible disployingmis have considerable effect on the dynamic resperite of single-stores braced frontes. As well, they demonstrated the impact of non-structural components on the dynamic risponse of single-storey braced frames i maler low amplitude oxolratical.

2.5 Summar

Correst setentic design and detailing requirements which necessis that inhomotion into the hard of to include design and detailing requirements which necestan for the inclusion response of the firmees in the CDF system. It remarks and then however, now CBFs designed within the framework of earlier codes perform. It neo cubicered to to abardon according to the framework of earlier codes and attracted.

Analysis of CBFs designed with order where in braces were designed using the principle that they remained in the Infective cluster range, such as the 1065 Mational, a Bailding Code of Canada (NHCC) and CSA-5 fo-of is required to order to provide recordering the recordering for each of Canada (NHCC) and CSA-5 fo-of is required to order to provide recordering to the formula for such as a start principle to the such as the formula for such as a start principle to the formula for such as a start principle to the such as a star

Chapter 3 - Design Review of Single-Storey Steel Buildings in Canada

3.1 Overview

Dimensioning of the structural elements for the buildings studied in the braced bays was based on the static calculations procedure. Design of a typical one-storey building was carried out according to the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and the CSA S16-1965 *Steel Structures for Buildings* Standard (CSA 1965) and using normal design procedures as would be common for a steel designer at the time. Selection tables as presented in the *Handbook of Steel Construction* first edition 1965 were used for selection of optimum beam and column sections. These selection tables were based on the design provisions of CSA S16-1965.

As presented in Table 1, a series of buildings with varying aspect ratios and heights was studied in order to account for a diverse period range and behaviour of one-storey braced frame buildings.

Area (m ²)		Aspect Ratio		L (m)	W (m)	# bays L	# bays W	Bay - L (m)	Bay - W (m)	H (m)
-	-	1H	1	24.5	24.5	4	4	6.124	6.124	4.00
A 600		2H	1.5	30.0	20.0	6	4	5.000	5.000	5.000
	600	3H	2	34.6	17.3	6	3	5.774	5.774	6.000
		4H	2.5	38.7	15.5	5	2	7.746	7.746	7.000
-		5H	1	42.4	42.4	6	6	7.071	7.071	5.000
в 1800		6H	1.5	52.0	34.6	6	4	8.660	8.660	6.000
	7H	2	60.0	30.0	8	4	7.500	7.500	7.000	
		8H	2.5	67.1	26.8	10	4	6.708	6.708	8.000
C 3000	9H	1	54.8	54.8	7	7	7.825	7.825	6.000	
		10H	1.5	67.1	44.7	9	6	7.454	7.454	7.000
	3000	11H	2	77.5	38.7	10	5	7.746	7.746	8.000
		12H	2.5	86.6	34.6	10	4	8.660	8.660	9.000
		13H	1	64.8	64.8	8	8	8.101	8.101	7.000
D 420		14H	1.5	79.4	52.9	9	6	8.819	8.819	8.000
	4200	15H	2	91.7	45.8	· 10	5	9.165	9.165	9.000
		16H	2.5	102.5	41.0	10	4	10.247	10.247	10.000

Table 1 - Dimensions of buildings analyzed in study.

Chainey 3 - Design Review of Sincle-Strivey Steel Buildings in Canada

Winner D.

Dimensioning of the structural elements for the buildings studied in the braces (coys was based on the strute calestations procedure. Design of a typical one-storey building was carned out according to the 1905 National Britising Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and a the CSA \$26-1965 Steel Tanctures for Buildings Standard (CSA 1965) and using normal design procedures 95 Would be common for a steal designer at the time. Selection tables the presented in the Printheorie of Savetraneous for standard (CSA 1965) and using normal design procedures 95 Would be common for a steal designer at the time. Selection tables according to the Printheorie of Savetraneous for stead designer at the time. Selection tables the selection of printing brane and columns accordings. These selection tables are presented in the Printheorie of Savetraneous for a steal designer at the time. Selection tables are presented in the Printheorie of Savetraneous for a steal designer at the time. Selection tables are presented in the Printheorie of Savetraneous for a steal designer at the time. Selection tables are presented in the Printheorie of Savetraneous for the stead on the selection restlations of CMA 215-1965.

As preastined in Table 1, a recise of buildings with varying aspect ratios and heights way studied in order to a count for a diverse period range and behaviour of ane-storey braced

sentenne omst

	1 May 10						



Figure 11 - Plan view of building type 7H as designed according to the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and the CSA S16-1965 Steel Structures for Buildings Standard (CSA 1965).


Figure 11 - Case same of features repression investiged interviewent that Statement (subjects) Code of Canada (AMC) Constraints and and press repression of the code of the



Figure 12 - Bracing elevation of building type 7H as designed according to the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and the CSA S16-1965 Steel Structures for Buildings Standard (CSA 1965).

Design of the building presented in Table 1 according to the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and the CSA S16-1965 *Steel Structures for Buildings* Standard (CSA 1965) is outlined in Section 3.2 and 3.3. Figure 11 and Figure 12 show the plan view and bracing elevation resulting from this dimensioning of the structural elements based on the static calculations procedure for building type 7H, which is representative of a medium-sized building in this study.

The approach that a designer would have used according to the current 2010 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 2010) and the CSA S16-2009 *Design of Steel Structures* Standard (CSA 2009) is outlined in Section 3.4 and 3.5.

25



Figure 1 - Martin Construction and The Profilings Annound of SA 1981.

Design of the buildong presented in Table Lanconting to the Public Mattonia Fundanty of Canada (NRCC 1965) and the CSA S16-1955 Steel Practares for Bigldings Standard (CSA 1965) is outlined to Sention 7.2 and 3.3. Figure 11 and Figure 12 show the planview and bracing elevation coatting from displace unsating of the sentential elements based on the static calculations procedure for building type 711, which is representative of the sentence is building to the sentence.

The hepposeb that a designer would bave used according to the content 2010 particular Building Code of Contesta (NECC 2010) and the CSA 816-2009 (Jurige of Seed Societures Standard (CSA 2000) is unlined to Section 2.4 and 3.5

3.2 1965 Building Loads

3.2.1 Dead Loads

A typical roof composition of 4 ply asphalt and gravel on steel deck with rigid foam was used. Allowances were made for suspended ceiling, ductwork and fire protection, as well as for the steel structure. Uniform dead loads are presented in Table 2.

Table 2 - Uniformly distributed dead loads on roof.

Roofing + steel deck	0.45
Suspended ceiling	0.10
Ductwork	0.25
Fire Protection	0.07
Steel inc. joists	0.25
Total Dead Load (kPa)	1.12

The weight of exterior walls was taken as 1.50 kPa.

3.2.2 Snow Loads

The roof snow load was based on Clause 4.1.3.7 through 4.1.3.10 of the 1965 National Building Code of Canada. The prescribed ground snow load of 2.16 kPa [45 psf] was reduced by the basic snow load coefficient, C_a , of 0.80 as per Clause 4.1.3.9 since the building is not assured to be exposed to wind on all four sides. As such the uniform design snow load used was 1.73 kPa [36 psf].

3.2.3 Seismic Loads

As per Chart 10 of the Supplement no. 1 to the 1965 National Building Code of Canada, Halifax is in earthquake intensity zone 2 which corresponds to moderate damage to buildings during a seismic event. Calculation of base shear is included from Clause 4.1.3.15 through 4.1.3.17 of the 1965 National Building Code of Canada.

Where W is the total weight of building, due to materials of construction incorporated in the building, the design load resulting from the use of the building for storage and the design load due to the weight of service equipment and machinery (NRCC 1965).

Mana scholing 2021

S.L.I Bead Loads

t bestaal meet composedian of a pip region's and gravel on second cack, with the protection, as well end, Allowances were muite for supervised celling, ductwork and fire protection, as well a first de stack another the stack approximation of all bands are presented in Table 2.

he weight of exactor walls was advanted in 1,50 kPa.

3.2.2 Strene Louist

The next start load with the the the of Chetro 4.1.3.7 through 4.1.2.10 of the two hardonin Ballding C ede of Camada. The presented grated grated grow load of 2.10 kPa [45 pst] was reduced by the bisidentow load coefficient. C, of 0.20 as per Chase 4.1.3.9 since the building to non-thermed to be exposed to wird on all four sides. As such the uniform delight show building (2.10 kPa [36 pst]

3.7.3. Science Lands

As refer than 10 or the Supplement part in 1 to the 1965 Multimet Building Code of Consult, Halifilm is in such quilt: Multiple work 2 which core periods to moderate damage to building difficure theory and smith events. C. (Recelution of these drear is meloded from Clause at 1.1.1.5 theory in 11 of the 1965 Multimed Dollaring Code of Canada

Where W is the total weight of bouiding, due to materials of construction meeriorated in the ballding, the design load resulting from the use of the ballding for nonge and the design load resulting from the use of the ballding for nonge and the design load to be a second of the ballding for nonge and the design load result of a resi e equipment and mechanics (FRCC 1963).

For the one storey buildings considered in this study, there are no floors above grade so the building weight, W, is considered as the weight of the roof and the upper portion of exterior walls:

$$W = q_{DL,roof} \cdot A_{roof} + q_{DL,walls} \cdot P_{roof} \cdot (0.5 h_{roof})$$
[3-2]

where:

 $q_{DL,roof}$ = uniform dead load of the roof as outlined in Section 3.2.1;

 A_{roof} = total area of the roof for each of the typical parametric buildings defined in Table 1;

 $q_{DL,walls}$ = dead load of the exterior walls as defined in Section 3.2.1;

 P_{roof} = total perimeter of the roof for each of the typical parametric buildings defined in Table 1;

 h_{roof} = total height of the roof for each of the typical parametric buildings defined in Table 1.

Parameter K is defined in Clause 4.1.3.15(3) of the 1965 National Building Code of Canada as:

$$K = R \cdot C \cdot I \cdot F \cdot S$$

[3-3]

where:

R = 2 for earthquake intensity zone;

C = 1.25 for normal construction;

I = 1.0 for normal importance;

F = 1.0 for normal foundation conditions;

S = 0.025 for a one -storey building.

For the one story wouldings considered in this study, later his no hours soor process of the mainting weight. We is considered as the weight of the roof and the upper participal of creative weight.

99

For a one-storey building the horizontal shear at the roof level is equal to the base shear, V, and overturning moment is equal to:

$$M = V \cdot h_{roof}$$
 [3-4]

3.2.4 Wind Loads

As per Chart 8 of the Supplement no. 1 to the 1965 National Building Code of Canada, Halifax has a wind gust speed, G, of 90 mph. The velocity pressure, P, is defined as:

$$P = C \cdot G^2 = 1.05 \text{ kPa} [21.87 \text{ psf}]$$
[3-5]

Where C is a constant dependent on air temperature and atmospheric pressure taken as 0.0027 as suggested in Supplement no. 1 (NRCC 1965).

Calculation of wind pressure is included from Clause 4.1.3.11 through 4.1.3.13 of the 1965 National Building Code of Canada.

$$F = P \cdot C_h \cdot C_p \cdot A$$
[3-6]

For one storey buildings with heights ranging from 4m to 10m [13.12ft to 32.8ft] the coefficient with respect to variation in height, C_h , is 1.00 as per Table 4.1.3.D. The pressure factor, C_p , is 0.85 (NRCC 1965).

For a one-storey building the horizontal shear at the roof level is calculated using an area equal to one half the height multiplied by the width or length of the building, depending on the wind direction under consideration.

3.2.5 Load Combinations

As per the 1965 National Building Code of Canada the load combinations used for dimensioning of the typical design buildings are presented in Table 3.

Table 3 - Load combinations (NRCC 1965).

1. 1.0 DL + 1.0 SL	
2a. 1.0 DL + 1.0 WL	
2b. 1.0 DL + 1.0 EL	
3a. 0.75 (DL + SL + WL)	1
3b. 0.75 (DL + SL + EL)	

For a otherstorey building the horizontal shear at the root level is equal to the oase snear,

and overluming montal is equal for a P and

abres, Bibniel . A.L.P

As per Order 5 of the supplement no. 1 to the 1965 National Building Code of Canada, tailfar has a wind gus speed. G. of 90 mph. The velocity pressure, P, is defined as:

 $P = 6 - 6^2 = 1.05 \text{ km} [21.87 \text{ pst}]$

Where C is a constant de conferrent on air temporature and atmospheric pressure taken as anosy accimented in Strephenent op. 1 (NRCC 1965).

Calculation of wind pressure is included from Clause 4.1.3.11 through 4.1.3.13 of the

A-2-2-9-9=9

For one storey holdings with heights maging from 4m to 10m [13,120 to 32.80] the coefficient with respect to variation indiciple, C_{00} is 1.00 to per Table 4,1.3.D. The measure factor, C_{00} is 0.85 (SPRCC 1965).

For a one-storey huilding the horizental shear at the cost level is calculated using an area equal to one half the height multiplied by the width of length of the huilding, depending on the wind direction under consideration.

3.7.5 Load Compliantions

As per the Pass National Building Code of Canada the forth combinations used f dimensioning of the typical design buildings are presented in Fuble 1.

3.3 Design of Braced Bay According to 1965 CSA-S16 Standard

3.3.1 Selection of Braces

A tension only braced frame design using single angles was selected as was typical of a 1965 building design for one storey buildings. A307 bolts were used in order to determine typical connection sizes and the appropriate net area of the section. Tension resistance was calculated as specified in S16-1965 Clause 16.3.1 as 0.60F_y with a maximum of 0.50 times the specified minimum tensile strength:

$$T_{r} = \min \begin{cases} 0.60 + \frac{1}{3} (0.60) = 0.80 A_{n} F_{y} \\ 0.50 + \frac{1}{3} (0.50) = 0.67 A_{n} F_{u} \end{cases}$$
[3-7]

Net area was calculated considering bolted connections and taking into account the product of thickness and net width, calculated normal to the axis of the member, as specified in S16-1965 Clause 15.2. One inch bolts were assumed with a hole size 1/16 in larger, as specified in S16-1965 Clause 15.2. The width of the connected leg of angle was dimensioned in order to accommodate the bolted connection in either a single or double row of bolts as per Figure 13.



1 President for According to 1965 USA-516 Stanuaru

3.3.1 Sciection of Eraces

A teneriou only braced frame design using single angles was selected as was typical of a 1965 building design for one storey buildings. A 307 bolts were used in order to detaration typical corposition sizes and the appropriate net area of the section. Tension resistance was determined as specified in \$16-1965 Clause 16.1.1 as 0.600, with a maximum of 0.50 times the specified minimum tensile strongth.

Net area was offentated or addeting boles! connections and taking into account the product of thickness and bet width, extendated non-cal to the axis of the member, as appeatied in S16-1965 Chase 15.2. One meh bolts where assumed with a hole size 1/16 in larger, as specified in S16-1965 Chase 15.2. The width of the connected leg of angle was a dimendented in order to account the boltes the bolted correction in either a single or bolte to bolte the bolted correction in either a single or bolte to bolte the bolted correction in either a single or bolted counter the bolted correction in either a single or bolted counter the bolted correction in either a single or bolted counter the bolted correction in either a single or bolted counter the b



db = Diameter of Bolt

Figure 13 - Layout of typical connections, based on one row of bolts or two, assumed in dimensioning of bracing angles to account for width of leg required to permit bolting.

The tension in the brace considered for member selection was based on the value of the horizontal shear at the roof level from the maximum of the wind and seismic loads from the 1965 code calculations, as well as the braced bay configuration (angle of brace). Since tension only bracing was considered the limited compressive capacity of the brace is neglected in the selection process.

Satisfying the required slenderness ratio or bolted connection geometry affected selection of brace section in 6 out of 16 of the buildings studied.

3.3.2 Selection of Columns

Column design for braced bays was based on gravity loads as per load combinations described in Section 3.2.5 and the vertical component of the compression/tension load based on maximum horizontal shear at the roof level. Lateral wind loading out-of plane was also considered. Selection of columns was done using column selection tables as presented in the *Handbook of Steel Construction* first edition 1965 as was common design



neglected in the selection process

Satisfying the required standeness ratio or bolted consection prometry attented selection of brace arction in 6 vol. of the buildings studied.

1.1.2 Selection of Columns

Column design for braced beys was transf on provity touls as per least combinations described in Section 3.255 and the vertical compression wind the compression/amaion head based on maximum horizontal shear at the coal level. Lateral wind fonding out-of plane year also consulated between or columns was done to tag column velociton tables as measured in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed that the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed in the flam/hood of Street Construction that column designed the street column designed

practise. The selection tables are based on the effective length, kL, with respect to the least radius of gyration and in accordance with Clause 16.3.2 of S16-1965.

For
$$f_a/F_a \le 0.15$$
: $\frac{f_a}{F_a} + \frac{f_b}{F_b} \le 1.0$ [3-8]

and for
$$f_a/F_a > 0.15$$
: $\frac{f_a}{F_a} + \frac{f_b}{F_b(f_a/F_e')} \le 1.0$ [3-9]

Where F_a is a function of the least radius of gyration:

For
$$\frac{KL}{r} \leq C_0$$
 $F_a = 0.60 F_y$ [3-10]

For
$$C_0 < \frac{KL}{r} \le C_p$$
 $F_a = 0.60 F_y \cdot m \left(\frac{KL}{r} \cdot C_o\right)$ [3-11]

For
$$\frac{KL}{r} > C_p$$
 $F_a = \frac{149,000}{\left(\frac{KL}{r}\right)^2}$ [3-12]

Where
$$C_o = \begin{cases} 20 \text{ for } F_y \le 50 \\ \left(30 - \frac{F_y}{5}\right) \text{ for } F_y > 50 \end{cases}$$
 [3-13]

And
$$C_p = \frac{535}{\sqrt{F_y - 13}}$$
 [3-14]

$$m = \frac{6.77 + 0.079F_y}{C_p - C_o}$$
[3-15]

3.3.3 Selection of Beams

Beam design for braced bays was based on gravity loads as per the load combinations described in Section 3.2.5. Axial loads due to the effect of the beam acting as a chord or collector due to horizontal shear at the roof level was not considered as it was not common design practise in 1965. Selection of beams was done using selection tables as presented in the *Handbook of Steel Construction* first edition 1965 as was common design practise. The selection tables are based on allowable moment resistance calculated and in accordance with Clause 16.3.4 of S16-1965 based on:

$$\frac{f_b}{F_b} \le 1.0 \tag{3-16}$$

practise. The selectricia tables are based on the effective length, kL, with respect to the

For 6.1.5. 1 + 1 51.0

and for $t_{\rm eff} > 0.15$ $\frac{t_{\rm eff}}{r_{\rm eff}} + \frac{t_{\rm eff}}{r_{\rm eff} r_{\rm eff}} \le 1.0$ [3-9]

Vhore F, is a function of the lenst redained to the

Im#sec. (1=0.60F)

Where $C_0 = \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 20 & \text{for } F_y \le 50 \\ (30 \cdot \frac{1}{5}) & \text{for } F_y > 50 \end{array} \right\}$ (3-1)

And Contraction of the second second

n= crysuorus CrC

3.1.5 Selection of Bounds.

Beam design for broad buys was itseed on anorth found as per the four containers, described in Section 3.2.5. Asial for its due to fur differ of the beam acting as a chord of collector due to horizontal show an thereof level was not considered as it was not contain design processes in 1965. Schedulantel beams was done using selection tables as presented to the Attendence of Street Course, then that erition 1965 as was common design presented to the Attendence of Street Course, then that erition 1965 as was common design presented to the Attendence to Street Course, then that erition 1965 as was common design presented to the Attendence to Street Course, then the trainers to a course of the state of the selection tables are based on allocated and in F_b is dependent on the minimum of the capacity in the tension flange F_{bt} , versus the compression flange, F_{bc} . For compact I-Type sections according to Clause 16.3.4.1 of S16-1965:

$$F_{bt} = 0.66F_y$$
 [3-17]

$$F_{bc} = \max \begin{cases} \min\left(\frac{12,000 A_{fc}}{Ld} \text{ and } 0.66F_{y}\right) \\ \min\left(\frac{0.66F_{y}\left(1.18 - 0.00091\sqrt{F_{y}} \cdot \frac{L}{r}\right)}{\min\left(0.66F_{y} \text{ and } \frac{149,000}{(L/r)^{2}}\right)}\right) \end{cases}$$
[3-18]

For non-compact I-Type sections according to Clause 16.3.4.4 of S16-1965:

$$F_{bt} = 0.60 F_{y}$$
 [3-19]

$$F_{bc} = \max \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \min\left(\frac{12,000 \ A_{fc}}{Ld} \ \text{and} \ 0.60 F_{y}\right) \\ , \\ \min\left(\begin{array}{c} 0.60 F_{y} \left(1.30 - 0.0010 \sqrt{F_{y}} \cdot \frac{L}{r}\right) \\ \min\left(0.60 F_{y} \ \text{and} \ \frac{149,000}{(L/r)^{2}}\right) \end{array} \right\}$$
[3-20]

The beam sections chosen were always those of least weight as presented in bold in the beam selection tables.

3.3.4 Selection of Roof Deck/Diaphragm

The roof framing system considered consisted of open-web steel joists supported on Gerber beams, as was common practise in the 1960s. Perimeter members consisted of simply supported beams.

The roof deck thickness was based on providing an adequate capacity to resist gravity loads as per load combinations in the 1965 NBCC described in Section 3.2.5. A typical deck was chosen as was common in building design in the 1960s: 22 gauge (0.76 mm thick) – 38 mm deep deck with ribs at 914mm and 6-152 mm flutes. Cold-formed steel from ASTM A 653M SS Grade 230 was considered with a nominal yield strength of $F_y =$ 230 MPa and tensile stress of $F_u =$ 310 MPa. For a roof deck with a triple span this deck



The heres sections chosen were sivery strose of least weight as presented in bold in the

A. Selection of food Sector Maphragan

The real family system considered constrait of open and plats supported on Signing bases as was contrain policies in the 1960s. Fatig for mandars consisted and a support of the support of the second state of the second state

The word deck thickness was based or providing on adaption organity to realist providy banks in product directions was based or providing to and and an information 22.5. A twister dock, was observe as well communities in culturing the light in the Poster 22 property (0.76 and the dock was observe as well observe and the trans and 6-152 mm flutes. Cold-Roment star the dock was haven as well communities and the cold mm flutes. Cold-Roment star from AS124 A 55304 (55 Grade 230 s. 5 considered with a normanal yield successible of F can be used for joist spacing's up to 2250 mm considering the dead and snow loads as previously defined in Sections 3.2.1 and 3.2.2. The fastener pattern chosen was a button punch side-lap at either 600 mm or 300 mm and 19mm welds on supports at 300 mm or 150 mm (pattern 914/4 or 914/7). The various building configurations as outlined in Table 1 had joist spacings that varied from 1.667 m to 2.025 m depending on the bay size, as shown in Table 4.

Building type	Bay size (m)	Joist spacing (m)
1H	6.124	2.041
2H	5	1.667
3H	5.774	1.925
4H	7.746	1.937
5H	7.071	1.768
6H	8.66	1.732
7H	7.5	1.875
8H	6.708	1.677
9H	7.825	1.956
10H	7.454	1.864
11H	7.746	1.937
12H	8.66	1.732
13H	8.101	2.025
14H	8.819	1.764
15H	9.165	1.833
16H	10.247	1.708

Table 4 - Joist spacing used for each design building for diaphragm design.

The fastener pattern was taken as uniform over each building's length. The strength and stiffness of the diaphragm were determined using the SDI diaphragm catalog published by the Canadian Sheet Steel Building Institute (CSSBI 2006) as presented in Table 5.

For diaphragm stiffness, G', less than 2.5 kN/mm the roof can be considered as flexible, whereas for G' between 2.5 kN/mm and 17.5 kN/mm they act more as semiflexible diaphragms (Tremblay et al. 1996).

can be used for initial sparing's up to 2150 mm considering the dead and show toate to previously defined in Sections 3.2.1 and 3.222. The fratener pattern chosen was a button punch side-lap at either 600 mm or 300 mm and 19mm welds on supports at 300 mm or 150 mm (parten 91444 or 91407). The variant building configurations as outlined in Table 1 and jetst sparings that varied from 4 667 m to 2.025 m depending on the bay size

a speak an arbitraria and handrar and shares in the state of the state

The fusioner pattern was been as sufficien over each halidage's length. The strength and millions of the displaceury wate determined using the SDF displaceury catalog published by the Canadian Sheer Suid Building fordame (CSBR 2006) as presented in Table 5.

For disployed stillings (c), less than 2.5 kittern the root can be considered as flexible aborens for C. between 2.5 kittern and 17.5 kittern they not more as a mither the dimbership of mathematics of mathematics of the second 1.9 kittern and 17.5 kittern and 1

Building type v _f max deck (N/		Sidelap spacing (mm)	Support fixation pattern	$v_R (N/mm)$	G' (10 ³ N/mm)	
IH	1.2	600	36/4	3.68	2.86	
2H	1.7	600	36/4	4.37	2.61	
3H	2.7	600	36/4	3.85	2.78	
4H	3.9	300	36/4	4.63	2.79	
5H	2.0	600	36/4	4.16	2.68	
6H	2.5	600	36/4	4.24	2.65	
7H	3.1	600	36/4	3.95	2.75	
8H	H 4.5	300	36/4	5.15	2.62	
9H	2.5	600	36/4	3.79	2.80	
10H	3.2	600	36/4	3.97	2.74	
11H	3.8	300	36/4	4.43	2.86	
12H	5.0	600	36/7	5.83	9.25	
13H	2.9	600	36/4	3.70	2.85	
14H	3.7	600	36/4	4.17	2.68	
15H	4.5	300	36/4	4.83	2.72	
16H	5.6	600	36/7	5.91	9.26	

Table 5 - Strength and stiffness of the diaphragm from SDI diaphragm catalog published by the Canadian Sheet Steel Building Institute (CSSBI).

3.4 2010 Building Loads

3.4.1 Dead Loads

Dead loads used in 1965 design as per Section 3.2.1 would be the same as those taken for a current design approach.

3.4.2 Snow Loads

The National Building Code of Canada 2010 prescribed snow loads are larger than those specified in the 1965 building code for Halifax. The roof snow load is currently based on Clause 4.1.6 of the National Building Code of Canada.

$$S = I_{S} \left[S_{S} (C_{b} \cdot C_{w} \cdot C_{S} \cdot C_{a}) + S_{r} \right]$$
[3-21]

where:

 I_s = the importance factor for snow load taken as 1.0 for normal category buildings from Table 4.1.6.2;

Normal State	
Mart Mart 117 241 8 2 <td< th=""><th></th></td<>	
11 010 111 2.61 7.62 7.8 6 57 60 50.4 3.62 7.8 10 10 50.4 3.62 7.8 2.70 10 10 50.4 3.62 7.8 2.70 10 10 50.4 3.64 3.63 2.65 10 50.4 3.04 5.65 2.65 2.65 10 50.4 3.04 5.75 2.65 2.65 10 5.64 5.64 5.65 2.65 2.65 10 5.64 5.64 5.65 2.65 2.65 10 5.64 5.64 5.65 2.65 2.65 10 5.64 5.64 5.75 2.65 2.65 10 5.64 5.75 5.65 2.65 2.65 10 5.64 5.75 5.65 2.65 2.65 10 5.64 5.76 5.76 5.76	
8 7 800 300 300 300 300 10 100 100 300	
304 304 4.63 2.79 20 304 4.63 2.65 20 304 4.63 2.65 21 6.6 304 4.16 2.65 21 6.6 304 6.24 2.65 21 6.6 304 6.24 2.65 21 7.00 304 5.15 2.65 22 7.00 304 5.15 2.65 23 6.0 3.04 5.15 2.65 24 7.00 3.04 3.07 2.74 25 6.0 3.04 3.07 3.07 25 6.0 3.04 3.07 3.07 25 6.0 3.04 3.07 3.07 26 7.0 3.04 3.07 3.07 26 7.00 3.04 3.07 3.07 26 7.00 3.04 3.07 3.07 26 7.00 3.04 3.07 <td></td>	
10 000 304 4.10 161 11 000 304 6.24 2.65 11 000 304 6.24 2.65 11 001 305 2.05 2.65 11 101 305 2.75 2.65 12 0.01 304 5.12 2.02 14 3.04 3.07 3.05 2.75 15 0.01 3.04 3.07 3.07 15 0.01 3.04 3.07 3.07 16 0.01 3.04 3.07 3.07 16 0.01 3.04 3.07 3.07 16 0.01 3.04 3.07 3.07 16 0.01 3.07 3.03 3.07 16 0.01 3.07 3.03 3.07 17 0.01 3.07 3.03 3.07 18 0.01 3.07 3.03 3.07 19<	
2.6 3.64 6.24 2.65 1 2.6 3.04 6.34 2.65 1 2.6 3.04 3.05 2.75 1 2.6 3.05 2.65 2.65 1 2.6 3.05 2.65 2.65 1 2.6 3.05 2.65 2.65 1 2.6 3.05 2.65 2.65 1 3.64 3.04 3.05 2.65 1 3.64 3.04 3.05 2.74 1 3.64 3.04 3.04 3.04 1 3.64 3.04 3.04 3.04 1 3.04 3.04 3.04 3.05 1 3.04 3.04 3.05 3.25	
1 201 202 218 1 101 104 5.15 2.02 1 101 104 5.15 2.02 1 101 104 5.15 2.02 1 104 104 5.15 2.02 1 104 104 5.17 1.00 1 104 104 1.01 1.00 1 104 1.01 1.01 1.01 1 101 1.01 1.01 1.01 1 101 1.01 1.01 1.01 1 101 1.01 1.01 1.01 1 101 1.01 1.01 1.01	
43 701 164 5.25 2.62 43 701 164 5.25 2.62 43 701 2.04 3.07 2.64 43 700 2.64 3.07 2.64 43 7.00 2.64 4.63 2.74 43 7.00 2.64 4.63 2.64 43 7.00 2.64 4.63 2.64 43 7.00 2.64 4.63 2.64	
43 64 180 180 45 640 364 437 180 45 640 364 434 24 45 640 364 434 24 46 367 367 367 254 46 467 367 367 365 40 367 367 383 9.25	
4: 6:0 5:4 2:74 2:74 4: 7:0 34/4 4/3 250 4: 7:0 34/4 4/3 250 4:0 600 34/4 5,63 9,25 4:0 600 34/4 2,63 9,25	

white 5 - Sterredt, and all first of the duplicant in the Stat of addresses during problemed by the Capadian Sheet State Gallering

a. 2010 Rubling Loads

s.d.i Dend Loads

Dead loads used in 1965 design as put Section 3.2.1 would be the same as these taken for

tan Same Lands

The National Building Code of Change 2010 prescribed snow loads are larger than those specificat in the 1965 building code for Halifax. The roof snow load is currantly based on Clause 4.1.6 of the National Publicing Code of Complete

L - the importance factor for most four total as 1 of for normal category buildings from

able 4.1.6.2.

 S_s = the prescribed 1-in-50 year ground snow load from Appendix C - Tables of climatic information [1.90 kPa];

 C_b = basic roof snow load factor based on characteristic length of the roof, l_c , for large roofs where w is the width of the building and l is the length;

$$l_c = 2w \cdot (w^2/l)$$
 [3-22]

if
$$l_c \ge 70$$
 m and $C_w = 1.0$: $C_b = 1.0 \cdot (30/l_c)^2$ [3-23]

 C_w = wind exposure factor taken as 1.0 for sheltered locations;

 C_s =slope factor taken as 1.0 for flat roof;

 C_a = shape factor taken as 1.0 for flat roof with no sources of accumulation;

 S_r = the prescribed 1-in-50 year associated rain load from Appendix C - Tables of climatic information [0.60 kPa].

Table 6 - Snow loads as calculated per Clause 4.1.6 of the National Building Code of Canada 2010.

Building type	L (m)	W (m)	l _c (m)	Cb	S (kPa)
1H	24.5	24.5	25	0.80	2.12
2H	30	20	27	0.80	2.12
3H	34.6	17.3	26	0.80	2.12
4H	38.7	15.5	25	0.80	2.12
5H	42.4	42.4	42	0.80	2.12
6H	52	34.6	46	0.80	2.12
7H	60	30	45	0.80	2.12
8H	67.1	26.8	43	0.80	2.12
9H	54.8	54.8	55	0.80	2.12
10H	67.1	44.7	60	0.80	2.12
11H	77.5	38.7	58	0.80	2.12
12H	86.6	34.6	55	0.80	2.12
13H	64.8	64.8	65	0.80	2.12
14H	79.4	52.9	71	0.82	2.16
15H	91.7	45.8	69	0.80	2.12
16H	102.5	41	66	0.80	2.12

from Table 4.1.6.3

The 1965 snow load was constant for all buildings types at 1.73 kPa. Table 6 outlines the snow loads for each building configuration as per the National Building Code of Canada 2010. In general, the buildings have characteristic lengths lower than 70m, so the uniform snow load is 2.12 kPa for most of the layouts. This represents, however, an increase of 22.5% in snow loading prescribed by the National Building Code of Canada from 1965 to 2010.

3.4.3 Seismic Loads

The National Building Code of Canada 2010 prescribed earthquake loads using the equivalent static force procedure are currently based on Clause 4.1.8. The Design Base Shear is calculated as follows:

$$V=S(T_a)W\frac{M_v I_E}{R_d R_o}$$
[3-24]

With
$$V_{min} = S(2.0)W \frac{M_v I_E}{R_d R_o}$$
 [3-25]

And for
$$R_d \ge 1.5 V_{max} = \frac{2}{3} S(0.2) W \frac{I_E}{R_d R_o}$$
 [3-26]

where:

 $S(T_a)$ = the spectral acceleration at the fundamental building period;

 T_a = the fundamental lateral period of the building [s]. For braced frame: $T_a = 0.025h_n$ or $T_a = 0.050h_n$ if verified by dynamic analysis;

W = total weight of the structure [kN], and includes the dead load (including partitions at 0.5 kPa), 25% of the design snow load, 60% of storage live loads, and full contents of any tanks;

 M_v = higher mode participation factor – For Halifax ($S_a (0.2)/S_a (2.0) = 12.1$) and braced frame M_v is 1.0 for $T_a \le 1.0$ and 1.5 for $T_a \ge 2.0$ with linear interpolation for values in between;

 I_E = the importance factor for earthquake load taken as 1.0 for normal category buildings from Table 4.1.6.2;

The 1965 arow heef were contained for all buildings types in 1.73 area 1 and 0 Gunda arow leads for each building configuration as per the National Building Code of Canada 2010. In general, the buildings have characteristic lengths lower than 70m, so the uniferd arow load to 2.12 LCs for most of the layouts. This represents, however, an increase of 22.5% in suppr loading prescribed by the National Building Code of Canada from 1965 to

3.4.3 Seismic Louds

The National Building Code of Canada 2010 prescribed carinquate loads using the equivalent static force procedure are currently based on Clause 4.1.8. The Design Base-

Totorty

SIT.) = the spectral solution in the fundamental contains period. T₂ = the fundamental intend period of the bailding [s]: For braced frame, $T_{c} = 0.025h_{n}$

W - what weight of the squeture [[N]], and includes the deal load (including partitions at 0.5][Pa], 25% of the design know loads dolla of storage live loads, and full contents of any

M. = higher more participation factor - for Heiling (S. (0.2)/S. (2.0) -12.1) and braced frame. M. is 1.0 for T. S. (0.0 and 1. S. (0.0 for T. S. (0.0 and 1. S. (0.0 for the second participation for values in between

Is a the importance factor for emittentic load taken as 1.0 for normal category buildings

 R_d = ductility-related force modification factor, taken as 1.5 for conventional steel construction;

 R_o = overstrength-related force modification factor, taken as 1.3 for conventional steel construction.

In general, although dead loads are constant, the weight to consider in seismic design, W, is greater for all building types according to the National Building Code of Canada 2010 due to the inclusion of 25% of the design snow load in the current design practise. No snow load is specified in W, as per the 1965 NBCC.

3.4.4 Wind Loads

The National Building Code of Canada 2010 prescribed wind loads are currently based on Clause 4.1.7. External wind pressure, p, is calculated as follows:

$$p = I_{w} \cdot q \cdot C_{e} \cdot C_{g} \cdot C_{p}$$
[3-27]

where:

 I_w = the importance factor for wind load taken as 1.0 for normal category buildings from Table 4.1.6.2;

q = the prescribed 1-in-50 year wind load from NBCC 2010 Appendix C - tables of climatic information [0.40 kPa];

 $C_e = exposure factor, taken as:$

$$C_e = (h_n / 10)^{0.2}$$
 [3-28]

 C_g and C_p = gust effect factor and external pressure coefficient respectively, taken from Figure I-7 of National Building Code Commentary for low rise buildings with $h_n \le 20$ m.

Table 7 outlines the wind loads for each building configuration as per the National Building Code of Canada 2010.

 R_{o} = over transitioned at a force modification factor, taken as 1.3 for conventional such contraction.

In gineral elificação dese tondo nos constant, the weight to consider in seismic design, W. is creater for all building types actording to the National Building Code of Canada 2010 due to the inclusion of 25% of the design snow tond in the current design practise. No

The Matternal Building Code of Canada 2010 pressibed wind loads are currently based on Clause 4.1.7. Excernal wind pressure, p. is calculated as follows:

i – the importance factor for which itsel falsen as 1.0 for normal category buildings from able 4.1.6.2;

q = the prescribed 1-in-50 year wind their from NBC C 2010 Appendix C - tables of

fan insint, toron onreogra

C, and C, = gust effect former and external presence coefficient respectively, taken from Figure (-) of Mathemat Bailding C ade Commentary for low rise buildings with b. < 20 r Table 7 outhres the wind leady for each huilding or signartico as per the Matimut.

Building type	L (m)	W (m)	H (m)	Ce	End-zone z (m)	Ps end zone (kPa)	Ps mid zone (kPa)	V in L (kN)	V in W (kN)
IH	24.5	24.5	4	0.83	1.60	0.65	0.43	45	45
2H	30	20	5	0.87	2.00	0.68	0.45	72	50
3H	34.6	17.3	6	0.90	1.73	0.70	0.47	102	54
4H	38.7	15.5	7	0.93	1.55	0.73	0.48	136	58
5H	42.4	42.4	5	0.87	2.00	0.68	0.45	100	100
6H	52	34.6	6	0.90	2.40	0.70	0.47	153	104
7H	60	30	7	0.93	2.80	0.73	0.48	213	111
8H	67.1	26.8	8	0.96	2.68	0.75	0.50	278	117
9H	54.8	54.8	6	0.90	2.40	0.70	0.47	161	161
10H	67.1	44.7	7	0.93	2.80	0.73	0.48	237	161
11H	77.5	38.7	8	0.96	3.20	0.75	0.50	321	167
12H	86.6	34.6	9	0.98	3.46	0.76	0.51	413	174
13H	64.8	64.8	7	0.93	2.80	0.73	0.48	229	229
14H	79.4	52.9	8	0.96	3.20	0.75	0.50	329	223
15H	91.7	45.8	9	0.98	3.60	0.76	0.51	437	226
16H	102.5	41	10	1.00	4.00	0.78	0.52	554	234

Table 7 - Wind loads as calculated per Clause 4.1.7 of the National Building Code of Canada 2010.

3.4.5 Load Combinations

As per the 2010 National Building Code of Canada the load combinations are presented in Table 8. Unlike the 1965 code, the 2010 combinations are based on factored loading to be used in conjunction with limit states design.

1

Table 8 - Load combinations (NRCC 2010).

NBCC 2010 Load Combinations				
	Principle Loads	Companion Loads		
1	1.4D			
2	(1.25D or 0.9D) + 1.5L	0.5S or 0.4W		
3	(1.25D or 0.9D) + 1.5S	0.5L or 0.4W		
4	(1.25D or 0.9D) + 1.4W	0.5L or 0.5S		
5	1.0D + 1.0E	0.5L + 0.25S		

	1. 54.0				

Table 7- Ment was in a constant or Group 417 wilds. Februari (Incomp Cale of Careco 2014) a constant of State

1.4.5 Load Combinations

As per the 2010 Matrodie Unithing Code of Consta the Jond combinations are presented in Table 3. Unithe the 1965 code: the 2010 colubinations are based on factored loading to

86

3.5 Design of Braced Bay According to 2009 CSA-S16 Standard

3.5.1 Selection of Braces

Using the same principle of tension only braced frame with a bolted connection design, tension resistance using CSA-S16-09 Clause 13.2 is calculated as:

$$T_{r} = \begin{array}{c} \min \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \varphi A_{g}F_{y} \\ \varphi_{u} \left[U_{t}A_{n}F_{u} + 0.60A_{gv} \frac{(F_{y} + F_{u})}{2} \right] \\ \varphi_{u}A_{ne}F_{u} \end{array} \right\}$$
and 0.75 $\varphi A_{n}F_{y}$ for pinned connections
$$[3-29]$$

CSA-S16-09 includes tension resistance calculations accounting for shear lag and block shear tear out, as well as a calculation using the gross section which was not present in 1965 code.

CSA-S16-09 Clause 12 defines gross and net areas. The major differences between the 1965 and 2009 Standards are the inclusion of A_{ne} to account for shear lag, and A_{gv} for the gross area in shear. Whereas, in 1965 Standard net width was calculated normal to the axis of the member with both single or double row of bolts, calculation of net area as per the 2009 Standard would include additional fracture paths to account for tension and shear block failure. This may result in sections chosen according to 1965 code to fail 2009 design criteria with regards to the connection design.

3.5.2 Selection of Columns

Compression resistance using CSA-S16-09 Clause 13.3 is calculated, for doubly symmetric shapes, as:

$$C_r = \phi A F_v (1 + \lambda^{2n})^{-1/n}$$
 [3-30]

with
$$\lambda = \frac{kL}{r} \sqrt{\frac{F_y}{\pi^2 E}}$$
 and n=1.34 for hot-rolled shapes [3-31]

rates of Araded Bay According to 2009 CSA-S16 Standard

1.5.1 Sciention of Branes

Using the same principle of tension only braced frame with a bolied connection design, tension relationset as:

 $V_{i} = \min \left\{ \phi_{i} \left[0, A_{i} E_{i} + 0.60 A_{i} \frac{(V_{i} + U_{i})}{2} \right] \right\}$ $= \min \left\{ \phi_{i} \left[0, A_{i} E_{i} + 0.60 A_{i} \frac{(V_{i} + U_{i})}{2} \right] \right\}$ and 8.75 $\phi A_{i} V_{j}$ for printed connections

CSA-S15-0* molection reference calculations accounting for shear lag and block their tear one as welf as a calculation using the gross accient which was not present in 1965 code.

CSA-S16-09 Clause 12 defines gross and net mean. The major differences between the 1965 and 2009 Summersta are the inclusion of A_m to account for shear lag, and A_m for the gross area in about .Whereas, in 1965 Standard net width was calculated cormal to the axis of the member with herb single or double new of bolts, calculation of oct means per the 2009 Standard reguld include additional fracture paths to account for 1965 code to fail strent block failure. This may trend in sections chosen according to 1965 code to fail strent block failure. This may trend in sections chosen according to 1965 code to fail

3.5.2 Selection of Chinaux

Semplemento resistance using CSA/S19409 Clause 19.3 in calculated, for doub

01

For out of plane bending on laterally unsupported members due to wind loads Clause 13.6 of CSA-S16-09, as well as the combined bending/compression formulas in Clause 13.8 would be used according to current design procedures.

3.5.3 Selection of Beams

Compression resistance for beams acting as chords and collectors using CSA-S16-09 Clause 13.23 is calculated, for doubly symmetric shapes, as per Equation 3-30.

Bending resistance for laterally supported members using CSA-S16-09 Clause 13.5 is calculated as:

$$M_r = \phi ZF_y$$
 for Class 1 and 2 sections [3-32]
 $M_r = \phi SF_y$ for Class 3 sections [3-33]

According to current design practise beam design for braced bays would be based on gravity loads as per load combinations described in Section 3.4.5, as well as axial loads due to effect of chord and collector loading from horizontal shear at the roof level. The combined bending/compression formulas in using CSA-S16-09 Clause 13.8 would be used by designers for member selection.

3.5.4 Selection of Roof Deck/Diaphragm

Selection of the roof deck based on gravity loads would have been the same for both the 1965 and 2010 design codes (22 gauge (0.76 mm thick) – 38 mm deep deck with ribs at 914 mm, trapezoidal profile with flutes at 152 mm on center). Diaphragm design, however, may differ as CSA S16-09 requires that diaphragms and connections of primary framing members be designed using a multiplier of R_d =1.50 in Section 27.11 for conventional construction when $I_EF_aS_a(0.2)$ exceeds 0.45. Therefore the factored shear to consider would be 1.5 times the 1965 value which could potentially result in the selection of different fastener patterns from the SDI diaphragm catalog published by the Canadian Sheet Steel Building Institute (CSSBI 2006) than those presented in Table 5.

3.6 Selection of Earthquake Records

A series of ten historical and ten artificial records were selected for use with the onestorey buildings in this study based on guidelines for selection and scaling of time histories as presented by Atkinson (2009). Earthquake records were scaled such that their For out of plane bendue, on laterally unsupported members due to wind londs Clause 13.8 of CSA-S16-09, as well as the combined bending compression formulas in Clause 13.8 would be used according to current design procedures.

3.5.3 Selection of Building

Compression/resistance for beams noting as cherds and collectors using CSA-810-09 Clause 13.23 is calculated. for doubly symmetric shapes, as per Equation 3-30. Bending resistance for laterally supported members using CSA-S16-09 Clause 13.5 is calculated as:

a such a successful for successful for

According to current design principle being 1 sign for braced bays would be based on gravity lends as per toad conformation described in Sociion 3.4.5, as well as axial loads due to effect of abord and collector jouling from horizontal shear at the roof level. The combined bending compression formulas in using CSA-SU6-09 Clause 13.8 would be used by designers for member selection.

15.6 Scienter of Deal Dealer Manufaction

Selection of the real first based on gravity lotely would neve been the simu for both the 1965 and 2010 design codes (22 cause (0.76 mm thest) - 18 mm deep desit with rits at 914 imm, traperoidal profile with flue's at 17, area on contect. Directoring design, for every the flue's at 17, area on contect. Directoring design, for every the flue's at 17, area on contect. Directoring design, for every the flue's at 17, area on contect. Directoring design, for every the flue's at 17, area on contect. Directoring design, for every the flue's at 17, area on contect. Directoring design, for every the flue's at 17, area on contect. Directoring design, for every the flue's at 100 in Section 27, 11 for every the contextions of primary contextions do as a sector of 0.5. Therefore the flue's the electron of the selection of the selection of different fastence presented on the SOT Tophengue cault of the selection of the selection of different fastence presented on the SOT Tophengue cault of the flue's f

to Beleetion of Sorthythake Seconds

A series of ten historical and ten ordinant recentor are selected for use with the oneatorey buildings in this study based on point base for selection and culture of fime bistories as possibilited by Addition (2009). Furthquike records were culcil such that their

132

response spectrums were matched to the uniform hazard spectrum presented in the NBCC 2010 for Halifax for Class C soil conditions, and for the 2% in 50 year return period prescribed in the 2010 NBCC.

Artificial records were selected based on recommendations by Atkinson (2009) to use records near the large end of the distance range for each magnitude for eastern Canadian sites of low seismicity. This implies the use of scaled down magnitude 6 at fault-distance range 20 to 30 km (M6 set 2) and magnitude 7 at fault-distance range 50 to 100 km (M7 set 2). Artificial records used were selected from a national database of earthquake records published by Atkinson (2009).

The ten records selected were based on consideration of minimizing standard deviation and recommendations on appropriate scaling factors as outlined in Atkinson (2009) as presented in Table 9.

М	Record No.	Scaling factor
6C2	1	0.438
6C2	3	0.697
6C2	5	0.600
6C2	9	0.468
6C2	15	0.668
7C2	1	0.586
7C2	2	0.706
7C2	3	0.643
7C2	7	0.654
7C2	8	0.790

Table 9 - Ten artificial records and scaling factors based on Atkinson (2009).

The percentile mean of the spectral accelerations for these artificial scaled records as compared to the uniform hazard spectrum for Halifax is presented in Figure 14.

response spectrums were matched to the uniform lozard spectrum presented in the NBCC 2010 for Halfraw for Class C soil conditions, and for the 2% in 50-year return period a prescribed in the 2010 NBCC

Artificial resords were sciented based on recommendations by Atomeon (2009) to the respectit near the large end of the distance range for each magnitude for eactern Canadian altes of her-seismicity. This implies the use of scaled down magnitude 6 at fault-distance range 20 to 30 ten (M7 angle 20 to 100 km (M7 angle 20 to 20 km angle 20 to 20 km angle 20 to 100 km (M7 angle 20 to 20 km angle 20 to 20 km (M7 angle 20 to 20 km (M7 angle 20 to 20 km angle 20 to 20 km angle 20 to 20 km (M7 an

The ten reastds selects downe based on consideration of minimizing standard deviation and recommendations on sopropriate scaling factors as outlined in Arkinson (2009) as

(and) manufal in load wetsigning to be been to be a sheet

The percentile mean of the spectral accelerations for these artificial scaled records is

15



Figure 14 - Spectral acceleration vs. time for percentile mean of the scaled artificial records as compared with UHS for Halifax.

Historical records were selected from a database of earthquake records by McGuire (2004). The same ten records as used by Caruso-Juliano (2012) for eastern Canada (Montreal) were chosen and are presented in Table 10. The historic earthquake records were scaled such that their response spectra were matched to the uniform hazard spectrum presented in the NBCC for Halifax, as recommended by Atkinson (2009). The scaling factors are presented in Table 11.

Table 10 - Ten historical records based f	from McGuire (2004).
---	----------------------

No	NGA	Event	Mw	Station	
	No.				
1	CCN090	Jan. 17, 1994 Northridge	6.7	LA-Century City CC North	
2	WAI290	Jan. 17, 1994 Northridge	6.7	Huntington Beach Waikiki	
3	HNT000	Jan. 17, 1994 Northridge	6.7	Huntington Beach Lake St	
4	DEL090	Jan. 17, 1994 Northridge	6.7	Lakewood Del Amo Bvld	
5	H-E01140	Oct 15, 1979 Imperial Valley	6.5	El Centro Array #1	
6	H-CXO315	Oct 15, 1979 Imperial Valley	6.5	Calexico Fire Station	
7	MUL279	Oct. 1, 1987 Whittier Narows	6.0	Beverly Hills - 14145 Mulhol	
8	A-STC090	Oct. 1, 1987 Whittier Narows	6.0	Northridge- 17645 Saticoy St	
9	IND000	June 28, 1992 Landers	7.3	Indio-Coachella Canal	
10	HOS180	June 28, 1992 Landers	7.3	San Bernardino-E&Hospitality	


Historical records were selected from a database of earthquake records by McGuite (2004). The same ten proofs is used to Caraoo-Julizno (2012) for eastern Canada (Moanten) were chosen and me presented in Table 10. The historic carthquake records were sealed such that their response spectra vore muched to the uniform hazard spectrum presented in the MRCC for Heifing, as recommended by Atkinson (2009). The scaling factors are presented in Table 11.

provide the test of the stand of the stand of the stand

.

No	NGA	Scaling factor
	No.	
1	CCN090	0.210
2	WA1290	0.422
3	HNT000	0.652
4	DEL090	0.467
5	H-E01140	0.451
6	H-CXO315	0.306
7	MUL279	0.502
8	A-STC090	0.357
9	IND000	0.436
10	HOS180	0.398

Table 11 - Ten artificial records from McGuire (2004) and scaling factors based on Atkinson (2009).

The percentile mean of the spectral accelerations for these historic scaled records as compared to the uniform hazard spectrum for Halifax is presented in Figure 15.



Figure 15 - Spectral acceleration vs. time for percentile mean of the scaled historic records as compared with UHS for Halifax.

(vote a consistence) have to be a state and so have (2004) and consistence in which the other that the interval

The processile mean of the spectral measorations for those historic scaled records a compared to the uniform booord successifi for Haliflag is presented in Figure 15.



there is sentilled and the least second bound for all a second of the second second second second second second

.

3.7 CBF Test Program

Testing of CBF braces and their connections was conducted by Caruso-Juliano (2012) on double-angle braces which were extracted from the PMQ Sector 4 Rio Tinto facility (1967) in Sorel-Tracy, Québec. These braces were separated such that 7 single and 6 double angle tests were performed, with the remaining angles reserved for coupon tests. The testing protocol was taken from FEMA 461: Interim Protocol I – Quasi-Static Cyclic Testing (FEMA 2007) (Caruso-Juliano 2012).

Caruso-Juliano (2012) observed that net section fractures of varying ductility occurred in the braces tested as the dominant failure mode. As well, there was no gross yielding over the entire brace length, only concentrated plasticity in the net-section. The most brittle net-section fracture occurred at 0.39% elongation of the length of the brace, but elongations were observed up to 1.85% for the existing braces. Retrofitted braces were also tested where axial elongations were seen up to 6.17% (Caruso-Juliano 2012).

Other failure modes, including bolt shear, block shear, bearing and gross yielding have been observed by Hartley (2010) and Castonguay (2010).

3.8 OpenSees model for nonlinear analysis

For nonlinear time history dynamic analysis the inelastic response and behavior of the buildings to earthquake ground motions was determined analytically using OpenSees, *Open System for Earthquake Engineering Simulation* (OpenSees 2011).

In the direction parallel to the ground motion both braces were considered to be affected by the same motion equally, therefore only one braced bay was modeled due to the symmetry of the structure. Analysis of the building was performed for ground motions in the E-W direction only, in the direction of the ground acceleration, üg, as shown in Figure 16. The analytical model was developed to consider the nonlinear seismic behaviour of the CBFs, including the flexibility, strength, and distributed mass of the roof diaphragm.

3.7 CHF Test Program

Terring of CHF braces and their connections was conducted by Cargoo-Innano (2012) on double-angle braces which were extracted from the PMO Sector 4 Rio Timo facility (1967) in Sect. Trace, Queber, These braces were reparated such that 7 single and 6 deathe angle (ests were performed, with the remaining angles reserved for compon tests The (comp) protocol wast aton from FUMA 461: Interim Protocol I - Quesi-Static Cyclic Terring (FEMA 2007) (Cargos-Juffano 2012)

Cannos-Julianse (2012) observed that not section fractures of varying ducifity occurred in the braces usued as the dominant folling mode. As well, there was no prove yielding over the canine brace length, and, concentrated plasticity in the act-section. The most britts and section fracture occurred at 0.30%, dong after of the length of the brace, but clongations were observed up to 1.85%, for the existing braces. Remainized braces were also tested where acted playing has were seen up to 6.17% (Carnso-Juliano 2012).

Other follure modes, including bott shear, block shear, bearing and grots yielding have been observed by Harriey (2010), and Castoriguny (2010).

3.6 Operates have an automation and pair and start response and behavior of the buildings to estimate protocl mblions was determined analytically using OpenSecs

In the direction parattal to the grantic motion both mates were considered to be affected by the same motion equally, therefore only one inmed has was modeled due to the . Symptony of the structure, Analysis of the builting was performed for ground motions in -the L-W direction only. In the direction of the ground excitention, by, as shown in Figure 16. The ampriced model was developed prevention the modeled mate of direction of the confluence to be developed prevention of the modeled mate of the roof direction of a CHFs, included was developed prevention and the modeled mate of the roof direction of



Figure 16 - Conceptual plan view of OpenSees model from Caruso-Juliano (2012).

The roof diaphragm was modelled as a flexible diaphragm using translational horizontal springs, for shear stiffness, and elastic beam-column elements connecting each of the translational springs for flexural stiffness. The shear rigidity of the diaphragm was included in the model by assigning diaphragm shear stiffness, G', as calculated based on the SDI method as outlined in Section 3.3.4, to the translational springs. The flexural rigidity of the diaphragm was included by assigning the diaphragm moment of inertia based on the exterior collector beam, which function as the diaphragm chord members, to the elastic beam-column elements (Caruso-Juliano 2012).

$$I=2A_f(d/2)^2$$
 [3-34]

where A_f is the area of the collector beam flange area and d is the width of the diaphragm in the E-W direction (Medhekar et al. 1999).

Additional dummy columns with their corresponding gravity loading and attached to the diaphragm and CBF with rigid links were included to account for P- Δ effects (Medhekar et al. 1999), as shown in Figure 17. These P- Δ columns were modelled using an elastic beam-column element with infinite rigidity.



The reof distribution was modelled as a flexible displacem using translational horizontal springs, for state withpess, and clastic beam-column elements connecting each of the translational springs tex flexaert attinees. The shear rigidity of the displacem was included in the model to assigning displacem shear stiglidity of the displacem was the SDI method as optimed in Section 3.3.4, to the translational springs. The flexual rigidity of the declaration was nativaled by assigning the displacem moment of inertia based on the exterior colloctor beam, which function as the displacem chord members, to based on the exterior colloctor beam, which function as the displacem chord members, to

T=2A(d/2)*

where A is the new to the collector beam lange area and d is the width of the disploragen in the E-N dispected (Nethodae et al. 1999).

Additional duranty ocionne with their corresponding gravity loading and attached to the displacement and CBI with right links were included to account for P-A effects (Medhekar et al. 1999), as shown in Figure 17 These P-A colution were would led using an clusic beam column element with intrate resulty.



Figure 17 - P- Δ columns concept in OpenSees model from Caruso-Juliano (2012).

The lateral stiffness was provided by the diagonals of the CBF, modelled using a nonlinear beam-column element divided into fiber elements such that bi-axial bending as well as axial load and buckling effects were included. Braces were divided into 10 fibre elements across the depth and 4 across the thickness of the element, as shown in Figure 18 (Caruso-Juliano 2012).



Figure 18 - a) Bracing bent spring model and b) Discretization of brace member. Caruso-Juliano (2012).

An initial out of straightness of L/500 was assigned to the middle of the brace to induce the buckling behaviour. A material property of *Steel02* was assigned to the braces which

The lateral stiffness was movided by the disgonals of the CBF, modelled using a nonlinear beam-column element divided into fiber elements such that bi-axial bending as well as axial hold and brack ting effects were included. Ences were divided into 10 fibre elements across the depth and 4 arrows the dividences of the element, as shown in Figure 18 of anti-strategies.



An initial on of stanghtors of 1.500 was assigned to the middle of the brace to induce the back tree folloyiour. A material property of Scel02 was assigned to the brace which accounted for isotropic strain hardening. This same property was also assigned to the outof-plane rotational stiffness of the "zeroLength" OpenSees elements which made up the gusset plate element in the model. Elastic material properties were assigned to these zeroLength elements to reproduce the axial stiffness of the gussets (Caruso-Juliano 2012).

The OpenSees model was calibrated by adjusting F_y , F_u and gusset plate rotational springs using data from the physical tests as described by Caruso-Juliano (2012).

The seismic mass at the roof level was included for half of the building's area since only one braced bay was modeled due to the symmetry of the structure. Mass tributary to the braced frame was applied to the columns in the braced bay, as shown by the red hatch, in Figure 16, while the remaining mass, as shown by the blue hatch, was assigned to the P- Δ columns equally (Caruso-Juliano 2012).

Mass and stiffness proportional damping was included, with 2% critical damping considered. For the time history analysis, a Krylov Newtown algorithm was used with an integration time step of $d_t/30$.

3.8.1 Failure Criteria

Failure modes explicitly modeled using OpenSees included global buckling and lowcycle fatigue. Local-buckling of the braces, net-section failure and failure of the connections of braces, was not explicitly considered. Other failure modes neglected in modelling include global and lateral torsional buckling of the beam, as well as fracture, base plate failure and buckling of the column.

OpenSees modelling did not account for material degradation. For each ground motion collapse was judged to occur either directly from dynamic analysis as evidenced by excessive lateral displacements or assessed indirectly through non-simulated component limit state criteria (FEMA-P695).

To account for failure modes not explicitly modeled a failure criteria associated with brace elongation was used to account for connection failure in the performance evaluation process. Modes of failure considered were net section failure, bearing failure, bolt shear, and block shear failure. accounted for isotropic stale hardening. This same property was also assigned to the fourof-plane rotational atfiners of the "zerol ength" OpenSees elements which made up the gustet plate element in the model. Elestic material properties were assigned to these zerol ength elements to reproduce the axial stiffness of the gussets (Caruso-Juliano 2012).

The Open lees model was calibrated by adjusting Y_p , Y_n and gussel plane found that open was using data from the physical trans as described by Caruso-Juliano (2012).

The solution mass at the roof lovel was included for half of the building's area since only one bracest tery was modeled due to the symmetry of the structure. Mass tributary to the structure frame are reprired to the columns in the braced bay, as shown by the red batch, in Figure 16, while the transitivity mass, as shown by the blue hatch, was assigned to the P-A columns standle (Cartese Jaffano 2012).

Mass and stiffices proportional damping was included, with 2% critical damping considered. For the time history analysis, a Krydov Newtown algorithm was used with an integration time step of 6,000.

3.8.1. Fallure Criteria

Failure modes explicitly modeled using Openhees included global buckling and lowcycle fatigues. Lovel-buckling of the braces, not-restion failure and failade of the competions of braces, was not explicitly considered. Other failure modes neglected in modelling include global and lateral torsimual incluing of the beam, as well as frecture, brace of the failure and buckling of the coam.

OpenSees modeling did not monum for material degradation. For each ground motion collapse was judged to occur either directly from dynamic analysis as evidenced by excelsive tateril di placements or aversed indirectly through non-simulated component firmit and criteria di placements or aversed indirectly through non-simulated component firmit and criteria di placements of aversed indirectly through non-simulated component inter average of the set of the

To accurant for failure modes are explicitly modeled a failure criteria associated with brace clougation was used to become for emaccion failure in the performance evaluation process. Modes of failure considered were not section takure, bearing failure, bolt thear, Three limit state criteria for net-section fracture were used based on tests by Caruso-Juliano (2012). Four limit state criteria for bearing, block shear, bolt shear and gross yield were used based on a report by Castonguay (2010).

The ratio of ultimate deformation over length (δ_{ult}/L), converted into a percentage drift, was used to establish the limits for the seven limit state criteria previously defined. As each building had a different geometry and brace length the ratio of ultimate deformation over length (δ_{ult}/L) varied for each configuration and each limit state criteria. This ratio was also dependent on the test program, as the brace length considered in the testing was not the same as the buildings used in this study. The ratios were therefore also adjusted to take into account the elastic vs. inelastic yield length of the braces.

3.8.2 Incremental Dynamic Analysis (IDA)

An incremental dynamic analysis (IDA) method was used in order to evaluate the seismic response of the CBFs, and to obtain maximum building drifts and forces. This method uses a series of ground motions with increasing incremental intensity until failure is reached (Uriz & Mahin 2004). For Halifax the IDA was performed for 16 structures, 20 ground motions, and scaling factors from 0.2 to 6.0. Each IDA had 7 failure criteria, as described in Section 3.8.1.

3.9 Performance level and acceptance criteria

In the NBCC 2010, a building's performance under seismic loading is primarily judged by the system satisfying strength criteria as defined in CSA S16-09 and drift limits. The goal is to prevent major failure and loss of life. For buildings in the normal importance category a drift limit of 2.5% is specified in the NBCC.

Chapter 7 of FEMA P695: Quantification of building seismic performance factors outlines a methodology for performance evaluation of buildings for seismic events, which is based on establishing global seismic performance factors (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010).

To establish minimum acceptable performance in this study based on the usage of nonsimulated failure criteria FEMA P695 methodology is employed. As well, spectral acceleration – fragility curves are used to represent probability of failure, as presented in Section 4. I areo limit some estarsia for net-soction fracture were used based on tests by Carlso-Juliano (2012). Four limit state enteria for bearing, block shear, bolt shear and gross yield were used based on a report by Castongouy (2010).

The ratio of ultimate deformation over length (δ_{ee}/L), converted into a percentage daily, was used to each take the limits for the seven limit state criteria previoually defined. As each bailding had a different geometry and inace length the ratio of ultimate deformation over length (δ_{ee}/L) varied for each configuration and each limit state criteria. This ratio must also dependent on the test pergram, as the brace length considered in the testing was not the same as the bachings used to this study. The ratios were therefore also adjusted to take into mesons the dastic vertices used to this study. The ratios were therefore also adjusted to

3.8.2 Increation Dynamic Analysis (10.4)

An meremental dynamic analysis (10A) northod was used in order to evaluate the second response of the CBP is and to obtain maximum building drifts and forces. This method uses a series of ground motions with incessing intrepreted intensity until failure is reached (Uriz & Mahin 2004). For Halifux the IDA was performed for 16 structures, 20 ground metoon, and realize factors from 0.2 to 6.0. Each IDA hal 7 fuilure criteria, as described in Sestion 3.8.1

3.9 Performance level and acceptance criteria in the NBCC 2010, a building's performance under seismic loading is primarily judged by the system substyrag strength criteria as defined in CSA S16-09 and drift limits. The goal is to prevent major fultive and two of life. I on buildings in the normal in portance

Chapter 7 of FEMA F695: Quantification of building sounds performance factors outlines a methodology for performance evaluation of buildings for seismic events, which is bread as associations about administration and manage factors (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010).

To quabilist minimum acceptable performance in this study based on the usage of nonsimulated failure criteria IT XLX POPS methodology is employed. As well, spectral C = acceleration - traptity curves are used to maccom probability of failure, as prescrited in For the evaluation based on FEMA methodology, the buildings as outlined in Table 1 of this report were divided into performance groups, based on common building features or behavioural characteristics. In this study the seven failure criteria as defined in Section 3.8.1 were used to define the performance groups. The study contains sixteen archetype buildings according to FEMA nomenclature (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010).

Acceptance criteria were based on measuring the probability of collapse using the collapse margin ratio (CMR), and comparing it to acceptable values. The collapse margin ratio (CMR) was calculated for each archetype as the ratio of the median collapse intensity, \hat{S}_{CT} , to the maximum considered earthquake (MCE) spectral demand, S_{MT} (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010):

$$CMR = \frac{\bar{S}_{CT}}{S_{MT}}$$
[3-35]

Since the earthquake records used in the study are based on matching the uniform hazard spectrum the maximum considered earthquake spectral demand, S_{MT} , was taken as 1.0. As such the collapse margin ratio (CMR) was equal to the median collapse intensity, \hat{S}_{CT} .

The collapse margin ratio (CMR) was then modified to account for the effects of spectral shape, using a spectral shape factor for each archetype. This is called the adjusted collapse margin ratio (ACMR) where for each archetype, i (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010):

$$ACMR_i = SSF_i \times CMR_i$$
 [3-36]

The spectral shape factor, SSF, varies according to the fundamental period, T, and periodbased ductility; μ_T . Values for SSF as per FEMA P-695 are presented in Table 12 (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010).

Design requirement uncertainty in due to level of rebenness in design requirements and memory of for using the factor (e.g., based on the quality of design requirements in outlined in Section 3.4 of FEMA P-695 (FEMA 2009). A factor (e.g. of 0.30 was using and to the design for this state. For the evaluation based to FUMA methodology, the buildings as outlined in Thole 7 of this report were divided rate performance groups, based on common building features of behaviore at the recelled on this study the seven failure criteria as defined in Section 3.8.1 were used to define the performance groups. The study contains sixteen archetype buildings are word to define the performance groups. The study contains sixteen archetype

Acceptance caneda were based on newaning the probability of collapse using the collapse margin ratio (C.M.F.), and containing it to acceptable values. The collapse margin ratio (C.M.F.) was calculated for each archeope as the ratio of the median collapse intensity, 5, ... (.) The marked an emeridance cartiquake (MCE) spectral demand, Ska ratio (C.M.F.) was wanted and considered cartiquake (MCE) spectral demand, Ska ratio (C.M.F.) and the marked and considered cartiquake (MCE) spectral demand, Ska ratio (C.M.F.) and the marked and considered cartiquake (MCE) spectral demand.

 $M_{\rm F} = \frac{2\pi}{2m}$ [3-35]

Shace the exclusion and the study are based on matching the unitorm nachod appearum the unatimum or each set on figurate spectral demund. Sar, was taken as 1.0. As such the colleges caugin with (CMR) was equal to the median collapse intensity, Ser. The colleges caugin with the state the colleges caugin with the with the colleges caugin with the way then modified to account for the effects of spectral shape using a spectral are cauted for each modified to account for the effects of spectral shape using a spectral for the cate of methods are then modified to account for the effects of spectral collapse nangin mite (ACR) when equal to the median collapse intensity, Ser. (1996) and the collapse intensity, Ser. (2006) and (2007) and

The spectral shape factor, SSF, varias seconding to the fundamental period, 1, and periodbased ductifity: are Values for SSF as per FLADA P-605 are presented in Table 12 (FEMA

04

SSF	Period based ductility, μ_T										
T (sec.)	1.0	1.1	1.5	2	3	4	6	≥ 8			
≤ 0.5	1.00	1.02	1.04	1.06	1.08	1.09	1.12	1.14			
0.6	1.00	1.02	1.05	1.07	1.09	1.11	1.13	1.16			
0.7	1.00	1.03	1.06	1.08	1.10	1.12	1.15	1.18			
0.8	1.00	1.03	1.06	1.08	1.11	1.14	1.17	1.20			
0.9	1.00	1.03	1.07	1.09	1.13	1.15	1.19	1.22			
1.0	1.00	1.04	1.08	1.10	1.14	1.17	1.21	1.25			
1.1	1.00	1.04	1.08	1.11	1.15	1.18	1.23	1.27			
1.2	1.00	1.04	1.09	1.12	1.17	1.20	1.25	1.30			
1.3	1.00	1.05	1.10	1.13	1.18	1.22	1.27	1.32			
1.4	1.00	1.05	1.10	1.14	1.19	1.23	1.30	1.35			
1.5	1.00	1.05	1.11	1.15	1.21	1.25	1.32	1.37			

Table 12 - Spectral shape factor, SSF, according to the fundamental period, T, and period-based ductility; µ_T (FEMA 2009).

The period-based ductility, μ_T , was taken as the ratio of ultimate roof drift, Δ_u , to effective yield drift, $\Delta_{y,eff}$, from non-linear analysis (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010):

$$\mu_{\rm T} = \Delta_{\rm u} / \Delta_{\rm y, eff} , \qquad [3-37]$$

FEMA P-695 accounts for uncertainty by introducing quality ratings which are assigned for design requirements, test data, non-linear modelling, and record-to-record uncertainty. Total system collapse uncertainty, β_{TOT} , is then (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010):

$$\beta_{\text{TOT}} = \sqrt{B^2_{\text{RTR}} + B^2_{\text{DR}} + B^2_{\text{TD}} + B^2_{\text{MDL}}}$$
[3-38]

Record-to-record uncertainty is due to variability in response to different records and accounted for using the factor β_{RTR} . For buildings with significant period elongation ($\mu_T \ge 3$) a value of β_{RTR} equal to 0.40 is recommended. For buildings with little or no period elongation ($\mu_T < 3$) the value of β_{RTR} is variable according to period-based ductility, μ_T . A factor β_{RTR} of 0.40 was assigned to this study.

Design requirement uncertainty is due to level of robustness in design requirements and accounted for using the factor β_{DR} , based on the quality of design requirements as outlined in Section 3.4 of FEMA P-695 (FEMA 2009). A factor β_{DR} of 0.30 was assigned to the design for this study.

Taking 12 - Socretarian to the too for a second as to the fourier of the second period fraged for the term of the second period.

The period-based dustrian, and when as the ratio at ultimate root drift, A., to effective read drift, A., and the ratio of the ratio of

PEAKA P-605 accounts to concernance by introducing quality milings which are assigned for design requirentants, the class non-linear andelling, and record to record uncertainty

Record-to-record uncertainty is the 'D variable's in response to different records and secondited for using the factor films. For real-films with significant period clougation (tre-3) is value of fram equal to 0 dD is accommended. For buildings with little or no period clougetion (pr - 3) the value of families assigned according to period-based ductility, for A factor frame of 0.40 was assigned to this could to set

Design requirement uncertainty is due to terrel of robustness in design requirements and accounted for using the factor flag, lassed on the quality of design requirements as outlined in succom 3.4 of TEM v P-695 617045 20093. A factor flag of 0.30 was assigned Test data uncertainty is due to level of completeness and robustness of test data used and accounted for using the factor β_{TD} , based on the quality of test data as outlined in Section 3.6 of FEMA P-695(FEMA 2009). A factor β_{TD} of 0.45 was assigned to the test protocol used in this study based on recommendations by Caruso-Juliano (2012).

Modelling uncertainty is due to level of accuracy in modelling structural response and accounted for using the factor β_{MDL} , based on the quality of structural modelling as outlined in Section 5.7 of FEMA P-695(FEMA 2009). Test data was used to calibrate analytical models as described by Caruso-Juliano (2012) using brace subassembly tests. However, as seen in Section 3.8.1 of this report not all brace failure modes were explicitly accounted for in modelling. Also, the use of fibre element for the brace imposed a limited ability to simulate local buckling (NEHRP 2010). A factor β_{MDL} of 0.45 was assigned to the analytical models used in this study as per recommendations by Caruso-Juliano (2012).

For each performance group, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio, $ACMR_{10\%}$, was determined from Table 7-3 of FEMA P-695 based on total system collapse uncertainty, β_{TOT} . Within a performance group the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio for a specific archetype is denoted $ACMR_{20\%}$, and determined from Table 7-3 of FEMA P-695 as well (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010).

For each performance group, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR_{10%}, is compared to the average adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, of all archetypes. This is based on limiting the probability of collapse under the maximum considered earthquake (MCE) to 10%. Within each performance group, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio is relaxed to a probability of collapse of 20%, ACMR_{20%}, and compared to the adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, of each archetype individually. This recognises that although the average probability of collapse for a performance group must satisfy more stringent requirements, individual archetypes may exceed a 10% probability of collapse (FEMA 2009, NEHRP 2010).

51

Test dam interments is due to level of completeness and robustness of test data used and accounted for using the factor fam, based on the quality of test data as outlined in Section 3.6 of FEMA P costrenatA 2009). A factor fam of 0.45 was assigned to the test protocol used in the data by Campo-Juliano (2012).

Modelling notertainty is due to level of normapy in modelling structural response and neccounted for using the factor fram, based on the quality of structural modelling as contined in Section 5.7 of FEMA P-0057FE-1A 2009), Test data was used to calibrate malytical models as described by Carace-Juliano (2012) using brace subassembly tests. However, as easy in Section 3.5.1 of this report not all brace failure modes were explicitly accounted for in modeling. Also, the use of fine element for the brace imposed a limited ability to emulate local backling (NEHRP 2010). A factor fam, of 0.45 was assigned to the analytical models used in this study as per recognized toined by Canso-Juliano (2012).

For each performance group, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio, NCMN4964, was determined from Table 7-3 of 11 MA P-695 based on total system collaps: uncertainty, Bror. Within a performance group the avecptable adjusted collapse margin ratio for a specific metabape to datanual AS Nikes, and determined from Table 7-3 of FEMA P-695 to well (FTMA 2009, NIFREP 2010)

For each performance groups the accornible educated collapse mugin ratio, ACMR as is compared to the average adjuared collapse mugin ratio, ACMR, of all archetypes. This is, based on limiting the probability of collapse and a the maximum considered carthquake (MICE) to 10%. Within each performance group, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio is released to a perfectivity of collapse of the considered and the adjusted collapse margin. The ACMR, or once mobility is individually. This recognises that attemds to a perfectivity of collapse of the considered and with the adjusted collapse margin. The ACMR, or once mobility is individually. This recognises that attemds to a perfectivity of collapse for a performance group must called adjusted collapse receive mobility of collapse for a performance of a 10% probability of many and the attemptic for a perfectivity of collapse for a performance of a 10% probability of Sources of error in the determination of performance criteria include the judgement used in interpreting the results of the nonlinear time history dynamic analysis, in assessing uncertainty, and in the rounding of values in the design (FEMA 2009).

3.10 Summary

Braced frame and building dimensioning was carried out using the 1965 National Building Code of Canada and S16-1965 for the buildings outlined in Table 1. A set of twenty earthquake records were selected to form the basis of non linear analysis from both artificial and historic earthquake databases. These were used with an incremental dynamic analysis and OpenSees model which was calibrated according to test results on CBFs by Caruso-Juliano (2012). Failure criteria associated with brace elongation were used in the performance evaluation process. Modes of failure considered were net section failure, bearing failure, bolt shear, and block shear failure based on testing by Caruso-Juliano (2012) and Castonguay (2010). Seven limit states criteria were established and used as the basis to establish minimum acceptable performance in this study based on FEMA P695 methodology. Acceptance criteria were based on measuring the probability of collapse using the adjusted collapse margin ratio (ACMR), and comparing it to acceptable values, ACMR_{10%} and ACMR_{20%}.



Sources of error in the determination of performance criteria include the judgement used in interpreting the results of the nonlinear time history dynamic analysis. in assessing transferrer and in the rounding of values in the design (FEMA 2009).

3.10 Sommar

Building Code et Granda and S16-1965 for the buildings outlined in Table L. A set of Building Code et Granda and S16-1965 for the buildings outlined in Table L. A set of twenty ear lagues a recerite were selected to form the basis of non-linear analysis from both artificial and bierer's cambolishe databases. These were used with an incremental dynamic analysis and Character cambolishe databases. These were used with an incremental dynamic analysis and Character cambolishe databases. These were used with an incremental dynamic analysis and Character cambolishe databases. These were used with an incremental dynamic analysis and Character cambolishe databases. These were used with brace clogation were used in the parformance evaluation process. Modes of failure considered were net section failure, bearing failure, belt there, and block them failure based on testing by Cansolandare (2012) and Castorigity (2010). Seven limit stoles criterin were established and used as the base to complete the numbra necestable performance in this study based on FEMA Peop methodology. Acceptates order a were based on measuring the probability of collique using the adjusted collapse margin ratio (ACMR), and comparing it to

52

Chapter 4 - Results

4.1 IDA Analysis

The results from the incremental dynamic analysis (IDA) described in Section 3.8.2 of this report are presented in Figure 19 to Figure 22 for buildings type 2H, 7H, 8H, and 16H. Maximum percent storey drift is plotted against the ground motion scaling factor for each earthquake ground motion. Building type 2H is representative of the buildings in this study on the smaller scale, while 7H and 8H are representative of medium sized buildings, and 16H is representative of buildings of a larger scale. Each of the seven failure criteria outlined in Section 3.8.1 of this report is represented by a vertical red line at the maximum storey drift corresponding to the onset of failure based on testing by Caruso-Juliano (2012) and Castonguay (2010) as numbered in Table 13. Figures for the results of the IDA for all sixteen buildings in this study are presented in Appendix D.

A scaling factor of 1 to 1.5 generally corresponded to initiation of the first failure criteria, corresponding to net section failure NS1. Failure due to bolt shear was the next predominate failure mode, followed by net section failure NS2, block shear, bearing, and net section failure NS3. The scaling factor at which each occurred varied greatly according to the earthquake ground motion under consideration. From the IDA results it can be seen that at a scaling factor of 6, most of the earthquake ground motions did not initiate the failure criteria of yield, corresponding to 2.5% storey drift.

Table 13 - Seven failure criteria in IDA analysis.

	Failure Criteria
i	NS 1 (3Bsa)
ii	NS 2 (3Cs)
iii	NS 3 (3As)
iv	Bolt Shear (D05X)
V	Block Shear (D06X)
vi	Bearing (D03X)
vii	Yield (drift)

Chapter 4 - Revolts

4.1 IDA Agenticle

The results from the extraneous tyme is malynin (IDA) described in Section 3.8.2 of this triper me presented in Figure 10 to Figure 22 for buildings type 2H, 7H, 8H, and this ergon me present on Figure 10 to Figure 22 for buildings type 2H, 7H, 8H, and the eract contract correct and is plotted ergement the ground motion scaling factor for each carting takes and motion. Building type 2H is representative of the buildings in bis study on the studier ecole, while 7H and 6H are representative of medium sized in this figure and tell in Section 3.8.1 of this representative of medium sized in the figure of the buildings in bis study on the studier ecole, while 7H and 6H are representative of medium sized in this figure ordered and the section 3.8.1 of this representative of the local medium sized in the medium sized or the medium sized in the medium sized or the medium sector of the medium sized or the medium sized or the medium sized or the medium sized or the medium of the 1DA for all subscriptions (2010) in membered in Table 13. Figures for the medium sized or the medium si

A scaling factor of 1 to 1 5 generally corresponded to initiation of the first failure ordens, corresponding to net section failure NS1. Failure due to bolt shear was the next predominene failure mode, followed to net section failure NS2, block shear, bearing, and net coeffor failure NS3. The scaling factor at which each occurred varied greatly according to the earing after ground matter to the consideration. From the IDA results it can be seen that at a polying factor of the earbquake ground motions did not initiate the failure universited to iteld, corresponding to 2.5% storey drift.



Figure 19 - Results of IDA analysis for building 2H.



Figure 20 - Results of IDA analysis for building 7H.



19

•



Figure 21 - Results of IDA analysis for building 8H.



Figure 22 - Results of IDA analysis for building 16H.



4.2 Fragility Curves

For each earthquake ground motion the value of the maximum drift at each scaling factor was assigned a value of 1.0 if it exceeded the maximum storey drift corresponding to the onset of failure for each of the seven failure criteria described in Section 3.8.1, and a value of 0 if it did not. The fragility curves were then constructed from the median value of these results, corresponding to the collapse probability, versus the scaling factor.

The curves were then adjusted according for the lognormal standard deviation parameter, β_{TOT} , which describes total collapse uncertainty. From Equation 3-8, a value of $\beta_{TOT} = 0.80$ was used for all buildings in this study. The original and adjusted fragility curves are presented in Figure 23 to Figure 26 for buildings type 2H, 7H, 8H, and 16H. The legend for seven failure criteria of fragility curves is shown in Table 14. Figures for the fragility curves for all sixteen buildings in this study are presented in Appendix E.

Table 14 - Legend for seven failure criteria of fragility curves.

Fragility Curves i) NS1 ii) NS2) iii) NS3 △ iv) Bolt Shear X v) Block Shear ☆ vi) Bearing 🕀 vii) Drift

4.2 Frequility Curves

For each earthquake pround motion the value of the maximum doth at each scaling racion was assigned a value of 1 0 of a exceeded the maximum storey drift corresponding to the onest of failure for each of the seven failure criteria described in Section 3.8.1, and a value of 0.11% dut not. The fragilup numes were then constructed from the medien value of focus results, corresponding to the culture probability, versus the scaling factor.

The curves were then reliented to reading for the log-normal standard deviation parameter, from which describes total colorges uncertainty. From Equation 3-8, a value of from 0.80 was used for all buildings in this stady. The original and adjusted fragility curves are presented in Figure 31 to Finance is for buildings (spe 211, 711, 811, and 1611. The legend for seven failure edicing all to finality curves is shown in Fable 14. Figures for the fragility curves for all sixteen buildings in this study are 'n carted in Appendix F.

the state for the line of the state of the s



Figure 23 - Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 2H.



Figure 24 - Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 7H.



If any state of the state of the



the provided of the second second second second for the second second second second second second second second

.



Figure 25 - Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 8H.



Figure 26 - Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 16H.









.

For certain buildings, such as type 8H, the yield drift criteria of 2.5% were not reached for any of the ground motions for scaling factors 0 to 6. Dimensioning of the brace, in these cases was sometimes governed by the need to accommodate the bolted connection in either a single or double row of bolts as described in Section 3.3.1. As such, the braces were larger than required solely for tension capacity, leading to an increased lateral stiffness and better drift performance.

4.3 Building evaluation according to FEMA P695 acceptance criteria

As discussed in Section 3.9 the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio, $ACMR_{10\%}$ and $ACMR_{20\%}$, were determined from Table 7-3 of FEMA P-695 based on total system collapse uncertainty, $\beta_{TOT} = 0.80$. $ACMR_{10\%}$ was determined to have a value of 2.79, while $ACMR_{20\%}$ was determined to have a value of 1.96.

Γ	ACMR Values									
Building	NS1	NS2	NS3	Bolt	Block	Bearing	Drift			
1H	2.41	3.12	4.25	2.92	3.32	3.60	NA			
2H	2.29	3.03	4.18	2.73	3.16	3.47	NA			
3H	2.40	3.05	3.92	2.75	3.14	3.25	NA			
4H	2.38	3.29	3.96	2.60	3.44	3.43	NA			
5H	1.98	2.55	3.32	2.21	2.76	2.85	NA			
6H	1.93	2.55	3.27	2.08	2.77	2.75	NA			
7H	2.17	2.69	3.52	2.25	2.88	2.88	NA			
8H	3.16	3.83	5.12	3.35	3.97	3.95	NA			
9H	2.80	3.57	4.40	3.03	3.72	3.74	NA			
10H	2.54	3.27	4.08	2.73	3.42	3.41	NA			
11H	2.41	3.17	3.92	2.56	3.38	3.30	NA			
12H	2.23	2.83	3.56	2.30	3.05	2.86	NA			
13H	2.56	3.03	3.60	2.67	3.13	3.11	NA			
14H	2.34	2.82	3.28	2.43	2.93	2.86	NA			
15H	2.88	3.49	4.29	2.93	3.65	3.50	NA			
16H	2.22	2.92	3.63	2.20	3.09	2.82	NA			
Avg H	2.42	3.08	3.89	2.61	3.24	3.24	NA			

Table 15 - Adjusted collapse margin ratio (ACMR) for all 16 building and 7 failure criteria.

For each of the seven failure criteria, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR_{10%}, was compared to the average adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, of all 16

For contain buildings, such as type 414 the yield drift eritedu of 2.5% were not reached for any of the ground metions as scaling listors 0 to 6. Dimensioning of the brace, in, these cases was contained governed by the need to accommodate the bolted connection in while a matheor deable was at bolts as described in Section 3.3.1. As such, the braces were hence then to the solely for lension especity, loading to an increased lateral

4.3 Bellding evaluation according to FEMA P695 accountnee eriteria As discussed in Section 3.9 the nonspirable adjusted collapse margin-ratio, ACMR and ACMR 2012, were determined from Fable 7-3 of EEMA P-695 based on total system collapse uncertainty from a D-fit, ACMR and determined to have a value of 2.79,

	,			
			•	

Table 13 - A fjustnet cellusion of the set o

buildings. Within each of the seven failure criteria, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio was relaxed to a probability of collapse of 20%, ACMR_{20%}, and compared to the adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, of each of the 16 buildings individually. These results are presented in Table 15.

As shown in Table 15 acceptable performance was not achieved for NS1 (net section). In this case the average value of the adjusted collapse margin ratio and the individual value of the adjusted collapse margin ratio for building 6H did not exceed ACMR10% and ACMR20%, respectively.

As well, acceptable performance was not achieved for the bolt shear failure criteria because although the individual values of the adjusted collapse margin ratio for all buildings exceeded ACMR_{20%} = 1.96, the average value of the adjusted collapse margin ratio did not exceed ACMR_{10%} = 2.79.

On average, the yield drift criteria of 2.5% were not reached for scaling factors 0 to 6. As such, a specific value of adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, could not be calculated. However, as this limit was not reached it can be inferred that a failure criteria associated with drift was not critical for these buildings.

In general, although acceptable performance was not achieved in all cases, the buildings, on average, performed well.

4.4 Evaluation of an example building using dynamic modal analysis and NBCC 2010

Building type 7H was modelled using *Advance Design America* (ADA) software (Graitec 2010) using a dynamic modal analysis, as would be done by a design engineer evaluating an existing building using seismic design criteria as outlined in the NBCC 2010, and compared to the OpenSees results.

The seismic weight, W, was taken as the total weight of the structure as per NBCC 2010, and included the dead load and 25% of the design snow load.
buildings. Within each of the newers failure criteria, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio was relaxed to a probability of collapse of 20%, ACMR206, and compared to the adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR206, ACMR206, and compared to the adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR206, ACMR206, and compared to the adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR206, ACMR206, adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR206, ACMR206, adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR206, ACMR206, ACMR206, and compared to the adjusted collapse margin ratio.

As shown in Leble 15 acceptable performance was not achieved for NSI (not section). In this case the average value of the adjusted collapse margin ratio and the individual value of the adjusted collegest margin ratio for building off did not exceed ACMR10, and ACMR20, respectively.

As well, acceptable performance was not achieved for the bolt shear failure criteria because although the individual values of the adjusted collapse margin ratio for all buildings exceeded the MP rate 1.90, the average value of the adjusted collapse margin ratio did not exceed at 5 effects = 2.70

On average, the yield third criteria of 2.5% were not reached for scaling factors 0 to 6. As such, a specific value of adjusted collams margin ratio, ACMR, could not be calculated. However, as this find, was not readyed it can be inferred that a taijure orderia associated with drift was not criterial for these our dates.

in general although acceptable performance was not achieved in all cases, the buildings, on average and inner well.

5.4 Evaluation of an example indifing using dynamic modal analysis and NRCC 2010

Denishing type 7H was noticited using a former Dauge dimerica (ADA) with the (Orieles 2010) using a dynamic criedal stallysis as would be done by a design orginoer eviduating an existing building peng estanto design cristin as outined in the NBCC 2010, and compared to the Creations results

The seismus vehicle, M., one taken as the relief vehicle of the structure as per MBCC 2010, and included the doed load and 25% of the design store load. The building as designed for the CSA S16-1965 *Steel Structures for Buildings* Standard (CSA 1965) and the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) was presented in Figure 11 and Figure 12.

The ductility-related force modification factor, R_d , was taken as 1.5 and the overstrengthrelated force modification factor, R_o , was taken as 1.3 for the case of conventional construction as defined by Clause 27.11 of CSA S16-2009. As such the elastic base shear, V_e , determined from dynamic analysis using the ADA model period was divided by the product of R_dR_o to determine the base shear from dynamic analysis, V_d . NBCC 2010 requires that the base shear from dynamic analysis, V_d , be scaled such that it is not less than 0.80 times the static design base shear, V, as presented in Section 3.4.3 of this report. The structure was considered regular as it did not present torsional sensitivity as defined by the NBCC 2010. As well, the static base shear, V, was determined with a ceiling on the fundamental period of 0.05h_n for braced frames, where h_n is the height of the structure.

As such the period was taken as 0.35 seconds for the building, and the spectral acceleration at the fundamental building period, S (T_a), was taken as 0.19. In comparison, the OpenSees and ADA model had periods of 0.78 sec and 1.26 sec respectively.

The calculation of final base shear is shown in Table 16. This value was controlled by the limit of 0.80 times the static design base shear, V.

Table 16 - Final base shear for analysis using base shear from dynamic analysis, V_d , and the design base shear, V.

V_{e} (kN)	$V_{d}(kN)$	V (kN)	0.8V (kN)	$V_{final}\left(kN\right)$
241	124	308	246	246

In the calculation of base shear the higher mode participation factor, M_v , and the importance factor for earthquake load for normal category buildings were both taken as 1.0.

From the ADA model the maximum tension force in each brace in the East-West bays was 102 kN. The braced frame had an elastic horizontal displacement of 9.87 mm in the East-West direction, corresponding to 0.0014% drift.

The building as designed for the CSA ST6-1965 Steel Structures for Building: Standard (CSA 1965) and the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) was

The ductility educed force-modification fixtor, R₄ was taken as 1.5 and the overstoring/threlated force and fourier factor. R₆, was taken as 1.3 for the case of conventional construction as defined by Charace 27.11 of CSA S16-2009. As such the elastic base alient, V₆, desemined then dynamic analysis using the ADA model period was divided by the product of R₁R₆ to determine the base shear from dynamic analysis. V₆ NBCC 2010 requires that the base also a from dynamic analysis. V₆ NBCC less than 0.50 from the base also a from dynamic analysis. V₆ NBCC report. The structure was considered to galar as h did not present torsional sensitivity as defined by the NBCC 2010. As well, the static base shear, V, was determined with a ceiling on the fundamiental gened of 0.05h, for braced frames, where b₆ is the height of the structure.

As such the period was taken as 0.35 responds for the building, and the spectral acceleration at the function of the informatical building period. S (T_a), was taken as 0.19. In comparison, the OpenSees and ADA model had periods of 0.78 are and 1.26 sec respectively. The calculation of the shear is shown in Table 10. This value was controlled by the

Table 76 + Find have shown for an inset ration barry from their Sprace is studyed. Va. and the design hats shown V.

In the culcuturi of base abear the higrar (node persuperior factor, M., and the importance linear for cartiquele load for normal outagoty buildings were both taken as 1.0.

From the ADA cashed the maximum tension force in such bries in the Base West brys was 102 FM. The invest frame but so clostic horizontal displacement of 9.87 mm in the East-West direction, corresponding to 0.0014% delt. A category of conventional construction would, for Halifax, not entail additional verification that the diaphragm and connections of primary framing members were designed such that the failure mode was ductile, or for gravity loads combined with a seismic load multiplied by $R_d = 1.50$ since $I_E F_a S_a(0.2) = 0.23$, which is less than the limit of 0.45 prescribed by Clause 27.11 of CSA S16-2009. However, due to the increase in seismic lateral load as compared to the 1965 design, the diaphragm fastener pattern presented in Table 5 was determined to be no longer adequate in the long direction (E-W).

4.4.1 Comparison example building using dynamic modal analysis and NBCC 2010 to OpenSees model results

For comparison to the dynamic modal analysis of building type 7H the results from the OpenSees model at scaling factor 1.0 were examined. This scaling factor corresponds to the UHS for Halifax as outlined in the NBCC 2010. The resulting brace tension force, T, base shear, V, and horizontal displacement, Δ_{brace} , are presented in Table 17 for the twenty earthquake ground motions studied.

uto her	SF	T (kN)	V (kN)	$\Delta_{\text{brace}} (\text{mm})$
GM 1	1	63	80	8.35
GM 2	1	211	175	16.05
GM 3	1	115	111	11.37
GM 4	1	93	87	8.14
GM 5	1	208	173	15.26
GM 6	1	175	149	14.84
GM 7	1	96	89	9.15
GM 8	1	179	152	14.68
GM 9	1	210	185	20.62
GM 10	1	167	143	14.13
GM 11	1	33	41	3.68
GM 12	1	237	195	24.49
GM 13	1	176	153	15.28
GM 14	1	NA	NA	NA
GM 15	1	73.	86	8.81
GM 16	1	211	179	21.95
GM 17	1	21	29	5.75
GM 18	1	41	50	8.68
GM 19	1	118	110	13.02
GM 20	1	23	36	9.20
AVG	1	123	111	12.17

Table 17 - Results of OpenSees analysis for ground motions 1 through 20.

62

A category of conventional community for Halifax, not email adapted verification then the displacement commutions of primary framing members were designed and then the follows made was dustile, or for gravity loads combined with a settemic hard maniplied to $R_c = 1.50$ since b $F_{cb}(0.2) = 0.23$, which is less than the limit of 0.45 press/life 4 to (Traise 17 11 of CSA S16-2009 However, due to the increase in resemic interal load as compared to the 1965 design, the displaragen fastment pattern presented in Fabre 5 was determined to be no longer adequate in the long direction (F-

1.4.1 Comparizon example building teing dynamic modal analysis and NBCC 2010 to Unarface medial creating

For conservation to the dynamic modul and we of building type 74 the results from the OpenSees model at mathem factor 1.0 were examined. This scaling factor corresponds to the UHS for Hallfax as outlined to the MBC 2010. The resulting brace tension force, I base shour, V, and horizontal displacement. News, are presented in Table 17 for the twenty confugate ground motions studies.

26.8 .		
8.8. 16.03 8.151 J		

2.5

The maximum tension force in each brace and horizontal displacement in the ADA model, which are calibrated to the requirements of 0.80 times the static base shear presented in the NBCC 2010, was 102 kN, with an elastic displacement of 9.87 mm.

From the OpenSees results for all ground motions, tension force and displacement varied greatly, however the average was 135 kN and 13.45 mm.

Tension resistance using CSA-S16-09 Clause 13.2 was calculated, from Equation 3-29 as 120 kN considering a bolted connection with 4 one inch bolts in a single row, where tension resistance calculations accounting for shear lag governed.

For the seven failure criteria identified in Section 3.8.1 of this report, the maximum drift corresponding to each is shown in Table 18.

Table 18 -Maximum drift for failure criteria of building 7H.

all three divises (NS1	NS2	NS3	Bolt	Block	Bearing	Yield
Max Drift (mm)	31.5	40.5	53.7	33.9	42.8	42.7	175.0
Max Drift (%)	0.45	0.58	0.77	0.48	0.61	0.61	2.50

Both the results for maximum horizontal displacement in the ADA and the OpenSees model did not surpass these limits. However, on average, the OpenSees results had higher brace forces and displacements than the ADA analysis using a ductility-related force modification factor and overstrength-related force modification factor for the case of conventional construction. This may imply that the force modification factors assumed in the case of conventional construction may not be applicable for the standard construction of all buildings since a nonlinear analysis may demonstrate higher design forces, although the elongation failure limits were not exceeded.

4.5 Summary

This report is complimentary to a study of similar scope by Caruso-Juliano (2012) evaluating the performance of CBFs in one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NBCC) and CSA-S16-65 (CSA 1965) for the cities of Abbotsford and Montreal. Caruso-Juliano (2012) determined that for Abbotsford the performance was generally unsatisfactory for all seven failure criteria, while the same

63

reach the OrgenSoces absuits for all ground anothens, tension force and displacement varies aready, however, the average was 135 kW and 13.45 mm.

tension resistance using CBA-S16-09 Clause 13.2 was calculated, from Equation 3-29 as 120 LN considering a holted connection with 4 one inch bolts in a single row, where torrion resistance calculations accounting for shear lag governed.

For the seven failure entries identified in Section 3.8.1 of this report, the maximum drift concernation to each is shown in Table 18.

Both the results for maximum harizontal displacement in the ADA and the OpenSecs model did not surpose there limits. However, on average, the OpenSecs results had higher brack forces and displacements than the ADA university using a ducility-related force modification factor and over, at that the ADA university using a ducility-related force and iffection factor and over, at that the ADA university of factor for the case of modification factor and constructions. This may have the force modification factors assumed in the case of conventions. This may may that the force modification factors assumed in the case of conventions a construction may not be applicable for the standard construction of all buildings areas a construction may as may demonstrate higher design forces, although the convention of the construction construction exceeded.

4.5 Summer

This report is complemented by courds of similar scope by Causo-Juliano (2012) evaluating the performance of Chirs in our- core area sensitized built with the 1965 National Ballding Cade of Canas (MBCC) and CSA-S15-65 (CSA-1965) for the cities of Abbotshad and Montreal Canase Juliana (2012) desemined that for Abbotsford the performances with contralic mestication for all seven fulture criteria, while the same buildings analysed for earthquake ground motions calibrated to the Montreal UHS performed satisfactorily. This is due to the fact that although seismic design criteria was the same for these two cities using the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965), the uniform hazard spectrum specified in the 2010 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 2010) varied greatly with Abbotsford having significantly higher spectral accelerations (Caruso-Juliano 2012).

For Halifax, in general, although acceptable performance was not achieved in all cases, the one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada, on average, performed well, for the seven failure criteria outlined in this study.

In the NBCC 2010, a building's performance under seismic loading is primarily judged by the system satisfying strength criteria as defined in CSA S16-09 and drift limits. For buildings in the normal importance category a drift limit of 2.5% is specified in the NBCC. For all three cities (Abbotsford, Montreal, and Halifax) the 2.5% drift failure criteria was satisfied.

For Halifax, with a maximum scaling factor of 6, most of the earthquake ground motions did not initiate the failure criteria of yield, corresponding to 2.5% storey drift. For certain buildings, such as type 8H, the yield drift criteria of 2.5% were not reached for any of the ground motions for scaling factors 0 to 6. As such, a specific value of adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, could not be calculated for the yield criteria. However, as this limit was not reached it can be inferred that a failure criteria associated with drift was not critical for these buildings. In some cases brace selection was often governed by the need to accommodate the bolted connection such that the braces were larger than required solely for tension capacity, leading to an increased lateral stiffness and better drift performance.

An example building was compared using a dynamic modul analysis, as would be done by a design engineer evaluating an existing building using aclassic design eriveria as outlined in the NBCC 2010, to the non-linear OpenSees results. On average, the buildings antered to cardinate pround motions calibrated to the broaten on S performed sufficiences of the issue to the first that although seismic design criteria was the same for here two offices using the 1963 bational Puilding Code of Canada (NRCC 1965), the uniform having spectrum specified in the 2010 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 2010) varied greatly with Abbotsford having significantly higher spectral accelerations (Canada Carace Initiano 2012).

For Halfflex, in general sittempt acceptable performance was not achieved in all cases, the one-starey stort proptures built with the 1965 National Bullding Code of Canada, on average, applicated well, for the seven failure criteria outlined in this study.

In the MHCC 2010, a building's performance under seismic loading is primarily judged by the system sale dying sceneth criteria as defined in CSA S16-09 and drift limits. For buildings in the network requirement caregory a drift limit of 2.5% is specified in the NBCC. For all three crites (Abbetstoat, Montreal, and Halifax) the 2.5% drift failure criteria was sets fied.

For Hulthar, with a creating factor of 6, must of the cartigoude ground motions did not mitiate the failure criteria of yield, corresponding to 2.5% storey-drift. For certain buildings, such as type 817, the priold drift criteria of 2,3% were not reached for any of the ground motions for scaling factors 0 to 6. As such, a specific value of adjusted collapse margin ratio, AC MR, could not or effectived for the yield criteria. However, as this limit was not reached it can be informed for a specific value of adjusted collapse for a such a specific value of adjusted collapse and the ratio of the state in ratio. AC MR, could not not or effective for the yield criteria. However, as this limit was not reached for these buildings to some cases bases sciention was often governed by the need or accommodate the holted connection such that the braces sciention was often governed by the need to accommodate the holted connection such that the braces sciention was often governed by the need solely for tension capacity for tension capacity, leading to an increased lateral stiffness and better drift.

Chapter 5 - Conclusion

The behaviour of one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and CSA-S16-65 (CSA 1965) under current building code standards for seismic design was studied in order to evaluate the performance of CBFs in order to provide recommendations for seismic evaluation and rehabilitation requirements for such existing buildings for future building codes. This was done for the city of Halifax as a complimentary study to one of a similar scope by Caruso-Juliano (2012) evaluating the performance of CBFs in one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NBCC) and CSA-S16-65 (CSA 1965) for the cities of Abbotsford and Montreal.

The response of a series of sixteen one-storey buildings with varying aspect ratios and heights was studied, subjected to ten artificial and ten historical earthquake ground motions, using an analytical OpenSees, *Open System for Earthquake Engineering Simulation* (OpenSees 2011) model for nonlinear time history dynamic analysis.

5.1 Analysis Conclusions

The intended performance level in the design earthquakes, as well as the acceptance criteria used in the braced frame analysis was established using FEMA P695 (FEMA 2009) criteria.

Although acceptable performance was not achieved in all cases, the one-storey steel structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada, on average, performed well, for the seven failure criteria outlined in this study for the city of Halifax.

In comparison, Caruso-Juliano (2012) determined that for Abbotsford the performance was generally unsatisfactory for all seven failure criteria, while the same buildings analysed for earthquake ground motions calibrated to the Montreal UHS performed satisfactorily, since seismic design criteria was the same for these two cities using the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965).

An example building was compared using a dynamic modal analysis, as would be done by a design engineer evaluating an existing building using seismic design criteria as outlined in the NBCC 2010, to the non linear OpenSees results. On average, the

Chapter 5 - Conclusion

The behaviour of one-space, the structures built with the 1965 National Building Code of Canada (MRCC 1965) and CBA-816-65 (CSA 1965) under current building code standards for second design was solded in order to evaluate the performance of CBF a in order to profer recommendations for estimic evaluate the performance of CBF a in for such exactor buildings for farme building codes. This was done for the city of Huife as a complimentary study to one of a similar scope by Caroro-Juliano (2012) evaluating the performance of CBFs in one et as similar scope by Caroro-Juliano (2012) evaluating Building Code of CBFs in one study steel structures built with the 1965 National Abbordent and Destructure.

The preparate of a series of Sistean one-storey buildings with varying aspect ratios and heights war studied, and jected to use autificial and ten historical carthquake ground motions, using an applytical OpenSees. Open System for Karthquake Engineering Simulation (OpenSees 201) () model for nonlinear time history dynamic analysis.

Analysis Constants

The intended performance level in the Junga cardiqueters, as well as the acceptance criteria used in the broad frame analysis was established using FEMA P695 (FEMA 2009) criteria.

Although acceptable partitionance was not achieved in all cases, the one-storey steel attainments have with the T965 Fational Building Code of Canada, on average, performed well for the seven father editrin cultimed in this souly for the city of Halifax.

In comparison, Canno-Juliare (2012) decomined that for Abbotstord the performance was generally mentification for all secondeduce cateria, while the same buildings analyzed for earthquide ground motions collibration to the Manucal UHS performed satisfactorily, since seismic design criticia was the same for these two cities using the 1065 Mational Particles Collect Country (2012).

An example building was a mean trace wing a dynamic modul analysis, as would be conby a design engineer evoluating in constant building using telemic design criterians outlined in the T.P.C. 2010, to she non linear OpenSees results. On average, the

2.0

OpenSees model results had higher brace forces and displacements than the dynamic modal analysis analysis using a ductility-related force modification factor and overstrength-related force modification factor for the case of conventional construction. This may imply that the force modification factors assumed in the case of conventional construction may not be applicable for the construction of all buildings since a nonlinear analysis may demonstrate higher design forces. The elongation failure limits, as defined for the seven failure criteria, however, were not exceeded for either case.

5.2 Recommendations for future research

To account for failure modes not explicitly modeled using OpenSees failure criteria associated with brace elongation was used to account for connection failure in the performance evaluation process. Modes of failure considered were net section failure, bearing failure, bolt shear, and block shear failure. Additional testing of existing brace specimens could be conducted in order to include additional model degradation mechanisms in the modelling and supplement the seven modes of failure seen in this study.

As well, considering base shears calculated with the 2010 National Building Code of Canada exceed those calculated using the 1965 code, diaphragm strengthening may be required for such existing buildings. As suggested by Caruso-Juliano (2012), studying the sixteen one-storey buildings in this study with a diaphragm retrofit would be valuable for comparison to the unreinforced case.

Additionally, it was seen that the force and deformation of an example building validated using dynamic modal analysis as outlined in the NBCC 2010, and assuming "conventional construction" may be less than that using a nonlinear analysis. This may imply that the force modification factors assumed in the case of conventional construction may not be applicable to all building cases. Only one building was studied for this case, and for such a conclusion to be drawn, however, additional research should be undertaken, including analysis of other building sites besides Halifax.

Open see model reachs had higher brace forces and displacements than the dynamic model analysis analysis using a dustility-related force modification factor and overnoogth-related force and filentian factor for the case of conventional construction. This may couply that the force modification factors assumed in the case of conventional construction any not be topolicable for the construction of all buildings since a nonlinear analysis may domonstrow higher theirs for the construction of all buildings since a nonlinear for the second failure related by the forces. The clongation failure limits, as defined for the second failure related by when end exceeded for either case.

8.2 Recommendations for fature research

To account for Financ modes not explicitly modeled using OpenSees (ailure criteria nesseciated with hree effortation was used to account for connection failure in the performance of allotter process. Modes of failure considered were not section failure, bearing reflete, 30h sitem, and block shear failure. Additional testing of existing brace speciments readd by antipeted in order to include additional model degradation mechanisms in the conducted in order to include additional model degradation study.

As well, examinating trass shears calculated with the 2010 National Building Code of Canada except these calculated ating the 1965 code, diapimgm strengthening may be required for men existing buildings. As suggested by Carneo-Juliano (2012), studying the sixteen one-storey buildings in this study with a dispension retrofit would be valuable (or comparison to the unminifered cost.

Additionality, it was each that the forest and betwandfost of an example building validated using dynamic modul analysis as calined in the NBCC 2010, and assuming "conventional conservation" may be too than that using a nonlinear analysis. This may imply that he force notification to the torsuscenced in the case of conventional construction may not be replicable to all believing cases (m), our fuelding was studied for this case, and for such a construction to be drawn to server additional research to old be and for such a construction to be drawn to server additional research hould be

0.5

Bibliography

- Atkinson, G. M. (2009). "Earthquake Time Histories Compatible with the 2005 National Building Code of Canada Uniform Hazard Spectrum." Canadian Journal of Civil Engineering, 36: 991-1000.
- Bruneau, M., Uang, C., Whittaker, A. (1998). Ductile Design of Steel Structures. New York: McGraw-Hill .
- Caruso-Juliano, A. (2012). "Performance of Seismically Deficient Existing Braced Steel Frame Structures with Flexible Diaphragms." M.Eng., McGill University, Montreal, QC.
- Castonguay, P. (2010). "Seismic Performance of Concentrically Braced Steel Frames of the Conventional Construction Category." M. Eng., École Polytechnique, Montreal, QC.
- CSA. (1940). S16-1940 Standard Specification for Steel Structures for Buildings. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Engineering Standards Association.
- CSA. (1954). S16-1954 Specification for Steel Structures for Buildings. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards Association.
- CSA. (1965). S16-1965 Steel Structures for Buildings. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards Association.
- CSA. (1974). Steel Structures for Buildings Limit States Design. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards Association.
- CSA. (1978). Steel Structures for Buildings Limit States Design. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards Association.
- CSA. (1984). Steel Structures for Buildings (Limit States Design). Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards Association.
- CSA. (1989). Limit States Design of Steel Structures. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards Association.
- CSA. (1994). Limit States Design of Steel Structures. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards Association.
- CSA. (2001). Limit States Design of Steel Structures. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards Association.

Fiblicaraphy

(Linger)

- Addresse, G. M. (2009). "Earthquake Fine Histories Compatible with the 2005 National Building Cost of Canada Uniform Hozard Spectrum." Canadian Journal of Civil Eacherman 56, 991-1000
 - Bruncau, M. Hang, C. Whitniker, A. (1998). Ducitle Design of Steel Structures, New York-Lethewelful
- Conno-Juliano, A. (2012), "Parformance of Saismically Deficient Existing Bulced Steel Fampe Strummes with Flexible Dispinsions," M.Eng., McGill University, Mattewd. Off
- Castonentsy, P. (2010). "Science Performance of Concentrically Braced Steel Frances of the Conventional Construction Category," M. Eng., École Polytechnique,
- CSA. (1940). S16-1940 Standard Specification for Steel Structures for Buildings. Ottawa, ON: Croadian Engineering Standards Association.
- CSA. (1954). SLo-1924 Specification for Steel Structures for Buildings. Othewa, ON
- CSA. (1963) S16-1965 Steel Structures for Buildings. Ottawa, ON: Casadian Standards Association:
- CSA. (1974). Steel Structures for Buildings Llanit States Design. Origina, ON: Canadian Standards Association
- CSA. (1978). Steel Structures for Beridlers Limit States Design. Ottawa, ON: Canadian Structure Association.
- CSA. (1984). Stored Structures for Buildings (Limit States Design). Ottawa, ON: Canadian Semilarda Association.
 - source of the second states in a second state of the second states and t
 - CSA. (1994.) Little Stands Healph of Starl Strictures. Ottawa, OM: Canadian Stindards.
 - CSA, (2001), Limit States Design of Steel Structures, Ottawa, ON: Canadian Standards

CSA. (2009). Design of Steel Structures. Toronto, ON: Canadian Standards Association. CSSBI. (2006). Design of Steel Deck Diaphragms, 3rd ed. Cambridge, ON: Canadian

Sheet Steel Buildings Institute.

- CISC. (1967). Handbook of Steel Construction. Toronto, ON: Canadian Institute of Steel Construction.
- CISC. (2009). Handbook of Steel Construction. Markham, ON: Canadian Institute of Steel Construction.
- FEMA. (2007). FEMA 461: Interim Testing Protocols for Determining the Seismic Performance Characteristics of Structural and Nonstructural Components. Washington, D.C.: Federal Emergency Management Agency.
- FEMA. (2009). FEMA P695: Quantification of building seismic performance factors. Washington, D.C.: Federal Emergency Management Agency.
- Graitec. (2010). Advance Design America. Longueil, QC: Graitec Inc.
- Hartley, J. (2011). "Performance and Retrofit of Seismically Deficient Existing Braced Steel Frame Structures: Testing of Brace Connections from Existing Concentrically Braced Steel Frames." M. Eng., McGill, Montreal.
- Jiang, Y., Balazadeh-Minouei, Y., Tremblay, R., Koboevic, S., & Tirca, L. (2011). "Seismic Assessment of Existing Steel Braced Frames Designed in Accordance with the 1980 Canadian Code Provisions." Paper presented at the STESSA, Santiago, Chile.
- Jin, J., & El-Tawil, S. (2003). "Inelastic Cyclic Model for Steel Braces." Journal of Engineering Mechanics, 129(5): 548-557.
- Lamarche, C., Proulx, J., Paultre, P., Turek, M., Ventura, C. E., Le, T. P., & Lévesque, C. (2009). "Toward a Better Understanding of the Dynamic Characteristics of Single-Storey Braced Steel Frame Buildings in Canada." Canadian Journal of Civil Engineering, 36: 969-979.
- Lee, H. J., Aschheim, M. A., & Kuchma, D. (2007). "Interstory Drift Estimates for Low-Rise Flexible Diaphragm Structures." Engineering Structures, 29: 1375-1397.
- McGuire, R. K. (2004). "Seismic hazard and risk analysis." Earthquake Engineering Research Institute, Oakland, CA.

CSA. (2009) Design of Steel Screenes, Torono, ON: Canodian Studards Association, CSSBL (2006), Design of Stabil Deck Displications, 3rd ed. Cambridge, ON: Canodian, Steel Steel Buildings Institute

- CISC. (1967). Handbook of Stord Construction. Teronto, ON: Canadian Institute of Stord
 - CISC. (2009) Handbook of Stoel Continuetion Needhim, ON: Canadian Institute of Steel Construction.

PEMA. (2007) FEMA 461: Includ Factor Protects for Determining the Southic Performance Characteristics of Statute est and Nonstructural Components.

Washington, Dr.C.: Renoral Emergency Management Agency.

Hunley, J. (2011). "Performance and Report of Sciencelly Deficient Existing Brook

Steel Prime Statutos: Leslug of Brace Connections from Existing

Concentrically Needed Steel France 7 M. Ling , McGull, Montreal.

Hang, Y., Balazadah éd(nunci, Y., Bremitsky, R., Kohoevic, S., & Liza, L. (2011). "Science Assessment of Patring Stept Brood Primes Designed in Accordance with the 1984 Canadian Code Revisions." Apply presented at the STESSA. Services of Kitle

Sin J., & El-Tawit S. (2003). "Inductic Cyclic Model for Steel Braces." Journal of

I ministe C., Freniz, J. Paulie, F. Tuek, M. Ventan, C. E., Le, T. P., & Levesque, (2009), "Toward a Scitter Understaaling of the Dynamic Characteristics of Single-Starry Baard Soci Frence Indultance in Canada " Canadian Journal of Co.il Parimentage 36: 500,000

Lee, H. F. Assobiéres, M. A., & Euchnes, D. 2007). "Interatory Drift Estimates for Low (Ast Illusion: Dimbinson Structures." Environming Structures, 29: 1375-1397, McGuine, R. S. (2004). "Estantic for aid and rich melysis." Earthquake Environming.

- Medhekar, M. S., & Kennedy, D. J. L. (1999). "Seismic Evaluation of Single-Storey Steel Buildings." Canadian Journal of Civil Engineering, 26(4): 379-394.
- Mitchell, D., Paultre, P., Tinawi, R., Saatcioglu, M., Tremblay, R., Elwood, K., . . . DeVall, R. (2010). "Evolution of Seismic Design Provisions in the National Building Code of Canada." Canadian Journal of Civil Engineering, 37: 1157-1170.
- Morrison, T. (2012). "Performance and Retrofit of Seismically Deficient Existing Braced Steel Frame Structures." Doctor of Philosophy, McGill, Montreal.
- NEHRP Consultants Joint Venture. (2010). "Evaluation of the FEMA P-695 Methodology for

Quantification of Building Seismic Performance Factors." Gaithersburg, MD: National Institute of Standards and Technology.

NRCAN. (2011). Earthquake Map of Canada. Natural Resources Canada.

NRCC. (1941). National Building Code of Canada 1941. Ottawa, ON: Associate Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1953). National Building Code of Canada 1953. Ottawa, ON: Associate Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1960). National Building Code of Canada 1960. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1965). National Building Code of Canada 1965. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1970). National Building Code of Canada 1970. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1975). National Building Code of Canada 1975. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1977). National Building Code of Canada 1977. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1980). National Building Code of Canada 1980. Ottawa, ON: Associate Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1985). National Building Code of Canada 1985. Ottawa, ON: Associate Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda. Meditalian M. S. & Edmody, D. & E. (1999). "Science Evaluation of Single-Storey Steel

Altchell. D. Faulta: P., Tanani, R., Santcioglu, M., Tamblay, R., Elwood, K., Envirolt: R. (2010). "Evolution of Scientic Design Provisions in the National Fault ng Code of Canada." Canadian Journal of Civil Engineering 37: 1157-

Monison, F. (2012), "Ferformance and Retrofft of Scientically Deficient Existing Brace, Sole Fearre Structures." Doctor of Philosophy. McGill, Montreal. MEHRF Constitutes Infat Volume, (2010), "Evaluation of the FEMA P-695."

Quantification of Bulkling Science Performance Factors," Gaithersburg, MD:

NRCAN, (2011). Endagravia May or Canada Mannai Resources Canada.
NRCC. (1941). Barlione Building Code of Canada 1941. Otawa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Namenal Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.
NRCC. (1955). Mathema Building Code of Canada 1953. Otawa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Matemat Building Code, Mational Research Council of Canda.
NRCC. (1955). Mathema Building Code of Canada 1960. Otawa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Matemat Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.
NRCC. (1955). Mathema Building Code of Canada 1960. Otawa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Matemat Building Code of Canada 1960. Otawa, ON: Associate
NRCC. (1956). Mathema Building Code of Canada 1966. Bittwa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Matemat Building Code Antonal Research Council of Canda.
NRCC. (1976). Mathema Building Code of Canada 1978. Otawa, ON: Associate
NRCC. (1976). Mathema Building Code of Canada 1978. Otawa, ON: Associate
NRCC. (1976). Mathema Building Code of Canada 1978. Otawa, ON: Associate
NRCC. (1977). National Building Code of Canada 1978. Otawa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Matemat Building Code (National Research Council of Canda.
NRCC. (1977). National Building Code of Canada 1977. Otawa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Matemat Building Code. National Research Council of Canda.
NRCC. (1972). National Building Code of Canada 1977. Otawa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Matemat Building Code. National Research Council of Canda.
NRCC. (1982). Partional Builting Code of Canada 1977. Otawa, ON: Associate
Committee on the Matematical Research Council of Canada 1977. Otawa, ON: Associate
NRCC. (1982). Partional Builting Code Of Canada 1977. Otawa, ON: Associate
NRCC. (1982). National Builting Code Of Canada 1977. Otawa, ON: Associate
NRCC. (1982). National Builting Cod

NRCC. (1990). National Building Code of Canada 1990. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

NRCC. (1995). National Building Code of Canada 1995. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda. NRCC. (2005). National Building Code of Canada 2005. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda. NRCC. (2010). National Building Code of Canada 2010. Ottawa, ON: Associate

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

OpenSees. 2011. Open System for Earthquake Engineering Simulation. Pacific Earthquake Engineering Research Center. University of California, Berkeley: California, available at http://opensees.berkeley.edu/.

- Roeder, C. W., Lehman, D. E., Clark, K., Powell, J., Yoo, J., Tsai, K., . . . Wei, C. (2011).
 "Influence of Gusset Plate Connections and Braces on the Seismic Performance of X-Braced Frames." Earthquake Engineering and Structural Dynamics, 40: 355-374.
- Tremblay, R. (2002). "Inelastic seismic response of bracing members." Journal of Constructional Steel Research, 58: 665-701.
- Tremblay, R., Archambault, M.-H., & Filiatrault, A. (2003). "Seismic response of concentrically braced steel frames made with rectangular hollow bracing members." Journal of Structural Engineering, ASCE, 129(12): 1626-1636.
- Tremblay, R., Bruneau, M., Nakashima, M., Prion, H. G. L., Filiatrault, A., & DeVall, R. (1996). "Seismic Design of Steel Buildings: Lessons from the 1995 Hyogo-ken Nanbu Earthquake." Canadian Journal of Civil Engineering, 23: 727-756.
- Tremblay, R., Castonguay, P.X., Guilini-Charette, K., & Koboevic, S. (2009). "Seismic performance of conventional construction braced steel frames designed according to Canadian seismic provisions." Proc. 2009 ASCE Structures Congress, Austin, TX, 341, 87.
- Tremblay, R., Rogers, C., Lamarche, C.-P., Nedisan, C., Franquet, J., Massarelli, R., & Shrestha, K. (2008). "Dynamic Seismic Testing of Large Size Steel Deck Diaphragm for Low-Rise Building Applications." Paper presented at the The 14th World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, Beijing, China.

NRCC. (1990) Mailand Building Code of Canada 1990. Ottawa, ON: Associate Committee on the Material Building Code of Canada 1995. Ottawa, ON: Associate NRCC. (1995) Material Building Code of Canada 1995. Ottawa, ON: Associate Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda.

Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda. MRCC. (2010). National Building Code of Cranda 2010. Ottawa, ON: Associate Committee on the National Building Code, National Research Council of Canda. OpenSues. 2011. Open System for Excluduate Engineering Simulation. Pacific Earliquate Englacering Research Course, University of California, Beckeley:

Roeder, C. W., Lehman, D. E.; Clark, K., Powell, J., Yoo, J., Tsai, K.,... Wei, C. (2011). "Influence of Oresed Plane Connections and Braces on the Seismic Performance of X-Braced Frames." Livit qualecting and Structural Dynamics, 40: 355-

Frembley, R. (2002). "Inclastic existing response of bracing members." Journal of Constructional Steel Research, 58: 065-701.

Tranblag, F., Archamball, M. H. & Hintanill, A. (2001). "Science encodered of concentration broad steel fieldes made with rectangular hollow bracing members." Journal of Structural Ingineering. ASGR, 129(12): 1626-1636. Tremblag, R., Brancatt, M., Makashara, M., Price, H. G. L., Filinmult, A., & DeVall, R. (1996). "Science Passign of Steel Buildings, Lessons from the 1995 Hyogo-ken

Nanba Ferriquele, "Caradian Journal of Creat Engineering, 251 727-150. Treatiblize, R., Cestergarge P.X., Galilei-Charatte, E., & Koboevie, S. (2009), "Seismic performance of conventional construction braced neel frames designed according on Cerodian version provisions," Proc. 2009 ASCE Structures Congress, Austin,

Frenchley, B., Kogers, C., Ladrarche, C., P., Nedesmi, C., Franquet, J., Massarelli, R., & Shasaho, K. (2009). "Dynamic Saismic Testing of Large Size Steel Deck, Diaphrogen for Low Rese Beilding Applications." Paper presented at the The 14th World Continence on Earthquarke Engineering, Briging, China.

- Tremblay, R., & Rogers, C. A. (2005). "Impact of Capacity Design Provisions and Period Limitations on the Seismic Design of Low-Rise Steel Buildings." Steel Structures (5): 1-22.
- Tremblay, R., & Rogers, C. A. (2011). "Seismic Design of Low-Rise Steel Buildings with Flexible Steel Roof Deck Diaphragms: a Canadian Perspective." Paper presented at the The 6th International Conference on Thin Walled Structures, Timisoara, Romania.
- Tremblay, R., & Stiemer, S. F. (1996). "Seismic Behavior of Single-Storey Steel Structures with a Flexible Roof Diaphragm." Canadian Journal of Civil Engineering, 23: 49-62.
- Tremblay, R., Timler, P., Bruneau, M., & Filiatrault, A. (1995). "Performance of Steel Structures during the 1994 Northridge Earthquake." Canadian Journal of Civil Engineering, 22: 338-360.
- UBC (1935). Uniform Building Code 1935. International Conference of Building Officials (ICBO), Long Beach, California.
- Uriz, P., & Mahin, S. A. (2004). "Seismic Performance Assessment of Concentrically Braced Frames." Paper presented at the 13th World Conference on Earthquake Engineering, Vancouver, Canada.

- Trendsing, R., & Bagers, C. A. (2005), "Impact of Capacity Design Provisions and Period Limitations on the Sciencic Besign of Low-Rise Steel Buildings." Steel Structures
- Fremhlay, R., & Borgery, C. A. (2011) Science Design of Low-Rise Steel Buildings with Budf-to Steel Roof Deck Dischargms: a Canadian Perspective." Paper presented at the the of clusterine local Conference on Thin Walled Structures, Timiscare, Romania.
 - Frembley, R., & Summer, S. F. (1996): "Science Ballavior of Single-Storey Steel Structures with a Elexible Roof Diaphragm." Canadian Johnnal of Civil Engineering, 27-49-62
 - Fremblay, R. Timere P. Emission, M., & Philaballi, A. (1995), "Performance of Sterio Structures dation 1994 Monthridge Earlbquate," Canadian Journal of Civil Eaglescone, 12: 332-360
 - (IBC (1933). Uniform Building Code 1935. International Conference of Building Officials (ICBO). Long Uench. California.
 - Urits, P., & Mahin, S. A. (2014), "Sciencic Performance Assessment of Concentrically Braced Function, Paper presented at the 13th World Conference on Europulie Environmenta, Vancouver, Canada.

Appendix A

Design of building 7H for 1965 National Building Code of Canada (NRCC 1965) and CSA-S16-65 (CSA 1965).

, 1. M.

Appendix A

Ocsign of building 711 for 1965 Mathemi Building Code of Canada (MRCC 1965) and

	CALCULATION SHEET	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG
CLIENT: NA	PREPARED: A.G.	PAGE OF
PROJECT: 7H - 30MX60M	CODE: CSA S16-1965	
SUBJECT: Basic Loads -1965	DATE:	1 2

HALIFAX Location:





, 1.50 31.25

28.13 ext column

Dead Load

4 Ply Ashphalt + Gra	avel	0.32
100 mm Rigid Foam	1	0.03
12.5 mm Gypsum		0.10
0.91 mm Steel Deck Ductwork		0.10 0.25
Fire Protection		0.07
Joists		0.10
Beams	Total (kPa)	0.15 1.12
	Total (psf)	23.33
Snow Load		

S (psf) = 36.04 S (kPa) = 1.73

Assumption Exterior Walls (kPa)

Exterior Walls (psf)

	TRANS & A TAURADE AS

CANLING - RELIGIO



Line Adversion 2 A

.

20.00

final wire W where a

	CALCULATION	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG
CLIENT: NA	PREPARE A.G.	PAGE OF
PROJECT: 30MX60M	CODE: CSA S16-1965	
SUBJECT: Basic Loads -1965	DATE:	2 2

Climatic Data - Wind Load (Supplement 1 NBCC 1965)

v (mph)	90.0			
q (psf)	21.87			
Ch	1.00			
Cp	0.85			
q _w (psf)	18.590	q _w (kPa)	0.892	
V _x (kip)	21	V _x (kN)	94	
V _z (kip)	42	$V_z(kN)$	187	

Climatic Data - Seismic Load (Supplement 1 NBCC 1965)

R	2.00							
С	1.25							
1	1.00							
FS	1.00							
S	0.025							
к	0.0625							
V _{x/z} (kip)	42				$V_{x/z}(kN)$, 185		
1 - storey :	$h_{n}(m) =$	7						
Area :	$A(m^2) =$	1800						
Perimeter:	P (m) =	180						
W ₁ (kip) =	666	Single-Storey			W1 (kN) =	2961	Single-St	orey
	-	_						
	V _{x/brace}	V _{x/brace}	T _{f/brace}					
	(kN)	(kip)	(kN)	(kip)				
	93.7	21.1	128.2	28.8				
	WIND GOV	/ERNS						

Early 2011 / Tearly and the at his work School 2

(Denter Date: Anter-Sectors (Summerson, 1 Will's 1965)

.

With the state of the state of

- 2







-part

•

		c	CALCULATION SHEET				
CLIENT:	NA	PREPARED: A.C	3			PAGE	
PROJECT:	7H - 30MX60M	CODE: CSA S1	6-1965				
SUBJECT: Column at bracing -1965	5	DATE:				1	
F,	44 kal						
E	29000 kal						
$A_{\uparrow}(ft^2)$	303 (for	exterior column)	q_ (psf)	18.59	*		
DL =	7.06 kip		t, (ft)	24.61	Tributary	width wind load	
SL #	10.91 kip		H (ft)	22.97	-		
WL =	19.66 kip		w_ (lb/ft)	457.42			
EL =	19.41 kip						
1. 1.0 DL + 1.0 SL	C, =	17.97 kip					
2a. 1.0 DL + 1.0 WL	C1 =	26.72 kip	M _{w.s} (kip-ft)	30.16			
2b. 1.0 DL + 1.0 EL	C, =	30.33 klp					
3a. 0.75 (DL + SL + WL)	C, =	28.22 kip	M _{w.x} (kip-ft)	22.62			
3b. 0.75 (DL + SL + EL)	C _t =	37.49 kip					
Column Selection:	8WYF35	•	Compact section				
A	10.30 in	2					
b	8.03 ir		0.493	in			
d	8.12 ir		0.315	in			
l,	126 in	. 7	42.5	in*			
S,	31.1 in	S _y	. 10.6	in ³			
Γ _X	3.5 ir		2.03	in			
Z,	34.7 in						
AXIAL COMPRESSION:			AXIAL COMP	RESSION	+ BENDIN	IG;	
ĸ	1.0		A.,	3.96	in ²		
K,	1.0		L	276	in	Unsuported length	
			r, (in)	2.22	in	of tee section	
(kL/r),	79 O	<	1. 811.14				
(kL/r),	136 OI		FM	29.04	ksi		
Turne W	100 01		FM	21.23	ksi		
C.	20.0		Fe	21.23	ksi		
C _e	96.09		F.	24.03	ksi	Bending in x-axis	
m	0.135			24.00	, Alar	Dougang at vedyin	
	0.100		For fJ/F_ < 0.15	5:		For f ₂ /F _x > 0.15:	
F.	8.08 ksi						

3b. 0.75 (DL + SL + EL) is worst case for axial load only f_s 3.64 ksi

t/F.

0.450 < 1.00 OK



OF

2a. 1.0 DL + 1.0 WL $f_b = f_b$ 11.64 kai f_s/F_w 0.32 0.94 < 1.00

 $\frac{f_a}{F_a} + \frac{f_b'}{F_b} \leq 1.0$

OK

3a. 0.75 (DL + SL + WL) f₀ = f₀ 8.73 ksi f₂/F_{*} 0.34

0.80 < 1.00 OK

		14 A.S.	

			CALCULATION				PROJECT NO.: M.ENG	
CLIENT:	NA	PREPARED:	A.G.					
PROJECT:	7H - 30MX60	M CODE: CSA	S16-1965			PAGE	OF	
SUBJECT:		DATE:	DATE:					
XTERIOR Column -196						1		
	44 ks 29000 ks							
	2000 Ka							
$h_{tr}(ft^2)$	303 (fr	or exterior column)	q_ (psf)	18.59	*			
)L =	7.06 kip	1	t_ (ft)	24.61	Tributary w	idth wind load		
L =	10.91 kip		H (ft)	22.97				
VL =	kip		w. (ib/ft)	457.42				
L =	kip							
1.0 DL + 1.0 SL	C,	= 17.97 kip						
2a. 1.0 DL + 1.0 WL	C,	= 7.06 kip	M _{w.x} (kip-ft)	30.16				
b. 1.0 DL + 1.0 EL	Ct	= 10.91 kip						
a. 0.75 (DL + SL + WL)	C,	= 13.48 kip	M _{w.x} (kip-ft)	22.62				
b. 0.75 (DL + SL + EL)	Cr	= 8.18 kip						
Column Selection:	BWF31	*	Compact section					
	9.12	in ²						
	8.00	in t	0.433	in				
	8.00	in w	0.288	in				
		in L	37.0	in ⁴				
h.	27.4	in ³ S _y	. 9.2	in ³				
	3.47	in t _y	2.01	in				
	30.4	in ^o						
XIAL COMPRESSION:			AXIAL COMP	DESSION				
AIAL COMPRESSION:			AAIAL COMP	RESSION				
	1.0		A _{to}	3.46	in ²			
y	1.0		L	276	in	Unsuported length		
			r _t (in)	2.20	in	of tee section		
(kL/r),		OK						
(kL/r),	137	DK	F _M	29.04	ksi			
			Fbo	18.85	ksi			
0	20.0		Fb	18.85	ksi			
2	96.09		F.'	23.62	ksi	Bending in x-axis		
	0.135		For UE + 0.44			For L/E > 0.15		
	7.93 ksi		For f / F ₂ ≤ 0.15			For fg/Fs > 0.15:		
			f_a , f_b'	< 1.0		fe fo	≤ 1.0	
1.0 DL + 1.0 SL	1.97 ksi	for axial load only	$\frac{f_a}{F_a} + \frac{f_b}{F_b}$	5 1.0		$\frac{f_*}{F_*} + \frac{f_b'}{F_b(f_*/F_*')}$	51.0	
					-			
'Fa	0.249	< 1.00	2a. 1.0 DL + 1					
	OK		$f_{\rm b} = f_{\rm b}$	13.21	ksi			
			f_/F_	0.10				

 $\frac{J_a}{F_a} + \frac{J_b}{F_b} \le 1.0$ $\frac{J_a}{F_a} + \frac{J_b}{F_b} \le 1.0$

2a. 1.0 DL + 1.0 WL $f_b = f_0$ 13.21 kai f_s/F_a 0.10 0.80 < 1.00 OK

3a. 0.75 (DL + SL + WL) f₀ = f₀ 9.91 ksi f₂/F_a 0.19

0.75 < 1.00 OK

			CALCULATION SHEET					PROJECT NO.: M.ENG	
CLIENT:	NJ		PREPARED:	A.G.			PAGE	OF	
PROJECT:	7H - 30M	X60M	CODE: 0	SA S16-1965					
SUBJECT: INTERIOR Column -1965	5		DATE:				1	1	
F,	50]kai							
E	29000								
A ₇ (ft ²)			terior column)		q_ (paf)	18.59			
DL =	14.13				L (ft) [H (ft)	0.00 7	fributary width wind load		
SL = WL =	21.82	kip			w_ (lb/ft)	0.00			
EL =		kip				0.00			
A DERIVE AND DR									
1. 1.0 DL + 1.0 SL		C. =	35.95 kip						
2a. 1.0 DL + 1.0 WL		C _t =	14.13 kip		M _{w.x} (kip-ft)	0.00			
2b. 1.0 DL + 1.0 EL		C ₇ =	21.82 kip						
3a. 0.75 (DL + SL + WL)		C. =	26.96 kip		M _{w.x} (kip-ft)	0.00			
36. 0.75 (DL + SL + EL)		C _y =	16.37 kip						
Column Selection:	н	SS 6345400.1	88 💌	Non-compac	t section				
A	4.28	in ²							
b	6.00	in							
d t	6.00 0.188	in							
	0.100								
r,	2.36	in							
r _y	2.36	in							
AXIAL COMPRESSION:									
k	1.0	٦							
k,	1.0	1					1		
7	1.0	-							
(kL/r),	116.78	OK							
(kL/r),	116.78	OK							
C.	20.0								
C _p	87.95								
m	0.158								
F.	10.93	ksi							
			axial load only						
6	8.40	kei							
UF.	0.769	<	1.00	OK					
-2

			0	SHEET			PROJECT NO .: M.EN
CLIENT:	NA	PREPARE	D: A	LG.			PAGE
PROJECT:	7H - 30MX60M	CODE:	CSA S	16-1965			PAGE
SUBJECT:		DATE:					1
EXT Beam -1965							
F,	44 ksi						
E	29000 ksi						
						×	
L_(ft)	12.30						
DL =	287.07 Ib/ft						
SL =	443.43 lb/ft						
1. 1.0 DL + 1.0 SL	w _f =	7	30 lb/ft				
L (ft)	24.61						
M _x (kip-ft)	55.29						
4>	102.51 in ⁴	6	FOR ∆ ≤ L	/240			
Lu (ft)	6.15						
Beam Selection:	12822	-		Compact section			
A	6.47 in ²						
b	4.03 in		t	0.42	4 in		
d	12.31 in		w	0.26			
l _x	156 in		l _y	3.67			
Sx	25.3 in ³		Sy	1.83			
fx .	4.91 in		ry	0.81	in		
Zx	24.8 in ³						
BENDING:							
DERDITO:							
Ar	1.7087 in ²					,	
L	0 in	Unsuported					
r _t (in)	1.02 in	of tee section	n				
Fw	29.04 ksi						
F _{b0}	29.04 ksi						
F _b	29.04 ksi						
$f_{\rm b} = f_{\rm b}$	26.22 ksi						
°⊌/F₀	0.90 <	1.00	(ок			

OF

			TORONA	
	.5			

			CA	SHEET	4		PROJECT NO .: M.EN	
CLIENT:	NA		PREPARED: A.G.				PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	7H - 30MX	60M	CODE: CSA S16-	1965				
SUBJECT:			DATE:				1	3
INT GERBER Beam	-1965				_			
F,	44]ksi						
E	29000							
						140		
L_(ft)	24.61							
DL =	574.15							
SL =	886.85							
1. 1.0 DL + 1.0 SL		w _f =	1461 lb/ft					
2. 1.0 DL + 0,50 SL		Wt =	1018 lb/ft					
BEAM - SIMPLY SU	PPORTED:							
L c/c (ft)	24.61							
Gerber ext. (ft) L (ft)	3.61							
L (11)	11.00					A		
$M_{x}(kip-ft)$	55.22	2				Î	T	
R _x (kip)	12.70					-		
l _x >	72.35		FOR & s L/2	40				
Lu (ft)	6.15	5				17	.39 ft	
Beam Selection:	12822		v	Compact section				
A	6.47	in ²						
ь	4.03	in	t	0.424	in			
d	12.31	in	w	0.260	in			
l _x	156	in4	OK Iy	3.67	in ⁴			
Sx	25.3	in ³	Sy	1.83	ina	,		
r _x	4.91	in	ry	0.81	in	1		
Z _x	24.8	ina						
BENDING:								
PL. ISING		1						
Ak	1.7087							
L	0	in	Unsuported length					
r _t (in)	1.02	in	of tee section					
FM	29.04	ksi						
Fix Fixe	29.04	ksi						
Fb	29.04	ksi						
$f_{\rm b} = f_{\rm b}$	26.19	ksi						
0 0								
fy/Fb	0.90	> <	1.00 OK					

a fann

		44 - 44 - 54 - 54 - 54 - 54 - 54 - 54 -	

					HEET	N		PROJECT NO.: M.ENG	
CLIENT:	NA	PR	EPARED:	A.G.				PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	30MX60M	co	DDE: C	SA S16-1965					
SUBJECT:		DA	TE:					2	3
NT GERBER Beam	-1965								-
							P		
CANTILIVER BEAM	1:								
L c/c (ft)	24.61								
Gerber ext. (ft)							4		
Load case (1) - 1.0 D				A		A			
P (kip)	12.70			1		1			
M _{x (+)} (kip-ft)	82.90			< 24.1	61 ft	→< → 3.6	1.6		
M _{x (+)} (kip-ft)	55.36					5.0			
and man they. I will									
Load case (2a) - 1.0 [cantilive	r and 1.0 DL +0.5	0 SL on cente	r span				
P (kip)	12.70								
M _{x (+)} (kip-ft)	49.34								
M _{x (-)} (kip-ft)	55.36								
P (kip)	8.85								
M _{k (+)} (kip-ft)	91.30								
M _{x (-)} (kip-ft)	38.55								
				C	act section		,		
-			*	Compa	ict section				
Beam Selection:	14WF30								
A	8.81	in ²							
A	8.81 6.73	in	t		0.383	in			
A b d	8.81 6.73 13.86	in in	w		0.383 0.270	in			
A b d	8.81 6.73 13.86 290	in in in ⁴	w Iy		0.383 0.270 17.5	in in ⁴			
A b d S _x	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8	in in in ⁴ In ³	w Iy Sy		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2	in in ⁴ In ³			
A d Is Sx	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73	in in in ⁴ in ³	w Iy		0.383 0.270 17.5	in in ⁴			
A d Is Sx	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8	in in in ⁴ In ³	w Iy Sy		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2	in in ⁴ In ³			
A b d s, s, z,	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73	in in in ⁴ in ³	w Iy Sy		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2	in in ⁴ In ³			
A b d s, s, r, z, BENDING:	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1	in in ⁴ in ³ in in ³	w Iy Sy		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2	in in ⁴ In ³			
A b d d, S, F, Z, BENDING:	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1 2.5776	in in in ⁴ in in ³ in ³	W I _y S _y r _y		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2	in in ⁴ In ³			
A b d d, S, F, Z, BENDING:	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1	in in in ⁴ in in ³ in ³	w Iy Sy		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2	in in ⁴ In ³			
A b d ls Sr Zr BENDING: A _{ls} fr (in)	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1 2.5776 1.75 in	in in in ⁴ in in in of	w I ₇ S _y r ₇		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2	in in ⁴ in in			
A b d la Sa cr Za BENDING: A _{te} fr ₁ (in) L	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1 2.5776 1.75 in 43 in	in in in ⁴ in ³ in ⁷ of Un	W I _y S _y r _y		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2 1.41	in in ⁴ in ³ in noment 0	in	Unsuported length	
A b d ls S, T, Z, BENDING: A _k f, (in) (a) Negative moment F _{it}	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1 2.5776 1.75 in 43 in 29.04 ks	in in in ⁴ in in r ⁷ of Un ai	w I ₇ S _y r ₇		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2 1.41 (b) Postive m L	in in ⁴ in ³ in norment 0 29.04	ksi	Unsuported length	
A b d ls S , r, Z , BENDING: A _k r, (in) (a) Negative moment L F _{ik} F _{ik}	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1 2.5776 1.75 in 43 in	in in in ⁴ in in r ⁷ of Un ai	w I ₇ S _y r ₇		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2 1.41 (b) Postive m L F _M F _{IM}	in in ⁴ in ³ in 0 29.04 29.04	ksi ksi	Unsuported length	
Beam Selection: A b d s, r, Z, BENDING: Ae ₆ r(in) (a) Negative moment L Fix Fix Fix	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1 2.5776 1.75 in 43 in 29.04 ks	in in in in in in in of Un il id	w I ₇ S _y r ₇		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2 1.41 (b) Postive m L	in in ⁴ in ³ in norment 0 29.04	ksi	Unsuported length	
A b d ls S , r, Z , BENDING: A _k r, (in) (a) Negative moment L F _{ik} F _{ik}	8.81 6.73 13.86 290 41.8 5.73 47.1 2.5776 1.75 in 43 in 29.04 ks 29.04 ks	in in in in in in in in of Un al al al	w I ₇ S _y r ₇		0.383 0.270 17.5 5.2 1.41 (b) Postive m L F _M F _{IM}	in in ⁴ in ³ in 0 29.04 29.04	ksi ksi	Unsuported length	

			111
*		1 . C.M	

				(HEET	DN			PROJECT NO.: M.ENG	
CLIENT:	NA		PREPARED:	1	LG.						~
PROJECT:	30MX60M		CODE:	CSA S	16-1965					PAGE	OF
SUBJECT:			DATE:							3	3
NT GERBER Beam	-1965		DATE.								
CANTILIVER BEAM	2:		I P					1.5			
L. c/c (ft)	24.61		10.00 A.C.								
Gerber ext. (ft)	3.61										
.oad case (1) - 1.0 D	L + 1.0 SL		*	Ą			Á	4			
P (kip)	12.70			1							
M _{x (+)} (kip-ft)	55.22		~	×			×	\rightarrow			
M _{x (-)} (kip-ft)	55.36		3.61		24	.61 ft	3.6	1 ft			
.oad case (2a) - 1.0 [DL + 1.0 SL o	n canti	liver and 1.0 D	L +0.50 SI	on cent	er span					
P (kip)	12.70										
M _{x (*)} (kip-ft)	21.66										
M _{x(-)} (kip-ft)	55.36										
P (kip)	0L + 0.50 SL 8.85 72.02	on can	tiliver and 1.0	DL +1.0 S	on cent	er span					
.oad case (2b) - 1.0 [P (kip) M _{x (*)} (kip-ft) M _{x (*)} (kip-ft)	8.85	on can	tiliver and 1.0	DL +1.0 S	on cent	er span					
P (kip) M _{x (1)} (kip-ft)	8.85 72.02	on can	tiliver and 1.0	DL +1.0 S	on cent	er span					
P (kip) M _{x (1)} (kip-ft)	8.85 72.02	on can	tiliver and 1.0	DL +1.0 S		er span					
$\begin{array}{l} P\left(kip\right)\\ M_{x\left(*\right)}(kip\text{-}ft)\\ M_{x\left(*\right)}(kip\text{-}ft) \end{array}$	8.85 72.02 38.55	on can		DL +1.0 S				,			
$\begin{array}{l} P\left(kip\right)\\ M_{x\left(*\right)}(kip\text{-}ft)\\ M_{x\left(*\right)}(kip\text{-}ft) \end{array}$	8.85 72.02 38.55	on can		DL +1.0 S				,			
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection:	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02	in ² in		t		act section 0.418	in	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(r)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(r)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection:	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89	in ² in in		t w		act section 0.418 0.255	in	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection:	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243	in ² in in in		t w ly		act section 0.418 0.255 8.26		,			
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection: A_{t}	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9	in ² in in ⁴ in ³		t w ly Sy		0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29	in in ⁴	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection:	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243	in ² in in in		t w ly		act section 0.418 0.255 8.26	in in ⁴ in ³	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(r)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(r)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection:	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63	in in in in in in		t w ly Sy		0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29	in in ⁴ in ³	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(r)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(r)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection:	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63	in in in in in in		t w ly Sy		0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29	in in ⁴ in ³	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection: A_{t}	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8	in in in in in in		t w ly Sy		0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29	in in ⁴ in ³	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection:	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8	in i		t W Iy Sr Fy		0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29	in in ⁴ in ³	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection: A Sentime Selection: A Set Sentime Selection: A Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Set	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8	in i	•	t W Iy Sr Fy		0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29	in in ⁴ in ³ in	,			
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection: A S S S S S S S S S S S S S	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8 243 34.9 5.63 39.8	in ² in in in ⁴ in ³ in ²	•	t W Iy Sy Ty		0.418 0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29 1.04 (b) Postive L	in in ⁴ in in moment 0	in		Unsuported length	
P (kip) M _{x(1)} (kip-ft) M _{x(1)} (kip-ft) Beam Selection: A S S S S S S S S S S S S S	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8 243 34.9 5.63 39.8 2.0984 1.29 in 4.3 in 2.0984 k	in ² in in ⁴ in ² in ²	of tee section	t W Iy Sy Ty		0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29 1.04 (b) Postive L F _M	in in ⁴ in in moment 0 29.04	in ksi		Unsuported length	
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection: A b d a S a S a S a a S a b	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8 2.0954 1.29 in 43 in 29.04 k 29.04 k	in ² in in ⁴ in ² in ² in ²	of tee section	t W Iy Sy Ty		(b) Postive L Fis Fis Fis	in in ⁴ in ³ in 0 29.04 29.04	in ksi ksi		Unsuported length	
P (kip) M _{x(1)} (kip-ft) M _{x(2)} (kip-ft) Beam Selection: A S S S S S S S S S S S S S	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8 2.0984 1.29 in 4.3 in 2.0984 1.29 in 4.3 in 2.9.04 k k 2.9.04 k	in in ⁴ in in ³ in sisisi	of tee section	t W Iy Sy Ty		act section 0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29 1.04 (b) Розtive L F _M F _b F _b	in in ³ in moment 0 29.04 29.04	in ksi ksi		Unsuported length	
P (kip) $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ $M_{x(t)}(kip-ft)$ Beam Selection: A b d a S a S a S a a S a b	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8 2.0954 1.29 in 43 in 29.04 k 29.04 k	in in ⁴ in in ³ in sisisi	of tee section	t W Iy Sy Ty		(b) Postive L Fis Fis Fis	in in ⁴ in ³ in 0 29.04 29.04	in ksi ksi		Unsuported length	
P (kip) M _{x(1)} (kip-ft) M _{x(2)} (kip-ft) Beam Selection: A S S S S S S S S S S S S S	8.85 72.02 38.55 14826 7.65 5.02 13.89 243 34.9 5.63 39.8 2.0984 1.29 in 4.3 in 2.0984 1.29 in 4.3 in 2.9.04 k k 2.9.04 k	in in ⁴ in in ³ in sisisi	of tee section	t w ly Sy fy		act section 0.418 0.255 8.26 3.29 1.04 (b) Розtive L F _M F _b F _b	in in ³ in moment 0 29.04 29.04	in ksi ksi ksi	~	Unsuported length	ок

A REAL PROPERTY.

.

and a state of the state of the second stress of the state of the stat

NO 121 × 124 - 141 - 101 - 124

	CALCULATION SHEET	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG
CLIENT: NA	PREPARED: A.G.	PAGE OF
PROJECT: 7H - 30MX60M	CODE: CSA S16-1965	
SUBJECT: DIAP -1965	DATE:	1 2

22 GAGE - 38 MM - SIDELAP AT 600MM C/C; WELDS 3/4 IN PATTERN 36/4 DECK : 3.95 kN/m q, G 2.75 kN/mm 1875 mm L kN/m 3.1 Long Direction: $V_{x}\left(kN\right)$ 187.4 60.0 M_{max} (kNm) 1405 93,7 93.7 Feare (kN) 47 3.1 SFD 3.1 kN/m v_f = OK 3.1 $\Delta_{\mu} = \frac{PL}{AE} \cos \theta$ 5wL4 $\Delta_{S} = \frac{wL^{2}}{8G'b}$ $\Delta_F =$ 384*EI* 1.88 x10¹² mm⁴ 6.26 mm (Deflection from bracing) ۵_B 1 $\Delta_{\rm F}$ 1.40 mm 17.03 mm Δ, K_B K_D 6.26 mm 29.93 kN/mm Δ_Θ 13.57 kN/mm 18.44 mm A_D 24.70 mm From ASCE-41 for flexible diaphragms: $\sqrt{\frac{W}{V}(0.004\Delta_B + 0.0031\Delta_D)}$ T = 1.14 s $T \approx .$

From Medhekar:

$$T \approx 2\pi \sqrt{\frac{(K_B + K_D)W}{gK_B K_D}}$$

From NBCC 2010:

 $\begin{bmatrix} T \approx 0.025h_{\rm s} \end{bmatrix} \qquad \begin{array}{rcl} {\sf T}_{\sf NBCC} = & 0.18 \ {\sf s} \\ = & 0.35 \ {\sf s} \ {\sf if verified by dynamic analysis} \end{array}$

T_{medhekar} =

1.13 s

AND TOPY

Laninger annually

.

STREET STORE MANY

and the second s

odix B	CALCULATION SHEET	PROJECT NO .: M.ENG
CLIENT: NA	PREPARED: A.G.	PAGE OF
PROJECT: 7H - 30MX60M	CODE: CSA \$18-1965	
SUBJECT: DIAP -1965	DATE:	2 2

Short Direction:



$$T \approx \sqrt{\frac{W}{V}} (0.004 \Delta_B + 0.0031 \Delta_D)$$
T =

From Medhekar:

$$T \approx 2\pi \sqrt{\frac{(K_B + K_D)W}{gK_BK_D}}$$

T_{medhekar} = 0.79 s

0.78 s

From NBCC 2010:

_	_	_	_	-	-	
T	~	0	02	5	h	

0.18 s 0.35 s if verified by dynamic analysis

SUMMARY PERIODS:

	ASCE-41 for flexible diaphragms	Medhekar	NBCC 2010 (*)
	$T \approx \sqrt{\frac{W}{V} \left(0.004 \Delta_B + 0.003 \mathrm{I} \Delta_D \right)}$	$T \approx 2\pi \sqrt{\frac{(K_B + K_D)W}{gK_B K_D}}$	$T\approx 0.025 h_{*}$
Long direction:	1,14	1.13	0.18
Short direction:	0.78	0.79	0.18

T_{NBCC} =

(*) Can be multiplied by 2 if dynamic analysis is performed.

		and the second	

on the subschedby 2.4 dynamic analysis is performing.

Appendix B

IDA analysis and results of building 7H from OpenSees data.

blind to solven but sizeins AGI

	CALCULATION	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG
CLIENT: MCGILL	PREPARED: A.G.	PAGE OF
PROJECT: CBFs	CODE: NA	
SUBJECT: Failure Criteria based on testing	DATE: 2012-12-01	1 1

Failure	8. (mm)	P (kN)	L _{me} (mm)	L _{mx} (mm)	A _{sed} (mm ²)	8. PL/EA
NS 1 (38sa)	12.1	402.0	3070	228.6	1362	7.91
NS 2 (3Cs)	18.1	256.0	2880	228.6	845	14.08
NS 3 (3As)	28.1	258.6	2450	228.6	929	25.01
Bearing (D03X)	22.7	338.3	856		1858	21.92
Bolt Shear (D05X)	15.7	363.7	916		1858	14.80
Block Share (DOGN)	15.5	621.0	796		1.85.8	14.17

Structure Type Luces (mi			N	NS 1 (38sa)		NS 2 (3Cs)			NS 3 (3As)		
	Lires (mm)	Asree (mm ²)	ő, + PL/EA	%	Elong	8. + PL/EA	%	Elong	8, + PL/EA	36	Elong
1	7315	355	18.7	0.26	1.0026	25.2	0.34	1.0034	35.2	0.48	1.004
2	7071	355	18.3	0.26	1.0026	24.8	0.35	1.0035	34.8	0.49	1.004
3	8327	394	20.2	0.24	1.0024	26.7	0.32	1.0032	36.6	0.44	1.004
4	10440	523	23.3	0.22	1.0022	29.9	0.29	1.0029	39.5	0.38	1.003
5	8660	606	20.7	0.24	1.0024	27.2	0.31	1.0031-	37.1	0.43	1.004
6	10535	581	23.5	0.22	1.0022	30.0	0.29	1.0029	39.7	0.38	1.003
7	10259	768	23.0	0.22	1.0022	29.6	0.29	1.0029	39.3	0.38	1.003
8	10440	1490	23.3	0.22	1.0022	29.9	0.29	1.0029	39.5	0.38	1.003
9	9861	1490	22.5	0.23	1.0023	29.0	0.29	1.0029	38.7	0.39	1.003
10	10226	1490	23.0	0.22	1.0022	29.6	0.29	1.0029	39.2	0.38	1.003
11	11136	1490	24.3	0.22	1.0022	31.0	0.28	1.0028	40.5	0.36	1.003
12	12490	1490	26.3	0.21	1.0021	33.0	0.26	1.0026	42.4	0.34	1.003
13	10706	1490	23.7	0.22	1.0022	30.3	0.28	1.0028	39.9	0.37	1.003
14	11907	1490	25.5	0.21	1.0021	32.1	0.27	1.0027	41.6	0.35	1.003
15	12845	1852	26.9	0.21	1.0021	33.5	0.26	1.0026	42.9	0.33	1.003
16	14318	1852	29.0	0.20	1.0020	35.8	0.25	1.0025	44.9	0.31	1.003

	Bearing (D03X)					Bolt Shear (D05X)			Block Shear (D06X)		
Structure Type	L _{trace} (mm)	Atrea (mm ²)	δ _u + PL/EA	%	Elong	δ., + PL/EA	%	Elong	S, + PL/EA	%	Elong
1	7315	355	28.6	0.39	1.0039	22.0	0.30	1.0030	26.4	0.36	1.0036
2	7071	355 .	28.4	0.40	1.0040	21.7	0.31)	1.0031	26.0	0.37	1.0037
3	8327	394	29.5	0.35	1.0035	23.0	0.28	1.0028	28.1	0.34	1.0034
4	10440	523	31.4	0.30	1.0030	25.0	0.24	1.0024	31.6	0.30	1.0030
5	8660	606	29.8	0.34	1.0034	23.3	0.27	1.0027	28.6	0.33	1.0033
6	10535	581	31.5	0.30	1.0030	25.1	0.24	1.0024	31.8	0.30	1.0030
7	10259	768	31.3	0.30	1.0030	24.8	0.24	1.0024	31.3	0.31	1.0031
8	10440	1490	31.4	0.30	1.0030	25.0	0.24	1.0024	31.6	0.30	1.9030
9	9861	1490	30.9	0.31	1.0031	24.5	0.25	1.0025	30.6	0.31	1.0031
10	10226	1490	31.2	0.31	1.0031	24.8	0.24	1.0024	31.3	0.31	1.0031
11	11136	1490	32.1	0.29	1.0029	25.7	0.23	1.0023	32.8	0.29	1.0025
12	12490	1490	33.3	0.27	1.0027	27.0	0.22	1.0022	35.0	0.28	1.0028
13	10706	1490	31.7	0.30	1.0030	25.3	0.24	1.0024	32.1	0.30	1.0030
14	11907	1490	32.8	0.28	1.0028	26.5	0.22	1.0022	34.1	0.29	1.002
15	12845	1852	33.6	0.26	1.0026	27.4	0.21	1.0021	35.6	0.28	1.002
16	14318	1852	35.0	0.24	1.0024	28.8	0.20	1.0020	38.1	0.27	1.002

	and the second

.

			CULATION SHEET	PROJECT N	
CLIENT:	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.	PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA	- mor	
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	1	13

Br

Building	7H			A	768	mm		Area of brace membe
ay Width	7500	mm		Py	300	kN		neld force
Height	7000	mm		6,	20.0	mm		Yield deformation
ace Length	10259	mm		Δ,	27.3	mm		Yield drift
T	0.779	sec						and the second sec
	Ground	motion	Scaling	factor	Abr	ace	% Drift	
	GM:	1	SF:	0.2	brace:	1.681	0.024	
	GM:	1	SF:	0.4	brace:	3.517	0.0502	
	GM:	1	SF:	0,6	brace:	5.285	0.0755	
	GM:	1	SF:	0.8	brace:	6.937	0.0991	
	GM:	1	SF:	1	brace:		0.1214	
	GM:	1	SF:	1.2	brace:		0.1428	
	GM:	1	SF:	1.4	brace:		0.1635	
	GM:	1	SF:	1.6	brace:		0.1836	
	GM:	1	SF:	1.8	brace:		0.2033	
	GM:	1	SF:	2	brace:		0.2226	
	GM: GM:	1	SF: SF:	2.2	brace:	18.2	0.2415	
	GM: GM:	1	SF:	2.6	brace: brace:	19.46	0.2501	
	GM:	1	SF:	2.8	brace.		0.2947	
	GM:	î	SF:	3	brace:		0.3093	
	GM:	1	SF:	3.2	brace:		0.3208	
	GM:	1	SF:	3.4	brace:		0.3283	
	GM:	1	SF:	3.6	brace:		0.3509	
	GM:	1	SF:	3.8	brace:		0.3755	
	GM:	1	SF:	4	brace:		0.4014	,
	GM:	1	SF:	4.2	brace:	29.96	0.428	·
	GM:	1	SF:	4.4	brace:	31.86	0.4551	
	GM:	1	SF:	4.6	brace:	33.77	0.4824	
	GM:	1	SF:	4.8	brace:	35.68	0.5097	
	GM:	1	SF:	5	brace:	37.56	0.5366	
	GM:	1	SF:	5.2	brace:	39.42	0.5631	
	GM:	1	SF:	5.4	brace:	41.21	0.5887	
	GM:	1	SF:	5.6	brace:	42.92	0.6132	
	GM:	1	SF:	5.8	brace:	44.53	0.6362	
	GM:	1	SF:	6	brace:	46.03	0.6576	

		8				
					•	

			CULATION SHEET	PROJECT N	
CLIENT:	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.	PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA	- PAGE	. Ur
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	2	13

Ground me	notion	Scaling fac	tor	Abr	ace.	% Drift	
GM:	2	SF:	0.2	brace	3.14	0.0449	
GM:	2	SF	0.4	brace:	7.171	0.1024	8
GM:	2	SF:	0.6	brace:	11.44	0.1634	
GM:	2	SF:	0.8	brace:	15.97	0.2282	
GM:	2	SF:	1		20.06	0.2866	
GM: GM:	2	SF:	1.2	brace: brace:	24.24	0.2866	
GM:	2	SF:	1.4	brace:	27.73	0.3962	
GM:	2	SF:	1.6	brace:	33.62	0.4803	
GM:	2	SF:	1.8	brace:	39.97	0.571	
GM:	2	SF:	2	brace:	45.06	0.6438	
GM:	2	SF:	2.2	brace:	48.61	0.6944	
GM:	2	SF:	2.4	brace:	51.16	0.7308	
GM:	2	SF:	2.6	brace:	53.09	0.7584	
GM:	2	SF:	2.8	brace:	54.57	0.7795	
GM:	2	SF:	3	brace:	54.99	0.7856	
GM:	2	SF:	3.2	brace:	56.89	0.8127	
GM:	2	SF:	3.4	brace:	59.58	0.8512	
GM:	2	SF:	3.6	brace:	64.96	0.928	
GM:	2	SF:	3.8	brace:	70.44	1.0062	
GM:	2	SF:	4	brace:	75	1.0857	
GM:	2	SF:	4.2	brace:	81.65	1.1665	
GM:	2	SF:	4.4	brace:	87.38	1.2483	
GM:	2	SF:	4.6	brace:	93.18	1.3311	
GM:	2	SF:	4.8	brace:	99.01	1.4144	
GM:	2	SF:	5	brace:	104.9	1.498	
GM:	2	SF:	5.2	brace:	111.2	1.5887	
GM:	2	SF:	5.4	brace:	118	1.685	
GM:	2	SF:	5.6	brace:	124.7	1.7812	1
GM:	2	SF:	5.8	brace:	131.3	1.8764	
GM:	2	SF:	6	brace:	138.2	1.9743	
~~~							
GM:	3	SF:	0.2	brace:	1.983	0.0283	
GM:	3	SF: SF:	0.4	brace:		0.0585	
GM:				brace:	6.835	0.0976	
GM:	3	SF:	0.8	brace:	9.738	0.1391	
GM:	3	SF:	1	brace;	12.52	0.1788	
GM:	3	SF:	1.2	brace:	15.18	0.2168	
GM:	3	SF:	1.4	brace:	17.73	0.2532	
GM:	3	SF:	1.6	brace:	20.15	0.2879	
GM:	3	SF:	1.8	brace:	22.28	0.3183	
GM:	3	SF:	2	brace:	23.8	0.3401	
GM:	3	SF:	2.2	brace:	24.63	0.3519	
GM:	3	SF:	2.4	brace:	26.47	0.3782	
GM:	3	SF:	2.6	brace:	27.93	0.399	
GM;	3	SF:	2.8	brace:	30.06	0.4294	
GM:	3	SF?	3	brace:	32.49	0.4641	
GM:	3	SF:	3.2	brace:	34.42	0.4917	
GM:	3	SF:	3.4	brace:	35.65	0.5093	
GM:	3	SF:	3.6	brace:	36.02	0.5145	
GM:	3	SF:	3,8	brace:	35.58	0.5083	
GM:	3	SF:	4	brace:	34.57	0.4938	
GM:	3	SF:	4.2	brace:	34.18	0.4883	
GM:	3	SF:	4.4	brace:	37.05	0.5293	
GM:	3	SF:	4.6	brace:	40.02	0.5717	
GM:	3	SF:	4.8	brace:	43.08	0.6154	
GM: GM:	3	SF: SF:	5	brace:	46.24	0.6605	
GM: GM:	3	SF: SF:	5.2	brace: brace:	49.47	0.7067	
GM: GM:	3	SF:	5.6	brace:	56.18	0.8026	
GM:	3	SF:	5.8	brace:	59.65	0.8026	
GM:	3	SF:	5.8	brace:	63.2	0.9029	
Grat.	1997 - C			state.	22.2	0.5029	

		1.000.000	CULATION SHEET	PROJECT N	
CLIENT:	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.	PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA		
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	3	13

			Providence Anna				% Drift	
	Ground mo		Scaling fac		Abra		0.0179	
	GM:	4	SF:	0.2	brace:			
	GM:	4	SF:	0.4	brace:	2.537	0.0362	
	GM;	4	SF:	0.6	brace:	4.437	0.0634	
	GM:	4	SF:	0.8	brace:	6.606	0.0944	
	GM:	4	SF:	1	brace:		0.1257	
	GM:	4	SF:	1.2	brace:		0.1553	
	GM:	4	SF:	1.4	brace:	12.8	0.1829	
	GM;	4	SF:	1.6	brace:	14,64	0.2092	
	GM:	4	SF:	1.8	brace:	16.51	0.2359	
	GM:	4	SFL	2	brace:		0.2603	
	GM:	4	SF:	2.2	brace:	20.11	0.2873	
	GM:	4	SF:	2.4	brace:	21.96	0.3138	
	GM:	4	SF:	2.6	brace:		0.3366	
	GM:	4	SF:	2.8	brace:	24.73	0.3533	
	GM:			3.2	brace:	29.22	0.3843	
	GM: GM:	4	SF: SF:	3.4	brace: brace:	31.18	0.4454	
	GM:	4	SF:	3.4	brace:	32.46	0.4637	
	GM: GM:	4	SF:	3.8	brace:	32.51	0.4644	
	GM:	4	SF:	4	brace:	31.07	0.4438	
	GM:	4	SF:	4.2	brace:	30.26	0.4323	
	GM:	4	SF:	4.4	brace:	32.37	0.4624	
	GM:	4	SF:	4.6	brace:	34.56	0.4937	
	GM:	4	SF:	4.8	brace:	36.83	0.5261	
	GM:	4	SF:	5	brace:	42.49	0.607	
	GM:	4	SF:	5.2	brace:	42.11	0.6015	
	GM:	4	SF:	5.4	brace:	43.91	0.6273	
	GM:	4	SF:	5.6	brace:	46.26	0.6608	
	GM:	4	SF:	5.8	brace:	48.68	0.6954	,
	GM:	4	SF:	6	brace:	53.78	0.7683	
	GM:	5	SF:	0.2	brace:	3.247	0.0464	
	GM:	5	SF:	0.4	brace:	7.073	0.101	
	GM:	5	SF:	0.6	brace:	11.09	0.1585	
	GM:	5	SF:	0.8	brace:	15.39	0.2199	
	GM:	5	SF:	1	brace:	19.6	0.28	
	GM:	5	SF:	1.2	brace:	24.08	0.344	
	GM:	5	SF:	1.4	brace:	28.92	0.4132	
	GM:	5	SF:	1.6	brace:	35.22	0.5031	
	GM:	5	SF:	1.8	brace:	39.05	0.5579	
	GM:	5	SF:	2	brace:	42.64	0.6091	
	GM:	5	SF:	2.2	brace:	46.88	0.6697	
	GM:	5	SF;	2.4	brace:	49.89	0.7127	
	GM:	5	SF:	2.6	brace:	56.46	0.8065	
	GM:	5	SF:	2.8	brace:	63.07	0.901	
	GM:	5	SF)	3	brace:	69.77	0.9968	
	GM:	5	SF:	3.2	brace:	76.45	1.0921	
	GM:	5	SF:	3.4	brace:	82.33	1.1762	
	GM:	5	SF:	3.6	brace:	87.07	1.2438	
	GM:	5	SF:	3.8	brace:	91.33	1.3047	
	GM:	5	SF:	4	brace:	95.29	1.3613	
	GM:	5	SF:	4.2	brace:		1.4141	
	GM:	5	SF:	4.4	brace:		1.4631	
	GM:	5	SF:	4.6	brace:		1.5062	
	GM:	5	SF:	4.8	brace:		1.5436	
	GM:	5	SF:	5	brace:		1.5733	
	GM:	5	SF:	5.2	brace:		1.579	
	GM:	5	SF:	5.4	brace:		1.5996	
	GM:	5	SF:	5.6	brace:		1.6167	
	GM:	5	SF:	5.8	brace:			
	GM:	5	SF:	6	brace:	114.9	1.6409	

			•

		s Building Results and J tion Scali SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	Analysis ng factor 0,2 0,4 0,6 0,8 1 1,2 1,4 1,6 1,8 2 2,2 2,4	PREPA CODE: DATE: DATE: brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace	RED: 2.64 5.03 7.92 12.4 16.3 19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	NA 2012-12-01 % Drift 0.038 0.072 0.113 0.177 0.232 0.276 0.31 0.393		PAGE	1
SUBJECT:	IDA 1 iround mo GM: 6 GM	Results and J SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	Analysis ng factor 0,2 0,4 0,6 0,8 1 1,2 1,4 1,6 1,8 2 2,2 2,4	DATE: DATE: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace:	2.64 5.03 7.92 12.4 16.3 19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	2012-12-01 % Drift 0.038 0.072 0.113 0.177 0.232 0.276 0.31 0.393			
G	iround mo GM: 6 GM: 6	tion Scali SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	ng factor 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2 2.2 2.2 2.4	Abri brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace brace	2.64 5.03 7.92 12.4 16.3 19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	% Drift 0.038 0.072 0.113 0.177 0.232 0.276 0.31 0.393		4	1
	GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace:	2.64 5.03 7.92 12.4 16.3 19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	0.038 0.072 0.113 . 0.177 0.232 0.276 0.31 0.393			
	GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace:	2.64 5.03 7.92 12.4 16.3 19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	0.038 0.072 0.113 . 0.177 0.232 0.276 0.31 0.393		•	
	GM: 6 GM: 6	5F: 5F: 5F: 5F: 5F: 5F: 5F: 5F: 5F: 5F:	0.6 0.8 1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2 2.2 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace:	7.92 12.4 16.3 19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	0.113 . 0.177 0.232 0.276 0.31 0.393			
	GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	0.8 1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2 2.2 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace:	12.4 15.3 19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	0.177 0.232 0.276 0.31 0.393			
	GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	1 12 14 16 18 2 22 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace:	16.3 19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	0.232 0.276 0.31 0.393			
	GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace: brace: brace: brace:	19.3 21.7 27.5 33.3	0.276 0.31 0.393			
	GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	1.4 1.6 1.8 2 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace: brace: brace:	21.7 27.5 33.3	0.31 0.393			
	GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	1.6 1.8 2 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace: brace:	27.5 33.3	0.393			
	GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF: SF: SF:	1.8 2 2.2 2.4	brace: brace: brace:	33.3				
	GM: 6 SM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF: SF:	2.2 2.4	brace:	33.5				
	GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF:	2.4						
	GM: 6 GM: 6 GM: 6	SF:							
	GM: 6 GM: 6			brace: brace:		0.683			
(	GM: 6		2.6	brace:		0.912			
	GM: 6		3	brace:		1.009			
(		SF:	3.2	brace:	61.3	0.876			
	GM: 6		3.4	brace:					
	GM: 6		3.6	brace:					
	GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF:	3.8 4	brace: brace:		1.24			
	GM: 6		4.2	brace:		1.713			
	SM: 6	SF:	4.4	brace:		1.336			
(	GM: 6	SF:	4.6	brace:	103	1.472			
	GM: 6		4.8	brace:		1.569			
	GM: 6 GM: 6	SF:	5	brace:		1.669			
	GM: 6 GM: 6	SF: SF:	5.2 5.4	brace: brace:					
	GM: 6		5.6	brace:		2.158	,	,	
(	GM: 6	SF:	5.8	brace:	168	2.396			
(	GM: 6	SF:	6	brace:	182	2.605			
(	SM: 7	SF:	0.2	brace:	2.44	0.035			
	GM: 7	SF:	0.4	brace:		0.067			
	GM: 7	SF:	0.6	brace:		0.089			
	GM: 7	SF:	0.8	brace:		0.106			
	SM: 7	SF:	1	brace:		0.13			
	SM: 7	SF:	1.2	brace:		0.157			
	GM: 7 GM: 7	SF: SF:	1.4	brace: brace:		0.193			
	SM: 7	SF:	1.8	brace:					
	GM: 7	SF:	2	brace:		0.301			
(	GM: 7	SF:	2.2	brace:	26.4	0.377			
0	5M: 7	SF:	2.4	brace:	38.1	0.544			
	5M: 7	SF:	2.6	brace:		0.629			
	SM: 7 SM: 7	SF:	2.8	brace:		0.657			
	SM: 7 SM: 7	SF: SF:	3 3.2	brace: brace:		0.884			
	5M: 7	SF:	3.4	brace.					
0	5M: 7	SF:	3.6	brace:	102	1.458			
	GM: 7	SF:	3.8			1.457			
	5M: 7	SF:	4			1.423			
	SM: 7 SM: 7	SF:	4.2			1.449			
	SM: 7 SM: 7	SF: SF:	4.4 4.6			1.446 1.484			
	SM: 7	SF: SF;	4.8			1.484			
	5M: 7	SF:	5	brace:		1.539			
G	GM: 7	SF:	5.2		108	1.543			
	iM: 7	SF:	5.4	brace:		1.76			
	SM: 7	SF:	5.6	brace:		2.077			
	SM: 7 SM: 7	SF: SF:	5.8	brace: brace:		2.288			

OF

CLIENT:			CULATION SHEET	PROJECT N	
	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.	PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA		
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	5	13

Ground mo	tion	Scaling fac	tor	Abra	ce	% Drift		
GM:	8	SF:	0.2	brace:	3.846	0.0549		
GM:	8	SF:	0.4	brace:	7.552	0.1079		
GM:	8	SF:	0.6			0.1522		
GM:	8	SF:	0.8	brace:				
GM:	8	SF:	1	brace:				
GM	8	SF	1.2	brace:				
GM:	8	SF:	1.4	brace:				
GM:	8	SF:	1.6			0.4781		
GM:	8	SF:	1.8	brace:				
GM:	8	SF:	2	brace:				
GM:	8	SF:	2.2	brace:	50.81	0.7258		
GM:	8	SF:	2.4	brace:	52.97	0.7567		
GM:	8	SF:	2.6	brace:	51.64	0.7377		
GM:	8	SF:	2.8	brace:	49.38	0.7054		
GM:	8	SF:	3	brace:	60.57	0.8652		
GM:	8	SF:	3.2	brace:	70.45	1.0064		
GM:	8	SF:	3.4	brace:				
GM:	8	SF:	3.6			1.1235		
GM;	8	SF:	3.8			1.1925		
GM:	8	SF:	4			1.2254		
GM:	8	SF:	4.2			1.2862		
GM:	8	SF:	4.4			1.4176		
GM:	8	SF:	4.6			1.5391		
GM:	8	SF:	4.8			1.6761		
GM:	8	SF:	5.2			1.8008		
GM: GM:	8	SF:	5.4			1.9087		
GM:	8	SF:	5.6			1.749		
GM:	8	SF:	5.8			1.7764	'	
GM:	8	SF:	6			1.773		
GIW.	0	51 -		Didice	40.714			
GM:	9	SF:	0.2	brace:	2.769	0.0396		
GM:	9	SF:	0.4			0.0993		
GM:	9	SF:	0.6	brace:	12.21	0.1744		
GM:	9	SF:	0.8	brace:	17.82	0.2545		
GM:	9	SF:	1	brace:	23.26	0.3322		
GM:	9	SF:	1.2	brace:	34.15	0.4878		
GM:	9	SF:	1.4			0.4981		
GM:	9	SF:	1.6			0.6437		
GM:	9	SF:	1.8			0.7939		
GM:	9	SF:	2			0.7965		
GM:	9	SF:	2.2			0.8641		
GM:	9	SF:	2.4	brace:	67.15	0.9592		
GM:	9	SF:	2.6	brace:	72.73	1.039		
GM:	9	SF:	2.8	brace:	77.81	1.1115		
GM:	9	SF:	3	brace:	81.43	1.1633		
GM:	9	SF:	3.2	brace:	87.82	1.2546		
GM:	9	SF:	3.4	brace:	95.73	1.3675		
GM:	9	SF:	3.6	brace:	103.8	1.4833		
GM:	9	SF:	3.8	brace:	111.6	1.5945		
GM:	9	SF:	4	brace:	119			
GM:	9	SF:	4.2			1.8012		
GM:	9	SF:	4.4			1.8969		
GM:	9	SF:	4.6			1.9894		
GM:	9	SF:	4.8			2.0491		
GM:	9	SF:	5			2.1395		
GM:	9	SF:	5.2	brace:				
GM:	9	SF:	5.4			2.3054		
GM:	9	SF:	5.6			2.3824		
GM:	9	SF:	5.8	brace:		2.4566		
GM:	9	SF:	6	brace:	177	2.5285		

			•

T.P.

CLIENT:			CULATION SHEET	PROJECT N	
	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.	PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA		
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	6	13

Ground	motion	Scaling	factor	Abri	ace.	% Drift	
GM:	10	SF:	0.2	brace:	2.766	0.0395	
GM:	10	SF:	0.4	brace:	5.95	0.085	*
GM:	10	SF:	0.6	brace:	8.801	0.1257	
GM:	10	SF:	0.8	brace:	11.77	0.1681	
GM:	10	SF:	1	brace:	15.47	0.221	
GM:	10	SF:	1.2	brace:	19.44	0.2777	
GM:	10	SF:	1.4	brace:	24.16	0.3452	
GM:	10	SF:	1.6	brace:	30.24	0.4319	
GM:	10	SF:	1.8	brace:	36.6	0.5229	
GM:	10	SF:	2	brace:	41.82	0.5975	
GM:	10	SF:	2.2	brace:	39.94	0.5706	
GM:	10	SF:	2.4	brace:		0.6435	
GM:	10	SF:	2.6	brace:	51.8	0.74	
GM:	10	SF:	2.8	brace:	54.67	0.781	
GM:	10	SF;	3	brace:		0.7961	
GM:	10	5F;	3.2	brace:	58.3	0.8328	
GM:	10	SF:	3.4	brace:	65.75	0.9392	
GM:	10	SF:	3.6	brace:	71.09	1.0156	
GM:	10	SF:	3.8	brace:	71.86	1.0265	
GM:	10	SF:	4	brace:	64.15	0.9165	
GM:	10	SF:	4.2	brace:	53.36	0.7622	
GM:	10	SF:		brace:	48.39	0.6914	
GM:	10	SF:	4.6	brace:	48.58	0.694	
GM:	10	SF:	4.8	brace:	63.1	0.9015	
GM: GM:	10 10	SF:	5.2	brace:	74.05	1.0578	
GM: GM:	10	SF:	5.4	brace:	83.49	1.1928	
GM:	10	SF:	5.6	brace:	95.39	1.3627	,
GM:	10	SF:	5.8	brace:	100.5	1.4354	'
GM:	10	SF:	6	brace:	107.8	1.5401	
Citer.	10	31.	U	bries.	10110	1.3494	
GM:	11	SF:	0.2	brace!	0.834	0.0119	
GM:	11	SF:	0.4	brace:	1.622	0.0232	
GM:	11	SF:	0.6	brace:	2.277	0.0325	
GM:	11	SF:	0.8	brace:	3.006	0.0429	
GM:	11	SF:	1	brace:	3.776	0.0539	
GM:	11	SF:	1.2	brace:	4.601	0.0657	
GM:	11	SF:	1.4	brace:	5.458	0.078	
	11	SF:	1.4			0.0898	
GM: GM:	11	SF:	1.8	brace: brace:	7.075	0.1011	
GM:	11	SF: SF:	2	brace:	7.753	0.11011	
GM: GM:	11	SF: SF:	2.2	brace:	8.769	0.1253	
		SE:	2.4		9.67	0.1381	
GM: GM:	11	SF:	2.4	brace: brace:	10.61	105012	
GM:	11	SF:	2.8	brace:	11.67	0.1516	
GM:	11	SF:	3	brace:	12.69	0.1812	
GM:	11	SF:	3.2	brace:	13.53	0.1933	
GM:	11	SE	3.4	brace:	14.22	0.2032	
GM:	11	SF:	3.6	brace:	14.79	0.2113	
GM:	11	SF:	3.8	brace:	15.24	0.2178	
GM:	11	SF:	4	brace:	16.17	0.231	
GM:	11	SF:	4.2	brace:	17.26	0.2465	
GM:	11	SF:	4.4	brace:	18.56	0.2652	
GM:	11	SF:	4.6	brace:	19.8	0.2828	
GM:	11	SF:	4.8	brace:	21.06	0.3008	
GM:	11	SF:	5	brace:	22.29	0.3184	
GM:	11	SF:	5.2	brace:	23.47	0.3353	
GM:	11	SF:	5,4	brace:	24.58	0.3511	
GM:	11	SF:	5.6	brace:	25.56	0.3651	
GM:	11	SF:	5.8	brace:	26.38	0.3768	
GM:	11	SF:	,6	brace:	26.83	0.3832	

.

				0	SALC	ULA			PROJECT N
CLIENT:	MCGILL			PREPAR	ED:	A.G.			
PROJECT:	CBFs	Building 1	тн	CODE:		NA			PAGE
SUBJECT	IDA Resu	ults and An	alysis	DATE:		2012-1	2-01		7
	Ground	motion	Scalin	g factor	Δbr	***	% Drift		
	GM:	12	SF:	0.2			0.0486		
	GM:	12	SF	0.4	brace:	9.648	0.1378		
	GM:	12	SF:	0.6	brace:	15.49	0.2213		
	GM:	12	SF:	0.8	brace:	21.76	0.3108		
	GM:	12	SF:	1			0.3996		
	GM:	12	SF:	1.2			0.4478		
	GM:	12	SF: SF:	1.4 1.6	brace: brace:		0.3718		
	GM: GM:	12	SF:	1.8	brace.		0.4392		
	GM:	12	SF:	2	brace:		0.6158		
	GM:	12	SF:	2.2	brace:		0.7761		
	GM:	12	SF:	2.4	brace:	52.54	0.7505		
	GM:	12	SF:	2.6			0.7454		
	GM:	12	SF:	2.8	brace:		0.8686		
	GM:	12	SF:	3			0.9451		
	GM: GM:	12 12	SF: SF:	3.2 3.4	brace: brace:	74.1	1.0585		
	GM:	12	SF:	3.6			1.1382		
	GM:	12	SF:	3.8			1.2464		
	GM:	12	SF:	4			1.3984		
	GM:	12	SF:	4.2	brace:	105.3	1.5045		
	GM:	12	SF;	4.4	brace:	111.2	1.5879		
	GM:	12	SF:	4.6	brace:		1.6428		
	GM:	12	SF:	4.8		118.4			
	GM:	12	SF:	5			1.7314		
	GM: GM:	12 12	SF: SF:	5.2 5.4			1.9841		
	GM:	12	SF:	5.6	brace:		2.0669	,	
	GM:	12	SF:	5.8			2.3925		
	GM:	12	SF:	6	brace:	179.2	2.5607		
	GM:	13	SF:	0.2	brace:	4.359	0.0623		
	GM:	13	SF:	0.4	brace:	8.022	0.1146		
	GM:	13	SF:	0.6	brace:	11.78	0.1683		
	GM:	13	SF:	0.8	brace:	15.08	0.2155		
	GM:	13	SF:	1	brace:	17.96	0.2566		
	GM:	13	SF:	1.2	brace:		0.2821		
	GM:	13	SF;	1.4	brace:		0.2938		
	GM:	13	SF:	1.6	brace:		0.3676		
	GM:	13	SF:	1.8			0.4833		
	GM:	13	SF:	2			0.5005		
	GM:	13 13	SF: SF:	2.4			0.6906		
	GM: GM:	13	SF:	2.6			0.6084		
	GM:	13	SF:	2.8			0.7066		
	GM:	13	SF:	3		57.1			
	GM:	13	SF:	3.2			0.9133		
	GM:	13	SF:	3,4			0.9759		
	GM:	13	SF:	3.6			1.0335		
	GM:	13	SF:	3.8			1.0135		
	GM:	13	SF:	4			1.178 1.2764		
	GM: GM:	13 13	SF: SF:	4.2 4.4	brace: brace:		1.3328		
	GM:	13	SF:	4.4			1.4128		
	GM:	13	SF:	4.8			1.5634		
	GM:	13	SF:	5			1.8303		
	GM:	13	SF:	5.2	brace:	133.4	1.9051		
	GM:	13	SF:	5.4			2.1308		
	GM:	13	SF:	5,6		167			
	GM:	13	SF:	5.8			2.5515		
	GM:	13	SF:	, 6	brace:	188	2.6854		

OF 

-----

.

20-

CLIENT:		CAL	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG		
	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.	PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA		0.
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	8	13

Ground m	otion	Scaling fac	tor	Abr	ace.	% Drift	
GM:	14	SF:	0.2	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	0.4	brace;	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	0.6	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM	14	SF:	0.8	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SE.	1	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	1.2	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	1.4	brace;		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	1.6	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	1.8	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	2	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	2.2	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	2.4	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	2.6	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	2.8	brace:		0.0004	
GM.	14	SF:	3	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	3.2	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	3.4	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	3.6	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	3.8	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	4	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	4.2	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	4.4			0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	4.6	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	4.8	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	5	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	5.2	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	5.4	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	5.6	brace:	0.025	0.0004	1
GM:	14	SF:	5.8	brace:		0.0004	
GM:	14	SF:	6	brace:	0.025	0.0004	
GM:	15	SF:	0.2	brace:	2.34	0.0334	
GM:	15	SF:	0.4	brace:	4.015	0.0574	
GM:	15	SF:	0.6	brace:	5.934	0.0848	
GM:	15	SF:	0.8	brace:	7.667	0.1095	
GM:	15	SF:	1	brace:	9.325	0.1332	
GM:	15	SF:	1.2	brace:	11	0.1572	
GM:	15	SF:	1.4	brace:	12.75	0.1822	
GM:	15	SF:	1.6	brace:		0.2088	
GM:	15	SF:	1.8	brace:		0.2371	
GM: GM:	15 15	SF: SF:	2	brace:	18.69	0.267	
GM:	15	SF:	2.4	brace:	23.25	0.3321	
GM:	15	SF:	2.6	brace:	27.52	0.3932	
GM:	15	SF:	2.8	brace:	33.01	0.4716	
GM:	15	SF:	3	brace:		0.5433	
GM:	15	SF:	3.2	brace:	42.17	0.6025	
GM:	15	SF:	3.4	brace:	43.03	0.6148	
GM:	15	SF:	3.6	brace:		0.5902	
GM:	15	SF:	3.8	brace:	51.29	0.7327	
GM:	15	SF:	4	brace:	66.06	0.9437	
GM:	15	SF:	4.2	brace:	74.33	1.0618	
GM:	15	SF:	4.4	brace:	79.11	1.1302	
GM:	15	SF:	4.6	brace:	85.77	1.2252	
GM:	15	SF:	4.8	brace:	92.46	1.3208	
GM:	15	SF:	5	brace:	94.64	1.352	
GM:	15	SF:	5.2	brace:	98.43	1.4062	
GM:	15	SF:	5.4	brace:	101.7	1.4525	
GM:	15	SF:	5.6	brace:	107.8	1.5396	
GM:	15	SF:	5.8			1.5325	
GM:	15	SF:	6	brace:	95.08	1.3582	

			•

CLIENT			CULATION SHEET	PROJECT N	
	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.		OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA	PAGE	Ur.
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	9	13

Ground	motion	Scaling	factor	Abr	ace.	% Drift	
GM:	16	SF:	0.2	brace:	2.474	0.0353	
GM:	16	SF:	0.4	brace:	5.684	0.0812	
GM:	16	SF	0.6	brace:	9.832	0.1405	
GM:	16	SF:	0.8	brace:	15.85	0.2264	
GM:	16	SE	1	brace:	21.97	0.3139	
GM:	16	SF:	1.2	brace:	25.58	0.3654	
GM:	16	SF:	1.4	brace:	31.01	0.4431	
GM:	16	SF:	1.6	brace:	33.03	0.4718	
GM:	16	SF:	1.8	brace:	35.86	0.5123	
GM:	16	SF:	2	brace:	38.91	0.5559	
GM:	16	SF:	2.2	brace:	41.11	0.5872	
GM:	16	SF:	2.4	brace:	42.59	0.6085	
GM:	16	SF	2.6	brace:	43.4	0.6199	
GM:	16	SF:	2.8	brace:	43.72	0.6245	
GM:	16	SF:	3	brace:	44.03	0.629	
GM:	16	SF:	3.2	brace:	45.21	0.6458	
GM:	16	SF:	3.4	brace:	47.82	0.6832	
GM:	16	SF:	3.6	brace:	51.37	0.7339	
GM;	16	SF:	3.8	brace:	56.91	0.813	
GM:	16	SF:	4	brace:	63.5	0.9072	
GM:	16	SF: SF:	4.2	brace:	63.2	0.9028	
GM:	16		4.4	brace:	60.01	0.8573	
GM: GM:	16 16	SF: SF:	4.6 4.8	brace:	59.92	0.856	
GM:	16	SF: SF:	4.8	brace:	60.15 61.35	0.8593	
GM:	16	SF:	5.2	brace:	72.49	1.0356	
GM:	16	SF:	5.4	brace:	76.66	1.0356	
GM:	16	SF:	5.6	brace:	72.42	1.0345	,
GM:	16	SF:	5.8	brace:	82.99	1.1855	
GM:	16	SF:	6	brace:	79.43	1.1347	
					( all call		
GM:	17	SF:	0.2	brace:	0.983	0.014	
GM:	17	SF:	0.4	brace:	1.701	0.0243	
GM:	17	SF:	0.6	brace:	1.88	0.0269	
GM:	17	SF:	0.8	brace:	2.583	0.0369	
GM:	17	SF:	1	brace:	2.385	0.0341	
GM:	17	SF:	1.2	brace:	3.905	0.0558	
GM:	17	SF:	1.4	brace:	3.419	0.0488	
GM:	17	SF:	1.6	brace:	3.936	0.0562	
GM:	17	SF:	1.8	brace;	5.006	0.0715	
GM:	17	SF:	2	brace:	5.136	0.0734	
GM:	17	SF:	2.2	brace:	51.91	0.7416	
GM:	17	SF:	2.4	brace:	49.8	0.7114	
GM:	17	SF:	2.6	brace:	\$3.57	0.7653	
GM:	17	SF:	2.8	brace:	48.04	0.6863	
GM:	17	SF:	з	brace:	59.59	0.8512	
GM:	17	SF:	3.2	brace:	62.77	0.8967	
GM:	17	SF:	3.4	brace:	66.45	0.9493	
GM:	17	SF:	3.6	brace:	72.57	1.0367	
GM:	17	SF:	3.8	brace:	141.1	2.0158	
GM:	17	SF:	4	brace:	139.8	1.9976	
GM:	17	SF:	4.2	brace:	136.7	1.9531	
GM:	17	SF:	4.4	brace:	162.7	2.3243	
GM;	17	SF:	4.6	brace:	140.4	2.0056	
GM:	17	SF:	4.8	brace:	139.4	1.992	
GM:	17	SF:	5	brace:	149.6	2.1375	
GM:	17	SF:	5.2	brace:	168.3	2.4049	
GM:	17	SF:	5.4	brace:	177.8	2.5402	
GM:	17	SF:	5.6	brace:	192.7	2.7522	
GM:	17	SF:	5.8	brace:		2.359	
GM:	17	SF:	6-	brace:	172.8	2.4681	

è

.

		CAL	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG		
CLIENT:	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.		
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA.	PAGE	OF
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	10	13

Ground m	otion	Scaling fac	tor	Abr	ace.	% Drift		
GM:	18	SF:	0.2	brace.	1.282	0.0183		
GM:	18	SF:	0.4	brace:	2.513	0.0359	*	
GM:	18	SF:	0.6	brace:	3.488	0.0498		
GM:	18	SF:	0.8	brace:	4.002	0.0572		
GM:	18	SF:	1	brace:	4.844	0.0692		
GM:	18	SF:	1.2	brace:	5.786	0.0827		
GM:	18	SF:	1.4	brace:		0.096		
GM:	18	SF:	1.6	brace:	7.569	0.1081		
GM:	18	SF:	1.8	brace:	5.101	0.0729		
GM:	18	SF:	2	brace:	9.038	0.1291		
GM:	18	SF:	2.2	brace:	27.5	0.3928		
GM:	18	SF:	2.4	brace:	35.02	0.5002		
GM:	18	SF:	2.6	brace:	39.9	0.57		
GM:	18	SF:	2.8	brace:	46.33	0.6619		
GM:	18	SF:	3	brace:	58.07	0.8296		
GM:	18	SF:	3.2	brace:	48.18	0.6883		
GM:	18	SF:	3.4	brace:	75.33	1.0762		
GM:	18	SF:	3.6	brace:	76.77	1.0968		
GM:	18	SF:	3.8	brace:	74.7	1.0671		
GM:	18	SF:	4	brace:	86.34	1.2334		
GM:	18	SF:	4.2	brace:	90.29	1.2899		
GM:	18	SF:	4.4	brace:	104.4	1.4907		
GM:	18	SF:	4.6	brace:	116.4	1.6633		
GM:	18	SF:	4.8	brace:		1.5273		
GM:	18	SE:	5	brace:		1.6177		
GM:	18	SE:	5.2	brace:	116.7	1.6675		
GM:	18	SF:	5.4	brace:		1.6562		
GM:	18	SF:	5.6	brace:	121.2	1.7321	,	
GM:	18	SF:	5.8	brace:	129.4	1.8479		
GM:	18	SF:	6	brace:	134.8	1.9251		
Givi.	10	Sec.	0	brace.	134.0	1.9231		
GM:	19	SF:	0.2	brace:	3.874	0.0553		
GM:	19	SF:	0.4		6.834	0.0976		
GM:	19	SF:		brace:				
			0.6	brace:	9.1	0.13		
GM:	19	SF:	0.8	brace;	10.51	0.1502		
GM:	19	SF:	1	brace:	12.38	0.1769		
GM:	19	SF:	1.2	brace:	13.78	0.1969		
GM:	19	SF:	1.4	brace:	14.91	0.213		
GM:	19	SF:	1.6	brace:	16.88	0.2412		
GM:	19	SF:	1.8	brace:	18.76	0.268		
GM:	19	SF:	2	brace:	20.61	0.2945		
GM:	19	SF:	2.2	brace:		0.3219		
GM:	19	SF:	2.4	brace:		0.3508		
GM:	19	SF:	2.6			0.3815		
GM:	19	SF:	2.8	brace: brace:		0.4141		
GM:	19	SF:	3					
				brace:		0.4478		
GM:	19	SF:	3.2	brace:	33.77	0.4824		
GM:	19	SF:	3.4	brace:	40.2	0.5743		
GM:	19	SF:	3.6	brace:	48.31	0.6901		
GM:	19	SF:	3.8	brace:	59.37	0.8481		
GM:	19	SF:	4	brace:	69.65	0.995		
	19	SF:	4.2	brace:	71.31	1.0187		
GM:	19	SF:	4.4	brace:	71.77	1.0253		
GM:	19	SF:	4.6	brace:	77.03	1.1004		
	19	SF:	4.8	brace:	83.93	1.1991		
GM:	19	SF:	5	brace:	89.86	1.2836		
	19	SF:	5.2	brace:	92.59	1.3228		
GM:	19	SF:	5.4	brace:	91.97	1.3138		
GM:	19	SF:	5.6	brace:	89.15	1.2736		
GM:	19	SF:	5.8	brace:	85.46	1.2209		
GM:	19	SF:	6	brace:	81.62	1.1661		
-

		CALCULATION SHEET	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG
CLIENT:	MCGILL	PREPARED: A.G.	PAGE OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE: NA	
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE: 2012-12-01	11 13

Ground	motion	Scaling	factor	Abr	ace	% Drift	
GM:	20	SF:	0.2	brace:	0.882	0.0126	
GM:	20	SF:	0.4	brace:	1.353	0.0193	
GM:	20	SF:	0.6	brace:	2.69	0.0384	
GM.	20	SF:	0.8	brace:	3.657	0.0522	
GM:	20	SF:	1	brace	3.195	0.0456	
GM:	20	SF:	1.2	brace:	3.745	0.0535	
GM:	20	SF:	1.4			0.0539	
GM:	20	SF:	1.6			0.0616	
GM:	20	SF:	1.8			0.0695	
GM:	20	SF:	2		5.427	0.0775	
GM:	20	SF:	2.2	brace:	23.19	0.3313	
GM:	20	SF:	2.4	brace:	25.67	0.3667	
GM:	20	SF:	2.6	brace:	27.29	0.3898	
GM:	20	SF:	2.8	brace:	27.76	0.3965	
GM:	20	SF:	3	brace:	27.44	0.392	
GM:	20	SF:	3.2	brace:	29.97	0.4281	
GM:	20	SF:	3.4	brace:	32.8	0.4686	
GM:	20	SF:	3.6	brace:	35.31	0.5044	
GM:	20	SF:	3.8	brace:	32.48	0.464	
GM:	20	SF:	4	brace:	33.36	0.4765	
GM:	20	SF:	4.2	brace:	31.95	0.4564	
GM:	20	SF:	4.4	brace:	31.88	0.4554	
GM:	20	SF:	4.6	brace:	36.19	0.517	
GM:	20	SF:	4.8	brace:	38.11	0.5445	
GM:	20	SF:	5	brace:	43.43	0.6205	
GM:	20	SF:	5.2	brace:	52.41	0.7487	
GM:	20	SF:	5.4	brace:	61.93	0.8847	
GM:	20	SF:	5.6	brace:	58.73	0.839	1
GM:	20	SF:	5.8	brace:	49.1	0.7015	
GM:	20	SF:	6	brace:	52.67	0.7524	



.

		CALCULATION							PROJECT N M.E	
CLIENT:	MCGILL				PREPAREI	D:	A.G.			-
PROJECT:		CBFs	Building	7H	CODE:		NA		PAGE	OF
SUBJECT:		IDA Result	s and Analy	sis	DATE:		2012-12-0	1	12	13
	Max D	rift (mm)	31.5	40.5	53.7	33.9	42.8	42.7	175.0	
	Max	Drift (%)	0.45	0.58	0.77	0.48 .	0.61	0.61	2.50	
	SF	Mean	NS1	NS2	NS3	Bolt	Block	Bearing	Yield	
	0.2	0.03	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0.4	0.07	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
	0.6	0.11	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
	0.8	0.15	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
	1.0	0.19	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
	1.2	0.23	0.05	0.00	0.00	0.05	0.00	0.00	0.00	
	1.4	0.26	0.05	0.00	0.00	0.05	0.00	0.00 -	0.00	
	1.6	0.31	0.26	0.05	0.00	0.11	0.05	0.05	0.00	
	1.8	0.36	0.47	0.11	0.05	0.37	0.05	0.05	0.00	
	2.0	0.40	0.47	0.32	0.05	0.42	0.21	0.21	0.00	
	2.2	0.51	0.53	0.42	0.11	0.53	0.37	0.37	0.00	
	2.4	0.55	0.63	0.53	0.11	0.63	0.47	0.47	0.00	
	2.6	0.59	0.63	0.58	0.16	0.63	0.53	0.53	0.00	
	2.8	0.63	0.68	0.63	0.32	0.63	0.63	0.63	0.00	
	3.0	0.70	0.74	0.63	0.58	0.68	0.63	0.63	0.00	
	3.2	0.74	0.79	0.68	0.58	0.74	0.63	0.63	0.00	
	3.4	0.82	0.84	0.68	0.58	0.79	0.68	0.68	0.00	
	3.6	0.88	0.89	0.74	0.58	0.84	0.68	0.68	0.00	
	3.8	0.98	0.89	0.74	0.68	0.84	0.74	0.74	0.00	
	4.0	1.04	0.89	0.74	0.74	0.84	0.74	0.74	0.00	
	4.2	1.09	0.89	0.74	0.74	0.84	0.74	0.74	0.00	
	4.4	1.13	0.95	0,74	0.74	0.84	0.74	0.74	0.00	
	4.6	1.17	0.95	0.74	0.74	0.89	0.74	0.74	0.00	
	4.8	1.23	0.95	0.79	0.74	0.95	0.79	0.79	0.00	
	5.0	1.30	0.95	0.89	0.74	0.95	0.84	0.84	0.00	
	5.2	1.39	0.95	0.89	0.74	0.95	0.84	0.84	0.00	
	5.4	1.46	0.95	0.95	0.79	0.95	0.89	0.89	0.05	
	5.6	1.54	0.95	0.95	0.84	0.95	0.95	0.95	0.05	
	5.8	1.59	0.95	0.95	0.84	0.95	0.95	0.95	0.05	
	6.0	1.64	0.95	0.95	0.84	0.95	0.95	0.95	0.21	
		Scr	2.097	2.546	3.263	2.159	2.715	2.710	1	
		SMT	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	
		CMR	2.10	2.55	3.26	2.16	2.71	2.71	0.00	
		Δ.,	31.5	40.5	53.7	33.9	42.8	42.7	175.0	
		μ,	1.15	1.48	1.96	1.24	1.56	1.56	6.40	
		SSF	1.03	1.059	1.078	1.041	1.063	1.062	1.172	
		ACMR	2.17	2.69	3.52	2.25	2.88	2.88	0.00	

.

		CAL	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG		
CLIENT:	MCGILL	PREPARED:	A.G.	PAGE	OF
PROJECT:	CBFs Building 7H	CODE:	NA		
SUBJECT:	IDA Results and Analysis	DATE:	2012-12-01	13	13



% Drift





North N

•

din C	CALCULATION SHEET	PROJECT NO.: M.ENG		
CLIENT: MCGILL	PREPARED: A.G.	PAGE OF		
PROJEC CBFs	CODE: NA	1 1		
SUBJECT: Summary of IDA Results	DATE: 2012-12-01			

				ACMR Values							
Building	NS1	NS2	NS3	Bolt	Block	Bearing	Drift				
IH	2.41	3.12	4.25	2.92	3.32	3.60	NA				
2H	2.29	3,03	4.18	2.73	3,16	3.47	NA				
3H	2.40	3.05	3.92	2.75	3.14	3.25	NA				
4H	2.38	3.29	3.96	2,60	3,44	3.43	NA				
5H	1.98	2.55	3.32	2.21	2.76	2.85	NA				
6H	1.93	2.55	3,27	2.08	2.77	2.75	NA				
7H	2.17	2.69	3.52	2.25	2.88	2.88	NA				
8H	3.16	3.83	5.12	3.35	3.97	3.95	NA				
9H	2.80	3.57	4.40	3.03	3.72	3.74	NA				
10H	2.54	3.27	4.08	2,73	3.42	3.41	NA				
11H	2.41	3.17	3.92	2.56	3.38	3.30	NA				
12H	2.23	2.83	3.56	2.30	3.05	2.86	NA				
13H	2.56	3.03	3.60	2,67	3.13	3.11	NA				
14H	2.34	2.82	3.28	2.43	2.93	2.86	NA				
15H	2.88	3.49	4.29	2.93	3.65	3.50	NA				
16H	2.22	2.92	3.63	2.20	3.09	2.82	NA				
Avg H	2.42	3.08	3.89	2.61	3.24	3.24	NA				

1

	Failure Criteria										
Location	i) NS1	iv) Bolt	ii) NS2	v) Block	vi) Bearing	iii) NS3	vii) Drift				
HALIFAX	93.8%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%				

and the length of consideration of brack here

Anne " area of brasic heijied.

Removing clastic partion of clonestion, 6,5,40. from the ultimate clopyrtion, 8

 $(\delta_n + \delta_{\text{etamic}})_{trace} = \frac{p(t_{net} - t_{men})}{2\delta} = 2.91 \text{ mm}$ 

Applying lest results to building 7 (Layout Bc) with

2 A State of the second s

.

### Appendix C

Sample calculation of building 7H for FEMA P-695 acceptance criteria.

For Building 7H:

- Ground motion : 1
- Scaling factor : 1
- Failure criteria: NS1

From testing by Caruso-Juliano (2012):

Failure	$\delta_u (mm)$	P (kN)	L _{tot} (mm)	L _{cnx} (mm)	$A_{test} (mm^2)$
NS 1 (3Bsa)	12.1	402.0	3070	228.6	1362

where:

 $\delta_u$  = ultimate elongation of brace tested;

P = axial test load;

 $L_{tot} = total length of brace tested;$ 

 $L_{cnx}$  = length of connection of brace tested;

 $A_{test}$  = area of brace tested.

Removing elastic portion of elongation,  $\delta_{elastic}$ , from the ultimate elongation,  $\delta_u$ :

$$(\delta_u - \delta_{elastic})_{test} = \frac{P(L_{tot} - L_{cnx})}{EA} = 7.91 \text{ mm}$$

Applying test results to building 7 (Layout Bc) with:

Structure Type	L _{brace} (mm)	$A_{brace} (mm^2)$	Width Bay, W (mm)	Height, H (mm)
7	10259	768	7500	7000

#### Appendix C

Sample scientist of building 28 for 1 sNA P-045 successive course

#### HT yould all mill

- Growing motion -
- Scaling factor : 1
- Fering survivor english

From testing by Lanuage fullance (2011

NO DE C

a = ultimate elongalisat of praco lestadi

they have been being a - 9

Loss + total length of broce tested;

Late - length of connection of hmore tealed

And = area of brace tested.

.

Removing district particle of electronical design from the alternatic congeneration

(a) - determinant - (Martin - 191 mm

tenlering test in mile to building 7 (Layout Eco with

Adjusting for length of brace for building 7H versus test results, the ultimate elongation for the braced bay in building type 7,  $(\delta_u)_{BLD 7}$  becomes:

$$(\delta_u)_{BLD 7} = (\delta_u - \delta_{elastic})_{test} + \frac{PL_{brace}}{EA_{test}} = 23.0 \text{ mm}$$

Such that the percent elongation at failure is:

% 
$$(\delta_u)_{BLD 7} = \frac{(\delta_u)_{BLD 7}}{L_{brace}} x \ 100 = 0.22\%$$

Maximum building drift at failure:

$$(\Delta_u)_{BLD 7} = \left\{ \sqrt{\left[ (L_{brace} + (\delta_u)_{BLD 7})^2 - H^2 \right]} - W \right\} = 31.5 \text{ mm}$$

Such that the percent drift at failure is:

$$\% \Delta_u = \frac{(\Delta_u)_{BLD 7}}{H} x \ 100 = 0.45\%$$

Then from IDA analysis for ground motion 1 and scaling factor 1.0:

$$\Delta_{brace} = 8.499 \text{ mm}$$

This corresponds to a percent drift of:

$$\% \Delta_{brace} = \frac{\Delta_{brace}}{H} \times 100 = 0.12\%$$

The percent drift is averaged for the 20 ground motions, for every scaling factor. For scaling factor 1:

$$\left(\sum_{GM\,1}^{GM\,20}\%\,\Delta_{brace}\right) / 20 = 0.19\%$$

The percent drift at failure of 0.45% is therefore seen to occur between scaling factors 2.0 and 2.2, which have average drifts of 0.40% and 0.51% respectively. Therefore the median collapse intensity,  $\hat{S}_{CT}$ , is then interpolated for the percent drift at failure between these scaling factors :

Adjusting for length of brace for building 7% versus test results, the ultimate clongation for the henced here in building type 7, (6.) as a becoment

$$(\beta_{\alpha})_{\beta \in OS} = (\beta_{\alpha} - \beta_{\text{standed}})_{\text{rate}} + \frac{\rho_{\text{lineous}}}{c \delta_{\text{even}}} = 23.0 \text{ mm}.$$

Such that the percent clongetion at failure is:

$$96 (\delta_{0})_{000} = \frac{(\delta_{0})_{000}}{\delta_{000}} \ge 100 - 0.22\%$$

contini to field goilding eminerated

$$am E.t = \{M - PN - N - N - N - 15 am DD \} = man Lab$$

Such that the parcent drift at follow is:

$$\Im \Delta_{0} = \frac{(\Delta_{0})_{0.012}}{v} \times 100 = 0.45\%$$

Then from IDA analysis for ground motion I and scaling factor 1.0:

This conceptonds to a percent drill of

.

$$\sin \Delta_{\rm press} = \frac{\Delta_{\rm scale}}{m} \approx 100 - 0.12\%$$

The percent and is averaged for the 29 granted motions, for every scaling factor, for

$$\left(\sum_{i=1}^{n} 10 \text{ Margare}\right)/20 = 0.19%$$

The percent doit at fullure of 0.45% is therefore seen to acate between scaling factors 2.0 and 2.2, which have merge doins of 0.40% and 0.61% compectively. Therefore the intellien colleges intensity, 5_{er}, is then interpolated for the percent doit at failure between these section factors :

$$\hat{S}_{CT} = \frac{2.2 - 2}{0.51 - 0.40} \left( 0.45 - 0.40 \right) + 2 = 2.1$$

Since the earthquake records used in the study are based on matching the uniform hazard spectrum the maximum considered earthquake spectral demand,  $S_{MT}$ , is taken as 1.0. As such the collapse margin ratio (CMR) is equal to the median collapse intensity,  $\hat{S}_{CT}$ .

$$CMR = \frac{\hat{S}_{CT}}{S_{MT}} = \hat{S}_{CT} = 2.1$$

The period-based ductility,  $\mu_T$ , is taken as the ratio of ultimate roof drift,  $\Delta_u$ , to effective yield drift,  $\Delta_y$ . The drift at yield is calculated based on the elongation at yield,  $\delta_y$ , and the yield load,  $P_y$ :

$$\delta_y = \frac{P_y L_{brace}}{EA_{brace}} = 20.0 \ mm$$

$$\Delta_y = \left\{ \sqrt{\left[ \left( L_{brace} + \delta_y \right)^2 - H^2 \right]} - W \right\} = 27.3 mm$$

$$\mu_{\rm T} = \Delta_{\rm u} / \Delta_{\rm v} = 1.15$$

The spectral shape factor, SSF, varies according to the fundamental period, T, and periodbased ductility;  $\mu_T$ . For a period of 0.779 for building 7H, SSF is interpolated as1.03.

The adjusted collapse margin ratio (ACMR) is then calculated for failure criteria NS1:

$$ACMR_{NS1} = SSF_{NS1} \times CMR_{NS1} = 2.17$$

Total system collapse uncertainty,  $\beta_{TOT}$ , is calculated as:

$$\beta_{\text{TOT}} = \sqrt{B^2_{\text{RTR}} + B^2_{\text{DR}} + B^2_{\text{TD}} + B^2_{\text{MDL}}} = 0.80$$

where:

$$\beta_{\text{RTR}} = 0.40; \ \beta_{\text{DR}} = 0.30; \ \beta_{\text{TD}} = 0.45; \ \beta_{\text{MDL}} = 0.45$$

From Table 7-3 of FEMA-P695 the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR_{10%}, for each performance group is taken as:

$$S_{\rm CF} = \frac{2.2 - 2}{0.51 - 0.40} (0.45 - 0.40) + 2 = 2.1$$

Since the earthquake records used in the study are based on matching the announcements appearant, so maximum considered earthquake spectral demant. Some injusted as 1.0. As such the collecter margin ratio (CMR) is equal to the median collecter intensity. Sore

$$CMR = \frac{S_{CT}}{S_{MT}} = S_{CT} = 2.1$$

The period based doctifity, are is taken as the material altimate root draft. At the effective yield drift. At. The Julit at yield is calculated based on the elongation in yield. (y, and the vield feed by

$$\delta_N = \frac{P_0^{\rm Abrace}}{gA_{\rm brace}} = 30.0 \text{ mm}$$

$$\Delta_{y} = \left\{ \int \left[ \left( L_{\text{areas}} + \delta_{y} \right)^{2} - H^{2} \right] - W \right\} = 27.3 \text{ mm}$$

$$\Pi_{y} = \Delta_{y} / \Delta_{y} = 1.15$$

The spectral shape factor, SSF, varies according to the huydamontal free of 1 and period faced ductility, 10, 200 a period of 0.779 for building 71, SSF is interpolated as 1.03. The adjusted collapse margin ratio (ACMP) is then calculated for failure criteris NSI:

ACMR an = SSPeed ACMR ANT 2117

Total some notinger uncertainty, Prov. Is colouted as

CLOR BLACKED - 60 1 36 0 - 10 30.0 - 10.13

From Table 7-5 of FUMA-Probi the acceptable all two of ediapse mergin mile. ACMB are for each participation and a faken as

$$ACMR_{10\%} = 2.79$$

The acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio for a specific archetype, ACMR_{20%}, is taken as:

$$ACMR_{20\%} = 1.96$$

For each performance group, the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR_{10%}, is compared to the average adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, of all archetypes.

For NS1, the average adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR is:

$$ACMR_{NS1} = 2.42 < ACMR_{10\%}$$

Within each performance group, the adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, of each archetype individually is compared to the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio relaxed to a probability of collapse of 20%, ACMR_{20%}. For the critical case, 6H:

$$ACMR_{6H} = 1.96 < ACMR_{20\%}$$

1

NS1 does not meet the performance criteria.

The acceptable adjusted collepse mugin ratio for a spectrae areaetype, ever minare in Elicentate

#### ACMIN and = 1.99

For each performance group, the screptable adjusted collapse margin ratio, AC Micros, is compared to the average adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, of all archetypes,

For VST, the attance adjusted call, use marging (altro) ACMAS 15:

#### ACM/R = 2.42 < ACM/R 103

Within each performance group, the adjusted collapse margin ratio, ACMR, of each archetype individually is compared to the acceptable adjusted collapse margin ratio archetype individually is compared to the acceptable of 20%. ACMR archetype for the colleges (611:

ACM R ... = 1.95 < AC M N 2014

VS1 does not meet the partornance constru-

.

## Appendix D





Results of IDA analysis for building 1H.

G zifosouth





All pression had prevent and to estimate.

.

105



Results of IDA analysis for building 2H.



Results of IDA analysis for building 3H.





Results of IDA analysis for building 4H.



Results of IDA analysis for building 5H.





,

Results of IDA analysis for building 6H.



Results of IDA analysis for building 7H.





Results of IDA analysis for building 8H.



Results of IDA analysis for building 9H.





Results of IDA analysis for building 10H.



Results of IDA analysis for building 11H.





Results of IDA analysis for building 12H.



Results of IDA analysis for building 13H.





Results of IDA analysis for building 14H.



Results of IDA analysis for building 15H.





Results of IDA analysis for building 16H.





Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 1H.
Appendix



All public with the standard strends as when the bar the source within the

.



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 2H.







ng Ferring St

and an office of the total state of the second state of the total second s

.



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 4H.







The state of the second and the second state of the second s



the second s

•



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 6H.













If an issue that an an an an an array summer that and a provident for head on a line



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 8H.







Stating the result of the second particular

The particular solution of a manual sub-state in the loss of the second state in the second state of the

.



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 10H.



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 11H.



Pior services with the service was been as so and the service was serviced and



the effect and with entered or the production of the production of the production of the



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 12H.



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 13H.







Francisco care and a set official thread for an entrance (reput) for howards and

•



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 14H.



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 15H.





Electronic and a rest of the second second for one mainter the second second second second second second second



and polytocher then wanted as a set of some less this was released

.



Fragility curve (left), and adjusted curve for uncertainty (right) for building 16H.



.





